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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

EEdE
Caring for Society

%ﬁ*” TIRBEERIFRE  ERETERARBNEZE 4
BESERE SARERVBESNRERESKHES
UARRA AR REREERER - Al - BERBIHEZH
HEREILEYE BEARIENR  HEURBEEEL

« R~ BESSEEPNERNE -
: In face of the COVID-19 outbreak, Chiyu Bank has given tremendous

support to infection control and joined hands with the Group's
& other institutions, Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation and Tan
@M@W{@'ﬁnﬁn = Kah Kee Fund Association to donate anti-epidemic items, medical
$ /i supplies or funds to major hospitals in Wuhan, as well as a number
V“‘B“""“@"” ation f“‘ of Mainland, Hong Kong and overseas organisations early this
EFEFNEESE MEEESBET year. We hope that by taking the lead to make donations, we could
promote the concerted efforts of different segments in society to
help one another counter the epidemic.

FITREEBATOF  LEBABL  OFBEKR
EEREY-MEELENE  AERERBRIEA
H BIEUNEBASELRER  UARBRAER
AFEEOE -

Deeply rooted in Hong Kong for over 70 years, we regard
Hong Kong people's well-being as our top priority. The
Bank made a donation of medical supplies to the Hong
Kong Hospital Authority to provide protective gowns for the
devoted frontline healthcare personnel and face masks for
children patients.

ERBOBEBIFABRAETNE  TRAEBA+FEREEAZTRE([BLOOZ | AURERRE FREES
RBRREREE - HEZASHEHHRUEAEDY K TESRELEFE -

In full support of the local anti-epidemic efforts, Chiyu Bank donated face masks to Hong Kong Red Cross and Caritas Hong
Kong, aiming to give as much help, care and protection as possible to the local disadvantaged groups such as children with
special needs and elderly people within the shortest timeframe.

- £RRITEMRAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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In proactive response to the HKSAR e
Government’s Cash Payout Scheme, e A
Chiyu Bank became one of the
designated participating banks of the
Scheme. Customers who were Hong
Kong permanent residents qualified for
the Scheme could conveniently register
through our branches, Internet or Mobile
Banking to receive the HK$10,000.
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To help Jimei University, which was also set up by Mr. Tan Kah Kee, resolve the shortage of anti-epidemic items, Chiyu Bank promptly
donated face masks to the teaching staff and students of the university, helping them create a safety net against infection.

TIROIREEFREINRERZR  BE2RDT
REEHEEE L LR R EER  WEEEEBS

+ WL B + LEEECI R ERAHTROMT] 58 ERTRE-HE - 5
ﬁggﬁ;_—‘ ﬂi i EmRBITOHEEL D1TH B EARIBER] o

= ¥ In the interests of protecting customers' and employees'
health and safety, we have implemented a number of
infection control measures at all our branches in Hong Kong
under the epidemic. These include posting of respective QR
codes in branches for the public to record conveniently the
date and time for checking into and leaving branches, in line
with the launch of the "LeaveHomeSafe" COVID-19 exposure
notification mobile app by the HKSAR Government.
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FEEZR

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

MITHRERE

Business Development

B B R R ATIEE R ) I P B AR AT I LB
AMm ARBE  ErNERETROEREAT BRPERET - EEMNTARKFETHE
(ﬂfj@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂa ERETE 1) /El\ﬂztﬁlﬁ_‘:_ , 5%1tﬂ§iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ‘%é\flﬁ °

']jj—é lﬂ% {_j\ 4/5 % élg ,f)‘( iﬁ Together with the Bank’s parent company, Xiamen

International Bank, and its subsidiary, Luso

' s International Bank, Chiyu Bank signed a strategic

' : cooperation agreement with the Suzhou Municipal

5 ‘ ; Government to strengthen cross-boundary
collaboration in financial services.

EMBERRTEEEERRITRINDITEE
EHERRETREREEBRRNEEH
BEEER ARENRREERKNER
ERESHEX BOAEANEEERREM \
BB EBRNEE SRR - it T
The Xiamen International Bank Group held the ABMRITIERN
"Joint Conference on the Fifth Five-Year Plan [t teletitek didats

- a 28 = ‘
and the Development of Guangdong-Hong : ‘ ??,3 iz? ﬂ’: _‘
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area" at Chiyu Bank’s l ¢ JJS

1

Shenzhen Branch. The Joint Conference offered " a8
the Group's institutions an opportunity to express "
their views and to put forward proposals with
regard to the development plans of the Group and
the Greater Bay Area, with a view to providing
residents in the Greater Bay Area with quality
financial services across the border.

g

EEFBEBRITEBNANOIET  ERPENERGIR LS B o AMTEREEERRES - BEINRERZREUR
ERFE BUEASSNANER  BARTARBRNEBKIE - E—PRAZFREESR -

Fully supported by the Xiamen International Bank Group, switching of Chiyu Bank's mainland banking system to a new system was
completed. We will continue to leverage on the Group's competitive edge in technology to actively speed up business transformation and
innovative development of an upgraded information platform and digital application scenarios, aiming to drive the Bank's strategy of future
development and further enhance customer service experience.

- £RRITEMRAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.



ERBITRNIERAMELE EMSIT-
EMNEBEILXT (BEEABRHEZIT) REM
PITRRIR3A -8ARIABEMNIU  ER
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Chiyu Bank continues to expand its mainland
business. Our Xiamen Branch, Guanyinshan Sub-
branch (later renamed Siming Sub-branch) and
Fuzhou Branch in Xiamen offer a refreshed look
to serve customers after their relocation in March,
August and September respectively.

RIHEBR I KBEXFFETIEE
MEEBEEAREXRERRBAL  RBHE
BNEXBREE  AEBERREBBRET
REEA -

Under our Officer Trainee Programme for University
Graduates, we continue to recruit university
graduates as officer trainees and provide them with
opportunities of learning and career development,
laying a solid foundation for the Group's future
business development.

AEETHABERREREALEMASEIET
& AMTHBETEESEEENFRER
ZHRNREREY  APRAETITRRER
5 BRRBESSHE - BEE ERPHER o

Employees are encouraged to actively participate
in the diverse range of recreational activities
organised by the Group during the year. This helps
advocate work-life balance as well as strengthen
the morale and bonding among all levels of staff
while showcasing our team spirit and motto to
strive for success.

3R 2020 Annual Report -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

RERER

Awards & Recognition

ERBTERBABRRKSEZREKX
R EEBRANEERS B
L‘ r?ﬁﬁ}ﬁgﬂﬁfg;%/ K& Egﬂjﬁnﬂﬂ

N S >Z A BREAEAZIE | b KE[EEBRK
’% RKE [ ?1 EES ﬁﬁ‘ T BEBEHERTAL | HEAT
DETEEG (2 BHBRA EAEERE (hE) aR: CEDEREE - BERREBLEN

MERRAT () BRHBEL EELSESRFARAT  BAC
AT ERIT 6@/\—, ERRITHRAT Our proactive efforts to participate
fgﬁﬁf“l-’\ﬁm‘ 3 : - T‘fﬁﬁi ,%) BRA o in the national economic
EEE +° i 3{ ) : i s @11 ) _@ develop_ment have been well
< 3] §J - 28— recognised. We were named
h, ) the "Best Commercial Bank in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area" in the Greater Bay
Area Development Forum and Award
Ceremony, which is a programme
organised by the Hong Kong Ta Kung
Wen Wei Media Group for the first
time. The award also acknowledges
Chiyu Bank's contributions of providing
cross-border and cross-industry
financial services.

B SRR I
SR A FAERSE

ERRIT

TIEBITEEMEETTFELEEREZRE - £ (BEHR) B [F5ESRE
REE | PR [HETHERRCETETERE -

In recognition of our commitment to fulfil our corporate social responsibility, we were
presented the "Most Outstanding Bank for Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility
Award" under the 5th Banking & Finance Awards programme organised by SkyPost.

- £ RRITEMRAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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time.

ARATE B W F 487 (CTgoodjobs)
MR RELSCESEREI2
BEKRE URBERMEBTL
EHEETNBEEEISENS
We were presented the Grand Prize
of the "Outstanding Corporate Social
Responsibility Award" for the second
consecutive year by CTgoodjobs in
acknowledgement of our outstanding
initiatives of fulfilling corporate social
responsibility and caring for our
employees.

ERBITEE=F5LE (JobMarket REEES) BE [SHEF KK FEE
BE S ETOERE | BRE -
Chiyu Bank received from JobMarket the "Employer of Choice Award" for the third
consecutive year and the "Best Corporate Social Responsibility Award" for the first

AWARDS 2020  [jocooien

te Social -
'RW'WAM-GQM

Chiyu Barfking Corporation Ltd.

ATEFBRBEEMAT TESRD  BEMERLETE
HE[EESFREEIR
The Bank spares no effort in nurturing talents. We were

granted the "Youth Nurturing Employer Award" by the Labour
Department for two years in a row.

3R 2020 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL CHARTS

EFERREZRE

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS

BEEET
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WIS Financial Highlights
4k
2020 2019 Change
= ST ——
S For the year ﬁﬁ:ﬁgg ﬁf&t&g +- %
EECRE R R85 A Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,786,349 2,776,623 +0.35
ko Operating proft 1,027,773 1,486,368 -30.85
FRAS Fira Al Profit before taxation 1,020,196 1.493.937 3171
PR Profit for the year 843,260 1,262,568 -33.21
— T ——
PR At year-end ﬁﬁ?ﬁgg fﬁg}gg +- %
A Total equity 17,894,300 14,122,989 +26.70
L T R SR AR Issued and fully paid up share capital 6,577,871 3,245,980 +102.65
B Total assets 163,514,373 149,854,781 +9.12
BELE Financial ratios % % +- %
SR R A Return on average total assets ' 0.54 0.95 -0.41
SR SRR RS (R 2 Return on average shareholders’ equity 2 5.26 10.61 5.35
AT AR Cost to income ratio 40.20 34.03 +6.17
AR Loan to deposit ratio ® 63.46 65.41 1.95
BN LR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio *
FFE First quarter 224.76 218.71 +6.05
B Second quarter 301.99 191.46 +110.53
E=FEF Third quarter 214.89 205.53 +9.36
RIERE Fourth quarter 250.22 210.17 +40.05
TEEE S P ERIIFRELSE  Quarter-end value of net stable funding
145 ratio °
FFE First quarter 143.92 123.50 +20.42
BoFE Second quarter 148.39 127.14 +21.25
BT Third quarter 149.48 131.08 +18.40
RINFE Fourth quarter 148.60 142.44 +6.16
- N Total capital ratio °® 19.23 17.71 +152
TR

1. I E E IR

Return on average total assets

2. PRSI

Profit for the year

H & s E

Daily average balance of total assets

AT R IEAS A

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Return on average shareholders’ equity

AFRITHE FRIEAS R A (78 2 - 1) S A R EREREY P39 (E

Average of the beginning and ending balance of capital and reserves
attributable to equity holders of the Bank
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Financial Highlights (continued)

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross advances
to customers.

4. The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis
which comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries
of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

5. The net stable funding ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises
the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries of the Bank
specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

6. Total capital ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
positions of local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries of the Bank
specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.
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PR S E T - B EASEEY IR P
% B REFRIVEEIIRITIRG R -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2020, the outbreak of Covid-19 had brought shock and far-reaching impact
to all industries around the globe. The external economic environment became
more complex and uncertain as well. The global economy still suffered due to
the uncertainty of the Brexit withdrawal agreement and the ongoing trade
tension between China and the United States, which caused the overall
business environment to be more unstable.

In view of uncertainties and challenges in the operating environment, the Group
aims to strengthen its risk management and set forward-looking management
strategy. Also, the Group plans various measures such as structural
optimisation to encourage quality of growth and efficiency, these efforts have
enabled the Group to tackle the challenges.

In 2020, the Group's businesses maintained a promising development, seized
the development opportunities of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, and actively structured a multi-license business. During the year, the
Group’s recently established subsidiaries, #£&FHZAFT (FY) BFE/AE] and
E RSSO BPR/AH], successfully obtained business licence and
finished business registration procedure respectively. Therefore, those two
subsidiaries will be operational shortly.

With branches in Hong Kong, together with 3 branches and 2 sub-branches in
Fujian and Shenzhen in the Mainland China, the Group remains committed to
enhancing facilities of our branches in order to improve our corporate image as
well as to provide better services to our customers. This is also to represent our
ongoing pursuit of sincere, flexible, customized and professional cross-border
banking and financial services for our customers.
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2020 4 > AEREH RIS RIES A R
843,260,000 7T > 85 EHER/) 33.21% » 2
2 E RSB D R R B AR (R 3 (76 1
TIFTEL - PR SR 2R O R e I
[R5 By 5.26% fz 0.54% -

FERFFEICA s # 1,712,318,000 7T #i
2019 4/ 15.17% » TR EE
FERIRE ETF 17.05% - T #F s R Hi 5
TR 43 [HEFT-E 1.13% < SR E M4
Y AR =4 T 24.95% % 5k 803,423,000
TC ° 48787 H By 1,120,223,000 I 0 [HEE
111 18.55% » A S A EEZR A L4 H
A EFF 6.17 {5 5755 E 40.20% -

RN SRR E B (A S (R 638,353,000
70 ELEEEREPEESS 293,008,000 7€ - Ff
TE 7 JA SR E AR FR g 2019 R T
0.03 {[# F4rEE%E 0.36% -

B 2020 MFIE o AEESE AL E R
163,514,373,000 7T » # 2019 4 & 1 il
9.12% - EEE e 77,780,646,000 71
BB FFF 2.25% o 2 R 1E R ks e
122,573,031,000 J¢ - #% % F K IR _EF
5.40% °

AIREE

[ S 2021 4 » KUBERBRNEFE S S > THH
P O A AR (2 5 BTy ST R B

BIE ~ FTTHSARE T B R PR
TEIATR G IR R AT 2 B —E R4 -
RN > WS v A HE A TE TR B > 3RO
TEBNIVE LB AR - T R SO E AR
SRR LRSS S D b e -
2021 FEEEAEHBANIPRER - (B 2FER
DRI R TR 2 ] o SRR & PR AR
HY S g BRI - S R R - (R A
SE DR Bl a L SRR B E T
T kiR S RFP S -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2020, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$843,260,000, decreased by 33.21% from last year. This was mainly due to
decrease in net interest income and increase in net charge of impairment
allowances. The return on average shareholders’ equity and the return on
average total assets were 5.26% and 0.54% respectively.

Net interest income for the year was HK$1,712,318,000, decreased by 15.17%.
It was mainly due to increase in average interest bearing assets by 17.05%, with
net interest margin decreased by 43 basis points to 1.13% compared with 2019.
Net fee and commission income increased by 24.95% to HK$803,423,000.
Operating expenses increased by 18.55% to HK$1,120,223,000, while the cost
to income ratio increased by 6.17 percentage points to 40.20%.

In 2020, net charge of impairment allowances was HK$638,353,000, increased
by HK$293,008,000 as compared with last year. The classified or impaired loan
ratio decreased by 0.03 percentage points to 0.36% compared with the end of
2019.

As of 31 December 2020, the total consolidated assets of the Group increased by
9.12% to HK$163,514,373,000 compared with the end of 2019. Advances to
customers increased by 2.25% to HK$77,780,646,000. Customer deposits also
increased by 5.40% to HK$122,573,031,000.

Prospect

Looking forward to 2021, the economic environment remains complex and
uncertain. It is expected that the Hong Kong dollar and US dollar’s market interest
rates to stay at an ultra-low level, which will restrict the improvement of the rate
differentials. However, as the vaccine for Covid-19 gradually enters the
application stage, global economic activities are expected to recover as well.
Since China’s economy recover ahead of the globe and the continuous
development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, there are
still development opportunities for the Group dispite the challenges presented in
2021. The Group will pursue a more stable and steady development strategy, and
strengthen its risk management at the same time, the Group will continue to fulfil
its commitment to corporate social responsibilities and a dedicated customer
service.
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(2) SRRt
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Bz s (BB EERAHEE) 8
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Chiyu Bank was founded in Hong Kong in 1947. With over 70 years of
development, the Bank strives to provide quality and convenient banking
services to Hong Kong, Mainland and overseas Chinese customers, with a view
to actively promoting financial inclusion. While driving forward our business
growth, we inherit and continuously advocate “Kah Kee Spirit” by helping to
facilitate the financial development, and fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility through organising and participating in a variety of charitable
activities. Our outstanding performance has earned us wide recognition.

1. Full support to the Hong Kong’s financial stability
(1) Launching financial support initiatives amid the epidemic

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 has caused impact of varying
degrees on various sectors in Hong Kong. As one of the cornerstone members
in the local financial industry, we respond actively to the calls of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) Government and the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“‘HKMA”) by promptly launching a series of financial support
measures in February. These included providing principal moratoriums of 6
months for residential mortgages to help affected personal customers;
launching a SME Express Loan Scheme, coupled with the Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme for eligible SMEs; as well as offering
financing support to enterprises related to medical and anti-epidemic supplies
and various transitional arrangements. With all these initiatives, we aimed to
help existing customers improve their short-term cashflow and overcome the
difficult times, and make the most of our service capability to support the
economic and financial stability of Hong Kong.

As a token of our appreciation for the selfless commitment of the healthcare
and social welfare personnel, we launched a dedicated account opening award
programme for those on the front lines of this crisis. We also provided express
banking services for non-profit making organisations, charitable institutions,
hospitals, healthcare groups as well as healthcare equipment companies, etc.
Meanwhile, the Bank offered fee waivers for customers who needed to delay
financial payments due to the epidemic situation or special circumstances, in
an effort to fight the virus together with our communities.

We were also one of the designated participating banks of the HKSAR
Government’s Cash Payout Scheme. Customers who were Hong Kong
permanent residents qualified for the Scheme could conveniently register
through our branches, Internet or Mobile Banking to receive the HK$10,000.

(2) Driving cross-border financial business development

The year 2020 marked the 40th anniversary of the establishment of the
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone. Following the national introduction of the
“Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area (“GBA”)”, the GBA has since played a significant strategic role in the
development of the country, with Hong Kong and Shenzhen being a dual engine
for growth. This adds even greater impetus and vibrancy to the GBA. Chiyu
Bank’s Shenzhen Branch fully supports the country’s strategy of expanding the
opening-up of its financial industry. We leverage on our branches in Hong Kong
and Shenzhen to provide PRC-guaranteed Foreign Loans, Foreign-guaranteed
PRC Loans, Hong Kong-listed Securities pledged as Collaterals for Loans,
Cross-border Loans, etc. With this range of competitive financial products, we
aim to better serve the needs of corporate customers and residents in the GBA
for flexible and efficient cross-border financial services, and contribute to the
economic integration and mutual access between different regions and financial
markets in the GBA.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

1. Full support to the Hong Kong’s financial stability
(continued)

(3) Providing customer-centric and professional services

Deeply rooted in Hong Kong for over 70 years, we assume our responsibilities
to the community by responding actively to the HKMA's call to promote financial
inclusion. We also continuously enhance our customer service experience by
offering customer-centric, professional, flexible and efficient banking services
to the general public as well as corporate customers. On the retail business
front, diversified deposits products and investment plans have been launched
under different wealth management brands to meet the needs of diverse
customer segments. We aim to encourage the public to manage their finances
wisely and help them achieve their financial goals. In addition, the Bank
continues to meet the public needs for basic banking services with a number of
initiatives. These include abolition of minimum monthly balance fee for mid-
segment and grassroot customers who maintain personal accounts with us;
being one of the placing banks of the Silver Bond issued by the HKSAR
Government to provide local residents aged 65 or above with bond subscription
service. Moreover, we joined hands with the Anti-Deception Coordination
Centre under the Commercial Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force to
actively promote the anti-deception information among the public, the elderly
customers in particular. Related training was organised jointly with the
Coordination Centre for our frontline staff, to strengthen their awareness of
alerting customers to deception and their ability to recognise the defrauding
tricks. As regards our corporate banking business, we provide local corporate
customers with all-round financial services while working closely with our
Mainland branches as well as Chiyu International Capital Limited and Chiyu
Asset Management Limited, our subsidiaries, to render competitive cross-
border services. These include cross-border financing solutions and
consultation services for enterprises, as well as investment funds and dedicated
investment account services for professional investors. Our branches on the
Mainland continue to serve the local micro-enterprises by providing them with
flexible financing options for business expansion. Our Mainland branches also
strive to deepen cooperation with local governments to actively meet the needs
of enterprises, offering strong support to the development of quality enterprises
as well as the real economy.

The Bank embraces fintech in its business development. During the year, we
set up a new wholly-owned fintech subsidiary in Shenzhen, the engine for
growth in the GBA, to develop innovative functions such as an upgraded
information platform, digital application scenarios, etc in an effort to build up a
smart operating system that will lead the Group’s business development.

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank
(1) Providing anti-epidemic protection for customers

In the interests of protecting customers’ and employees’ health and safety, we
have proactively put in place a number of infection control measures at all our
local branches under the epidemic. These include requesting customers who
wish to enter our branches to undergo body temperature checks and wear face
masks, providing antiseptic handrub, as well as implementing our queuing
control measures, etc. We have also stepped up our efforts to promote and
encourage customers’ use of electronic channels to conduct banking
transactions in order to further reduce the risk of cross-infection. In line with the
HKSAR Government's “LeaveHomeSafe” COVID-19 exposure notification
mobile app, we have posted respective QR codes at all of our local branches
for the public to scan via the digital tool and record conveniently the date and
time for checking into and leaving branches.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank (continued)
(2) Protecting our employees’ health

As a people-oriented bank, we endeavour to safeguard our employees’ well-
being. To make sure that our employees could be protected from infection while
they are at work, we worked hard to source face masks and other anti-epidemic
items in overseas countries to counter the shortage of such items at the
outbreak of COVID-19. We provided different protective items for employees as
well as their family members, aiming to offer them strong protection against
infection. In the meantime, we promptly implemented a series of stringent
infection control measures in all our branch and office premises in line with the
local governmental and regulatory requirements. We also formulated
contingency arrangements and refined our action plans, in order to take
proactive initiatives according to the epidemic development. These initiatives
include arranging some of our employees to work from alternate sites,
introducing flexible working hours, continuously stepping up sterilisation work
and infection control promotion at all office and branch premises, enhancing
employees’ awareness, providing a number of employee benefits such as cash
subsidy, traffic subsidy, lunchboxes and fruits, etc during the epidemic. With the
concerted efforts of employees, all the infection control measures have been
carried out in an orderly and effective manner, and no infection case was
recorded in the Bank during the year.

(3) Offering anti-epidemic support for the communities we serve

In face of worsening global epidemic situation, Chiyu Bank undertakes its role
as a social enterprise to share the fruits of its development with society and help
combat the virus. In this regard, we have given tremendous support to infection
control and joined hands with the Group’s other institutions, Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation and Tan Kah Kee Fund Association to donate medical
supplies to major hospitals in Wuhan, as well as a number of local and overseas
organisations in early 2020. We hope that by taking the lead to make donations,
we could promote the concerted efforts of different segments in society to help
one another counter the epidemic.

Hong Kong people’s well being is still our top priority. To support the anti-
epidemic work in Hong Kong, the Bank, together with Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation and Tan Kah Kee Fund Association, donated medical
supplies to the Hong Kong Hospital Authority in March 2020 to provide
protective gowns for the devoted frontline healthcare personnel and face masks
for children patients. We also donated face masks to the Hong Kong Red Cross
and Caritas Hong Kong, in the hope that we could give as much support, care
and protection as possible to the local healthcare institutions and the local
disadvantaged groups such as students with special needs and elderly people
within the shortest timeframe. To help Jimei University, which was also set up
by Mr. Tan Kah Kee, resolve the shortage of anti-epidemic items, we donated
face masks to the teaching staff and students of the university, helping them
create a safety net. In addition, our Xiamen Branch showed support with actions
by organising blood donation activities to help patients. This is a vivid
demonstration of the Bank’s spirit of helping those in need and serving local
communities, bringing the public more positive energy.

While the pandemic has been spreading worldwide, the Bank proactively
promotes “Kah Kee Spirit” by giving support to places where the member
organisations of Tan Kah Kee Fund Association are located, including a
donation of anti-epidemic supplies to The Kuala Lumpur and Selangor Chinese
Assembly Hall in Malaysia. This contributes to safeguarding the local healthcare
institutions, the overseas Chinese communities and the disadvantaged
impacted by COVID-19.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank (continued)
(4) Nurturing financial talents

We consider our employees to be the most precious assets. The Bank puts
great emphasis on nurturing talents and helping employees upgrade their
qualifications by providing them with internationalised training of diversified
businesses jointly with the Xiamen International Bank Financial Training Centre
in Hong Kong. We also participate actively in the HKMA'’s Banking Talent
Programme and Fintech Career Accelerator Scheme. Under the programmes,
we offer practical working opportunities as well as professional training of
banking and fintech topics for local university graduates, in support of growing
the financial talent pool in Hong Kong, while laying a solid foundation for future
business development of the Xiamen International Bank Group. In addition, we
continuously strengthen our compliance culture and enhance our staff’s related
knowledge by providing them with compliance and anti-money laundering
seminars and online training during the year. Our employees are also
encouraged and subsidised to enrol in different training courses to enhance
their knowledge of different banking businesses and obtain related
certifications, such as anti-money laundering, internet security, treasury
management, credit risk, etc in line with the HKMA’s Enhanced Competency
Framework (“ECF”) for Banking Practitioners. Moreover, selected staff enrolled
in the ECF programme organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers to be
qualified as Certified Retail Wealth Professionals (CRWP), which is a
qualification well recognised by the HKMA. Our efforts in talent training enable
us to further promote sound risk management and drive steady business
development.

(5) Promoting Core Values

Our Corporate Culture Development Task Force continues to advocate the
Bank’s core values of “Integrity, People-oriented, Innovative Development and
Caring for the Society” by implementing various initiatives to create an
atmosphere for employees to excel. We also publish internal e-magazines
respectively named “Chiyu’'s Wisdom” and “Striving for Success”, to provide
employees with updates of the Bank’s innovation and development as well as
infection control measures, and commend those who demonstrate their can-do
spirit and make significant achievements during the epidemic. In addition, a
series of corporate culture programmes theming “Integrity, Diligence, Vibrancy
and Caring” was launched to promote among our people integrity, compliance
and discipline, as well as commitment in face of challenges.

(6) Caring for our People

With our people-oriented principle, we constantly optimise benefits for our
employees. In 2020, we increased the amount of meal allowance, and
continued to offer a range of employee care initiatives, such as presents and
red packets at Chinese New Year as well as gifts for festivals and birthday, etc.
to create a friendly working environment. The Bank reviews its renumeration
packages periodically and formulates a competitive scheme to retain and attract
talent. An incentive programme has also been introduced to reward outstanding
staff. Another initiative to recognise our employees for their remarkable
performance is our Award Presentation Ceremony. It helps boost morale and
increase our staff’s loyalty and sense of belonging.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank (continued)
(7) Supporting Education

We remain committed to supporting the development of local education. During
the year, the Bank sponsored the "10th Hong Kong Student Knowledge Contest
on China's National Situation”. It was the second consecutive year that the Bank
helped promote this meaningful national education activity, aiming to strengthen
local students’ skills of independent analysis and critical thinking through
deepening of their understanding of the conditions and history of our
motherland. The Bank has also actively supported the volunteer activities
organised by The Association of Banks by participating in the Project YOL
(Youth Opinion Leader). Members of our volunteer team are appointed to share
and communicate through videos, the Bank’s basic operation as well as the
concept of savings and managing personal finances with primary and
secondary students from grassroot families.

(8) Advocating environmental awareness

To reduce paper consumption and raise the public awareness of environmental
protection, the Bank continuously promotes its internet and mobile banking as
well as e-cheque services among customers. We see a wider use of these
electronic platforms that offer customers secured, convenient and environment-
friendly services to manage their finances. As at the end of 2020, the Bank
recorded an increase of 13% in the respective numbers of customers using
Chiyu Internet Banking and Mobile Banking as compared with the previous
year.

In addition, we have implemented a number of proactive measures to protect
our environment. These include providing paperless “green” workplaces, opting
to use electric appliances and products with “Grade 1” energy label, reducing
waste, avoiding disposable items, and installing electronic sensor water taps in
toilets. On top of promoting concepts of recycling, saving of energy and water
resources among staff, we offer shark-fin free menus at banquets, and continue
to support and participate in the “Charter on External Lighting” organised by the
Environment Bureau of Hong Kong by switching off external lighting
installations at night to minimise light nuisance.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

3. Awards and Recognition

During the year, we received the following accolades acknowledging the
achievements we have made in fulfilling our corporate responsibility and driving
our business development:

+ the recognition as a Caring Company by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for seven consecutive years;

+ the “Most Outstanding Bank for Sustainability and Corporate Social
Responsibility Award” under the 5th Banking & Finance Awards programme
organised by SkyPost,

- the Grand Prize of the “Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility Award”
by CTgoodjobs for the second consecutive year;

- the “Best Corporate Social Responsibility Award” by JobMarket for the first
time;

+ the "Youth Nurturing Employer Award” by the Labour Department for two
years in a row and the “Employer of Choice Award” by JobMarket for the
third consecutive year in acknowledgement of our efforts to implement
comprehensive talent recruitment and training strategies;

+ Our proactive efforts to participate in the national economic development
and our contributions to drive cross-border and cross-sector integration
have also been well recognised. We were named the “Best Commercial
Bank in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area” in the
Greater Bay Area Development Forum and Ceremony, which was a
programme organised by the Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group
for the first time;

+ The Bank’s Fuzhou Branch was recognised as the “2019 Outstanding
Institution for Data Quality of Commercial Credit Reporting System” by the
Credit Reference Center of The People's Bank of China in its 2019 Data
Quality Assessment of the Credit Reporting System of Local Financial
Institutions.
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are
pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the
Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020 (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in Note 37 to
the Financial Statements.

Business Review

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to the
“Management’s  Discussion and Analysis” and “Unaudited
Supplementary Financial Information — Risk Management” section of
this annual report. The above section forms part of this report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 37.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend (the “2020 Final
Dividend”) of HK$0.114 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Bank
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM”).

Shares Issued

In order to further enhance the capital strength for future development,
the Bank issued 203,994,800, 10,504,200 and 135,489,500 ordinary
shares on 29 September, 31 October and 28 December 2020
respectively at HK$9.52 each to shareholders of the Bank.

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements.

Donations

The Bank spares no effort in organising and sponsoring different
community activities with a view to fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility. Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$13,120.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”)
during the year and up to date of this report are:

Chairman Lyu Yaoming
Vice Chairman Zheng Wei

Yu Kwok Chun *
Directors Tsoi Lai Ha #

Chen Cheng # (resigned on 9 February 2021)
Tan Wan Chye #

Woo Chia Wei *

Cheung Wai Hing *

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *

Chiu Ming Wah *

Chan Yiu Fai

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank, the
appointment of directors will be approved by ordinary resolution or by
the decision of the Board of Directors. Approval from the HKMA will also
be obtained in accordance with the Banking Ordinance.

The term of office for each Director of the Bank is approximately three
years. All Directors are subject to retirement and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Bank, and the re-election of retiring directors should be subject to
the recommendation and review from the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board before approval is sought from
shareholders at the AGM.

In accordance with Articles 24(2) and 25 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Lyu Yaoming, Mr. Zheng Wei, Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha and Mr.
Tan Wan Chye shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save for Mr. Zheng Wei and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai being also director of
certain subsidiaries of the Bank, other directors of the subsidiaries of
the Bank during the year and up to date of this report are:

Fung Chi Lap

Wong Siu Man

Tang Chu, Leonard

Kwong Kei Man

Don Wayne Ebanks

Wong Wai Shan

Lee Yuen Hung Kevin

Ye Xin

Liu Xiaoji

Kris Zhao (appointed on 26 May 2020)

Xiao Jingyuan (appointed on 26 May 2020)

Chau Po Yue (appointed on 18 September 2020)

Chung Yuen Hing Charles (appointed on 18 September 2020)

Zhao Lei (appointed on 17 April 2020 and resigned on 26 May 2020)

Gu Kaifan (appointed on 17 April 2020 and resigned on 26 May 2020)

Shen Chengjie (resigned on 31 July 2020)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall
be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liability incurred by
him/her as Director. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit
of Directors against liability which may lawfully be incurred by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2020 have been audited by KPMG
who will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2020
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lyu Yaoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 April 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors

Board of Directors

Mr. LYU Yaoming
Chairman and Executive Director

PhD in Economics, Senior Economist, was appointed as the Chairman and is a
member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank.
Currently, Mr. Lyu serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Board of Luso International Banking Limited,
Director of Xiamen International Investment Limited, Deputy Director of Institute
of Finance, Xiamen University. Mr. Lyu had successively served as Branch
Manager of Fuzhou Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Deputy Branch Head of Fujian Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. Since December 1997, Mr. Lyu had successively held the posts of
Executive Director, Vice Executive President and President of Xiamen
International Bank. Mr. Lyu serves as the Vice Chairman and President of
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. since December 2012, and resigned from
the post of President in May 2018.

Mr. ZHENG Wei
Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from the Xiamen University and is a
senior economist, was appointed the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Bank in March 2017 and was appointed the Chief Executive of the Bank in
June 2017 and is a member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Zheng is an Executive
Director and Vice President of Xiamen International Bank. Mr. Zheng was the
Deputy General Manager of Xiamen International Bank and the General
Manager of the Shanghai Branch of Xiamen International Bank from July 2007
to February 2017. Mr. Zheng had also previously served Xiamen International
Bank as the Deputy Manager of the Credit Department, the Deputy Manager and
Manager of the Credit Management Department, the General Manager of the
Zhuhai Branch and the Assistant General Manager of Xiamen International Bank.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. YU Kwok Chun
Vice Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the MacQuarie University,
Honorary University Fellow of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
of the City University of Hong Kong, he was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director of the Bank in April 2002 and appointed as Vice Chairman in
December 2018. He is also the Chairman of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank.
Mr. Yu is Chairman of the Yue Hwa Group and Chairman of Yue Hwa Chinese
Products Emporium Limited. Mr. Yu is active in various social services in Hong
Kong as well as in the PRC. Mr. Yu is Executive Member of the National
Committee of The 13th Chinese National People’s Political Consultative
Conference and Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese. He is Member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Founding Chairman and First President of the Federation of Hong
Kong Guangdong Community Organizations Limited, Permanent Honorary
Chairman and Vice Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong Association Limited,
Principal Chairman of The Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese
Associations, Committee Member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Permanent Honorary Advisor of the Hong Kong Meizhou Federation,
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Overseas Chinese General Association,
Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Hakka Associations, Permanent Honorary
President and Founding Chairman of the Unified Association of Kowloon West
Limited, and Honorary President of the Hong Kong and Kowloon General
Merchandise Merchants’ Association Limited. Mr. Yu is the Vice President of
Overseas Exchange Association of Guangdong Province, Honorary President of
the Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Association of
Guangdong Province, Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of the Jinan
University, Guangzhou, Vice President of the Jinan University Education and
Foundation Fund Limited, Guangzhou, Honorary President of the Board of
Directors of Jiaying University, Meizhou, Guangdong Province, Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Beijing Chinese Language and Culture College, and
Director of the First Board of Advisory Directors of Sun Yat Sen University,
Guangzhou. Mr. Yu was awarded the honour of Justice of the Peace, Silver
Bauhinia Star, Gold Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region successively in 1998, 1999,
2006 and 2019.

Ms. TSOI Lai Ha
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Management Accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant and
Certified Financial Planner, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Bank in March 2017 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tsoi is the Chief Financial Officer
of Xiamen International Bank. From June 1995 to May 2013, Ms. Tsoi served
Xiamen International Bank as Group Financial Controller. Prior to joining Xiamen
International Bank, she was Manager at the Financial Planning Department of
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Deputy Manager of the Accounting Department of
Asian Oceanic Group and Group Financial Controller of Mbf Asia Capital
Corporation Holding Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. TAN Wan Chye
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree from Manchester College of Science
and Technology, University of Manchester, England and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Industrial Administration, he was appointed a Non-executive Director
of the Bank in June 1982. He is also a member of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee and the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the
largest individual shareholder of the Bank and is the son of Mr. Tan Kong Piat,
the former Chairman of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the Chairman of Tan Kong Piat (Pte)
Ltd, which is a holding company, Tan Kong Piat & Co Pte Ltd, which is an
investment trading company, Asia Industrial Development (Pte) Ltd and Asia
Property Development (Pte) Ltd, which are both property development
companies. He had previously served as a Director of the following companies
importing Chinese canned food and herb, Chung Nam Company (Pte) Ltd, Bin
Hong Co Pte Ltd, Tiong Wan Pte Ltd and Nam Leong Co Sdn Bhd. He took part
in the design & construction of Central Power Stations in England and Singapore.
He is a Chartered Engineer, a Member of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers,
England, and a Member of Institute of Engineers, Singapore. Mr. Tan is active in
the charitable activities in Singapore. He is a board member of Buddhist Lodge
Education Foundation, a board member of Mee Toh School, a Trustee of Kwan
Im Thong Hood Cho Temple and Mee Toh Foundation, they distribute donations
that amount to millions of Singaporean Dollars to schools, hospitals and
charitable organisations.

Prof. WOO Chia-Wei
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Master’s Degree and a PhD in Physics from Washington University in
St. Louis in the United States, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank in April 2002. He is also a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank. Prof. Woo is also the Senior Advisor to
Shui On Holdings Limited and the President Emeritus of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, an Independent Non-executive Director of
each of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited and First Shanghai Investments
Limited. Prof. Woo was previously the President, Provost, Department Head, and
a Professor of several prominent universities in the United States of America.
Prof. Woo was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of Hong
Kong, the Commander of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire by the
United Kingdom, as well as Chevalier de la Legion d’Honneur by the President
of France.

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Hing
Independent Non-executive Director

LLB (Hon.), HKU, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Bank in November 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr.
Cheung is a senior partner of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo, Solicitors and the Head of its
Litigation Department. Mr. Cheung is currently the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Applied Research Council of the HKSAR Government. He also
serves as the Honarary Legal Advisor of Po Leung Kuk, The Hong Kong
Tuberculosis, Chest and Heart Diseases Association and Wai Yin Association.
He is a member of Po Leung Kuk Youth Oasis Preparatory Consultative
Committee and panel member of the Disciplinary Committee of Association for
China-Appointed Attesting Officers Limited. Mr. Cheung is a trustee of The D. H.
Chen Foundation and was a trustee of the Association for Celebration of
Reunification of Hong Kong with China Charitable Trust until the winding up of its
operation. Mr. Cheung is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and qualified to
practise in England and Wales, Australia (Victoria) and Singapore. He is also a
China-Appointed Attesting Officer and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages of the
Government of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. LEE Hoi Yin, Stephen
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Accountancy from City of London
Polytechnic, a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and an Associate Member of The Institute of Internal Auditors, he was
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank in November
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Risk
Management Committee of the Bank. Mr. Lee has over 30 years’ experience
in accounting, auditing and financial management, at KPMG in London and Hong
Kong. He was an audit partner of KPMG Hong Kong before becoming the
Partner-in-Charge of the Risk & Compliance Advisory practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, the PRC and the Asia Pacific region. He retired from
KPMG in 2011,and is currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and as Immediate Past President of The
Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong Limited. He is a Non-executive Director
of the Board of the Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong and an
Independent Director of Prime Property Fund Asia GP Pte Limited.

Mr. CHIU Ming Wah
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from Lincoln
University, U.S.Aand was a Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) during 2000 to 2014.
Mr. Chiu was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in
February 2019. He is also the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee of
the Bank. He is at present a Director of Shanghai Lingang Overseas
Development Co. Limited. During 2001 to 2014, he was the Head of Audit
(General Manager) of Bank of China (HK) Limited as well as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of Chiyu Bank. He was
member of the Shenyang Chinese National People’s Political Consultative
Conference during 2013 to 2017 and successively been a member of the
National People’s Congress Election Committee of Hong Kong.

Mr. CHAN Yiu Fai
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Corporate Governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong, he was appointed an Executive Director of
the Bank in March 2003 and as the Deputy Chief Executive (formerly known as
Deputy General Manager) of the Bank in December 2002. Presently he is mainly
responsible for the information technology, business support and internal control
functions of the Bank. Between 1981 and 2001, Mr. Chan had served in the Hua
Chiao Commercial Bank in various positions as the Branch Manager, the Head
of Business Development Department, China Business Department, Strategic
Planning Department and Project Research Department. He was the Head of the
Mainland Branch Business Department of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
after the merger of BOCHK Group in October 2001.
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has followed the guidelines as set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is committed to
maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and considers such
commitment essential in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Senior
Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises ten Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, three are Executive Directors, remaining seven
are Non-executive Directors. Of the seven Non-executive Directors, five are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 100%. The
Board authorises the Senior Management to implement the strategies as
approved by the Board. The Senior Management is responsible for the day-to-
day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. Senior Management
implements important policies and develops strategies as adopted by the
Board. In order to focus on strategic and material issues that have significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance, risk management, long-term
development and matters relating to the remuneration, appointment and
removal, four committees have been established under the Board to oversee
the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are given below:

18



A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

aE (%)
Bt AERHEER Y

BRIE RN EDAEZE B G i B E R G A S B
W8E B R N E AR BT LA TS

- DTSR AR S RS - A AT SR
RIS ~ EAEEERNE ~ A DB HEES - BHY
SRREE ~ VR SO RS R B N T R
HLEIAEE

- SRS E AR TR ARG AR E RS
FUEE(L > FRHERIS SR

- [EIFESRGETERGGRNEMNRE RE
HETEAFRRES

- HEgE R AR E R SR R AR

- EEEROAEDGHEEE ﬁﬂﬁ%?ﬁiﬁ%u’ﬂ%% =
DN EAEIRH T |

- WEAREEEELCEE# B FRETT
L EATERICE R S WEEY
ko

- EEFGE THMEEZR B GREFEEZE
R R A R T T AR BRI s - AE S B i MR
BT S R B GAHRBRE -

MHENREEEREG RS HILL - BIg R A e
ZEEREWT ¢

REIRSE (EF)
SRS E
B et
LIS

WE BRI T R - ﬁqjéﬁlﬁf'ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ#
BITEE - BIg R A FDEHEZE B GNENERT 4
KRGtk > LTy 94%

Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee
(“SC”)

The SC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of
the strategy management and corporate governance of the Group:

- study and formulate the Group's development strategy, business
objectives, risk management strategy, capital management strategy,
human resource management strategy, technology development
strategy, organisation and new business development strategy and
medium and long-term development plan;

+ review and evaluate the implementation process of strategies; make
proposal on strategic adjustments in accordance with the changes in
the business environment;

+ exercise decision making and monitoring power on behalf of the Board
during the period between the Board meetings;

+ recommend on the setup plan proposed by senior management;

+ monitor corporate governance system, evaluate regularly and make
suggestions to improve the corporate governance of the Group;

+ check the implementation of the Group's annual business plan and
major investment plans, make recommendations on major investment
projects of the Bank, and report to the board of directors for
consideration and approval; and

+ perform the relevant duties of such committes under the authorisation
of the board of directors when other committees under the board of
directors are unable to perform certain duties due to conflicts of interest
or other reasons.

The members of SC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Yu Kwok Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Lyu Yaoming

Mr. Tan Wan Chye

Mr. Zheng Wei

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Yu Kwok Chun is
Independent Non-executive Director. Four SC meetings were held in the
year with an attendance rate of 94%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in
the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;
+ internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the
General Manager of Audit Department;

+ appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,
independence and performance;

+ periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

+ corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation
thereof.

The members of AC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Hing

Mr. Tan Wan Chye

Mr. Yu Kwok Chun

Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lee
Hoi Yin, Stephen, Mr. Cheung Wai Hing and Mr. Yu Kwok Chun are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Five AC meetings were held in the
year with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of the
risk management of the Group:

- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group;
+ monitoring of various types of risks faced by the Group;
-+ review and monitoring of the changes in the Group’s risk profile;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system, internal control procedures and regulatory requirements;

- review and approval of significant risk-related policies and risk limits of the
Group; and

- review of risk-related information submitted by the Group.

The members of RC during the year and up to date of the Report of the Directors
are:

Mr. Chiu Ming Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen
Mr. Zheng Wei

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Chiu Ming Wah and Mr.

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen are Independent Non-executive Directors. Four RC
meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of 92%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group
in the following areas:

+ human resources strategy, remuneration strategy and incentive
framework of the Group;

-+ group governance and bank culture promotion;

+ selection, nomination and appointment of Directors, Board Committee
members and Senior Management;

+ structure, size, composition and qualification (including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical
location, professional experience, skills, knowledge and track
records,etc) of the Board and Board Committees;

+ remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior
Management and Key Personnel;

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

+ training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior
Management.

The members of the NRC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Cheung Wai Hing (Chairman)

Ms. Tsoi Lai Ha

Mr. Woo Chia Wei

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr.
Cheung Wai Hing and Mr. Woo Chia Wei are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Four NRC meetings were held during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%.

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board):

+ review the amendment and formulation on the major human resources
and remuneration policies;

+ review on the NRC mandate;

+ review on the performance appraisal result and bonus payment for the
year 2019 and the proposal on the salary adjustment for the year 2020 of

the Senior Management and Key Personnel;

+ proposal on the Annual Review of the Four Type of Staff as delineated in
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” of HKMA,;

+ review on the change of Senior Management/Key Personnel of the Bank
and related remuneration matters;

+ review on the adjustment of organization chart;

+ review on the 2020 KPI framework of Senior Management and Key
Personnel of the Bank;

- review on 2019 Independent Review on Compliance of Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System; and

+ review on the bank culture report of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the board principles set out in the HKMA’s “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries
(including the branches and institutions within and outside Hong Kong).

1. Senior Management and Key Personnel

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA'’s “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

- “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board
who are responsible for oversight of the bank-wide strategy or material
business lines, including Executive Directors, Chief Executive, Deputy
Chief Executives, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

- “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
directly and materially linked to the risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the profit, including General Managers of
material business lines, General Manager of Financial Markets
Department, as well as General Managers of risk control functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing the
Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the risk
control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed remuneration strategy and planning is submitted to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the
Board for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the Board will seek opinions from other Board Committees (e.g. Risk
Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under
the circumstances.

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(1) Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism
to formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group,
units and individuals. For individual staff at different levels, annual
targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the
performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals
will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their
contribution towards performance of their units, fulfilment of risk
management duties, execution of the bank culture and compliance.
Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk
exposure involved during the course of work and their core value could
also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal
operation of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. FR SRS TG e (F)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration
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To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk
into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of the Group, the
key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the
performance management mechanism. Credit risk, market risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance
risk and reputation risk form the framework of the risk adjustment
method.

(3) Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and
“variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities
and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that balance has to be
struck between the fixed and variable portion, so as to encourage the
staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and sound
long-term financial stability. Generally speaking, the higher the grading
/ responsibility of the individual staff, the bigger the portion of variable
pay will be in his/her total remuneration.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will
determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the Group as
well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As
mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-
financial indicators.

The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Bank is determined
by the Board of the Bank on the basis of its financial performance and
the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets under the
long-term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also
made to the risk factors in the determination process. The size of the
Variable Remuneration Pool is reached by the Board of the Bank who
makes discretionary adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under
prevailing circumstances. When the Bank’s performance is relatively
weak (e.g. failed to meet the threshold performance level), no variable
remuneration will be paid out that year in principle, however, the Board
of the Bank reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of the
units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attached to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, which is independent from the business they oversee;
for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and
performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability
of performance-based remuneration. The better the performance of
the Department and the individual staff, the higher will be the variable
remuneration for the individual staff. For behaviour which is positive
and adhering to the Group’s corporate culture, the variable
remuneration should be tilted forward; for misconduct or behaviour
which is negative and not adhering to the Group’s corporate culture,
the variable remuneration should be forfeited or reduced
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. FR SRS TG e (F)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time
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horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon
of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to ascertain the
associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the
variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred in cash if such
amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a
progressive approach towards deferral. The higher the job grade of
the individual staff, the higher will be the proportion of deferral.
Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
long-term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
linked to the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the
Group in the next 3 years and the bahavior of the individual staff to the
effect that the variable remuneration could only be vested to such
extent as set for the relevant year in that 3-year period subject to the
condition that the Group’s performance has met the threshold
requirement in the corresponding year. However, if a staff is found to
have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in
performance measurement or variable pay determination are later
proven to have been manifestly worse than originally understood in a
particular year, or individual behaviour/management style poses
negative impacts to the business unit and even the Group, including
but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, significant
incident and economic loss incurred by improper management, etc.,
part of or full of the unvested portion of the deferred variable
remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.

Compared with the previous years, there was no material change in
the nature and type of above mentioned measures during the year, so
it had no significant influence on the remuneration system of the Bank.

4. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

(1) The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review

with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
market conditions, organisational structure and risk management
requirements, etc.

The review on the “Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Variable
Remuneration Management Policy” of the Bank have been
conducted during the year, so as to demonstrate the important
message of human resources strategy by giving the balance of
“effective incentive” and “prudent remuneration management”, which
is in line with HKMA guidance.

Based on the latest organization structure and the business strategy
of the Bank, the identification criteria & position lists of the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” and etc., as delineated in the
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”, were also reviewed.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

5. Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA to disclose information

in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.

There are 6 (2019: 6) Senior Management members and 11 (2019: 12) Key
Personnel in 2020. The aggregate amount of remuneration of the Senior
Management and Key Personnel during the year, split into fixed and variable

remuneration, is set out below:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

Fixed remuneration
Total fixed remuneration
Of which: cash-based

Variable remuneration
Total variable remuneration
Of which: cash-based

Of which: deferred
Of which: shares or other share-linked
instruments

Of which: deferred

Total remuneration

(i) Deferred remuneration

Deferred remuneration
Vested
Unvested

At 1 January

Awarded

Paid out

Reduced through performance adjustments
At 31 December

26

2020 2019
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

34,110 36,760
34,110 36,760
12,888 43,442
11,042 32,546

1,846 10,896
46,998 80,202

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

2,953 1,501

17,188 18,295
20,141 19,796
18,295 9,198
1,846 10,896
(2,953) (1,501)
- (298)
17,188 18,295
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

5. Disclosure on Remuneration (continued)

it

MR R ESEEAE R EEA B
NEHEEEYD > Ryl i iz EH A 2 255
B > EORLIARIA & 2B aaaers -

BRASEEFIR - EAEE A BB EEABE
T

EEEE  EREGEE S EEE
BT RIS SUE YOE T - AT E
I TEEEE - BIAEE - ERERE R E
JERATSE -

FEAE EAZEBEEN B AR
1% WElRREAEATE  SEARE
HEREEA R EAPE SR
HEBZENNE  BREER R ARE
RHTHSPIHEAKEE ~ R alEacE > L
B b e B LR A B A B SS
—HfEA-

Note:

As the total number of Senior Management and Key Personnel involved is
relatively small, to avoid individual figures being deduced from the
disclosure, aggregate figures are disclosed in this section.

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel are
defined as follows:

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who
are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business
lines, including Executive Directors, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief
Executives, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve
the assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk
exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially
linked to the risk management, or those who have direct influence to the
profit, including General Managers of material business lines, General
Manager of Financial Markets Department, as well as the General Managers
of risk control functions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 37 to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment allowances of advances to customers
Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s advances to customers as at 31 December 2020 Our audit procedures to assess the impairment allowances on

amounted to HK$77,780,646,000 , net of total expected credit advances to customers measured at amortised cost included

losses (“ECL”) of HK$763,790,000. 33% of the Group’s the following:

advances to customers related to exposures in Mainland — understanding and assessing the design, implementation

China. and operating effectiveness of key internal controls on
financial reporting over the approval, recording and
monitoring and restructuring of loans measured at
amortised cost, the credit grading process, the ECL model
enhancement , approval, monitoring, governance and
validation process, and the measurement of impairment

allowances;
Impairment allowances of advances to customers across the — evaluating the accuracy of the classification of advances
banking industry continues to be an area of concern and to customers. We obtained information on how
elevated focus due to the uncertain global economic outlook, management applied the classification requirements of
including the adverse impact from China — United States the financial instruments standard and the classification
tensions and the COVID-19 pandemic. results. We assessed, on a sample basis, the contractual

cash flow characteristics of advances to customers and
relevant documents in relation to the business model;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued)

The COVID-19 pandemic has led to additional challenges in
assessing impairment provisions. The relief measures such
as moratoriums on repayment of loan principals have
increased the difficulty in identifying those loans which may
have significant increase in credit risk and impaired loans.
Past historical experience on repayment may therefore be
less representative of the borrowers’ financial conditions and
therefore more judgement is required.

ECL may be materially misstated if the classification and
measurement framework for financial instruments is not
properly adopted. Therefore, the determination of impairment
allowances of advances to customers is subject to the
accuracy of the classifications of the Group’s advances to
customers.

The Group has developed its own model for measuring
impairment allowances of financial assets including advances
to customers.

Loan exposures that are not already credit-impaired are
classified as stage 1 on origination and a 12-month ECL
provision is recognised. Loan exposures will transfer to stage
2 if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to origination. Loan exposures are classified as
stage 3 if they become credit-impaired. A lifetime ECL
provision is recognised for loans classified as stage 2 and
stage 3.

ECL may be materially misstated if the exposures with a
significant increase in credit risk are not properly identified,
leading to inaccurate recognition of ECL.

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

33

involving specialists in assessing the reliability of the ECL
model used by management in determining impairment
allowances, including assessing the appropriateness of
the key parameters and assumptions in the expected
credit loss model, the identification of loss stages,
probability of default, loss given default, exposure at
default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other management adjustments;

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used
for the key parameters in the expected credit loss model,
by comparing individual loan information, on a sample
basis, with the underlying agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy of the loan
information in the expected credit loss model. For key
parameters derived from external data, we selected
samples to inspect the accuracy of such data by
comparing them with publicly available sources;

for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence from
external sources and comparing it to the Group’s internal
records including historical loss experience and type of
collateral. As part of these procedures, we challenged
management’s revisions, if any, to estimates and input
parameters compared with the estimates and input
parameters and considered the consistency of judgement.
We compared the economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess whether they were
aligned with market and economic development;

for key parameters used in the expected credit loss model
which were derived from system-generated internal data,
assessing the accuracy of input data by comparing the
input data with original documents on a sample basis.
We involved our information technology specialists in
assessing the information systems controls critical to the
credit grading process, such as the compilation of the
overdue reports for advances to customers. We also
assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant automated application controls
within these systems, as well as the key internal controls
over these underlying systems, including controls over
access to these systems and controls over data and
change management;

for selected samples of advances to customers that are
credit-impaired, evaluating management’s assessment of
the value of any collateral held by comparison with
available market information. We also evaluated the
timing and means of realisation of collateral, evaluated the
forecast cash flows, challenged the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans and evaluated other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contract terms;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued)

The determination of impairment allowances using the
expected credit loss model is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other adjustment factors.
Management judgment is involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the impairment allowances
is heavily dependent on the external macro environment and
the Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
expected credit losses are derived from estimates including
the historical losses, internal and external credit grading and
other adjustment factors.

Management also exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of loss given default based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral,
the seniority of the claim and the existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. Management refers to
valuation reports issued by qualified third party valuers and
considers the influence of various factors including the market
price, location and use when assessing the value of property
held as collateral. The enforceability, timing and means of
realisation of collateral can also have an impact on the
recoverable amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount
of impairment allowances as at the end of the reporting
period.

We identified the impairment allowances of advances to
customers measured at amortised cost as a key audit matter
because of the complexity of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgment involved and because of its
significance to the financial results and capital of the Group.

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

in respect of identifying exposures with a significant
increase in credit risk, evaluating the validity of
management’s assessment on whether the credit risk of
the loan has, or has not, increased significantly since
initial recognition and whether the loan is credit-impaired
by selecting samples for which we checked loan overdue
information, made enquiries of the credit managers about
the borrowers’ business operations, checked borrowers’
financial information and researched market information
about borrowers’ businesses;

in respect of assessing the accuracy of ECL calculation,
recalculating, on a sample basis, the amount of
impairment allowance for 12-month and life-time credit
losses using the Bank’s expected credit loss model based
on the above parameters and assumptions and
comparing to the results from the Group;

assessing the appropriateness of material manual
adjustments and overlays, if any, on ECL model outputs;
and

evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on
impairment allowances of advances to customers
measured at amortised cost and the relevant disclosures
meet the requirements in the prevailing accounting
standards.

Refer to notes 2.12, 5.1, 21 and 23 and to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Financial instruments carried at fair value account form a
significant portion of the Group’s asset. As at 31 December
2020 the fair value of the Group’s these financial instruments
was HK$49,606,635,000 of which HK$2,064,144,000,
HK$47,521,637,000 and HK$20,854,000 were classified as
level 1, 2 and 3 financial instruments respectively.

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments, which are
stated at their fair values, is based on a combination of market
data and valuation models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained from
readily available data for liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of level
3 financial instruments, estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgement.

34

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of financial
instruments included the following:

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the processing
of transactions in relation to financial instruments and the
valuation and independent price verification for financial
instruments;

assessing the fair values of level 1 and certain level 2
financial instruments, on a sample basis, by comparing
the fair values applied by the Group with publicly available
market data;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Refer to notes 2.12, 5.1, 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)
The Group has developed its own models to value certain —  evaluating the methodology adopted by management and
level 2 and 3 financial instruments, which involves significant assessing the reasonableness of the inputs and
management judgement. assumptions used by management in the valuations;
During the year, the tightened market liquidity and increased — engaging our internal valuation specialists to perform, on
market volatility resulted in higher estimation uncertainty in a sample basis, independent valuations of certain level 2
management’s assessment of the marketability and valuation financial instruments and comparing these valuations with
of financial instruments held. the Group’s valuations. Our independent valuations

included developing models, obtaining inputs
independently and verifying the inputs obtained
independently; and

We identified assessment of the fair value of financial — assessing whether the disclosures in the consolidated
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of financial statements appropriately reflected the Group’s
complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with
and because of the degree of judgement exercised by reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
management in developing its own models and in determining standards.

the inputs used in the valuation models.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. \We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Fong Hoi Wan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 April 2021

36



A A8 H

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

GrEWIRR Consolidated Income Statement
FfaE
#2112 H 31 HikFE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2020 2019
BT AETIT
HK$°000 HK$000
FIEWA Interest income 3,845,995 4,208,147
VSISV = ERPIIISUNON Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method 3,816,961 4,192,248
HAF WA Other interest income 29,034 15,899
FIEZH Interest expense (2,133,677) (2,189,574)
IS U IN Net interest income 6 1,712,318 2,018,573
K% AU A Fee and commission income 834,964 667,254
AR5 RS Fee and commission expense (31,541) (24,256)
YRR RASWA Net fee and commission income 7 803,423 642,998
FEAGME (R s Net trading (loss) / gain 8 (44,582) 25,941
FUE B LA EE bat AfBis 2 Net (loss) / gain on financial instruments
SR TEF (B8R s designated at fair value through profit or loss (6,319) 7,307
HAh S RIEE 2 F U g Net gain on other financial assets 9 312,269 69,489
Hr g & A Other operating income 10 9,240 12,315
TEEURE AR I FEZBULA Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,786,349 2,776,623
TR (R R Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (638,353) (345,345)
TREBULA Net operating income 2,147,996 2,431,278
KT Operating expenses 12 (1,120,223) (944,910)
fat =gyl Operating profit 1,027,773 1,486,368
EYFEN P ERAEEF (58D Net (loss) / gain from fair value adjustments on
Ya'les investment properties 13 (7,330) 4,846
HE EEYE - 23 Rk H 2 Net (loss) / gain from disposal / revaluation of
F (EE) JUEs properties, plant and equipment 14 (247) 2,723
C eIzl Profit before taxation 1,020,196 1,493,937
FRIE Taxation 15 (176,936) (231,369)
SEREERSF] Profit for the year 843,260 1,262,568

5F 43 £ 183 H 7 [ffzF @A #%#E  The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.
RZHHRETY
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FrsE:
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2020 2019
AETT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 843,260 1,262,568
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 25 (58,186) 27,006
Deferred tax 29 11,068 (1,853)
(47,118) 25,153
Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 23 (6,329) 15,108
(53,447) 40,261
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 23 (159,925) 305,470
Release upon disposal reclassified to
income statement 9 (306,638) (69,778)
Change in impairment allowances charged
to income statement 350,957 12,116
Deferred tax 29 30,471 (45,347)
(85,135) 202,461
Currency translation difference 210,168 (56,687)
125,033 145,774
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 71,586 186,035
Total comprehensive income for the year 914,846 1,448,603
Total comprehensive income attributable
to:
Equity holders of the Bank 914,846 1,448,603

The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SHFEMBIR Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B
W12H 31 H As at 31 December Notes 2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HE ASSETS
JEE 17 B <8 B A7 TRURTT I EoAth < Cash and balances with banks and other
TRIIASER financial institutions 19 22,971,832 18,235,988
ST R EMemEE—2+— Placements with banks and other
&l 5 N EHH 2 B financial institutions maturing between
one and twelve months 20 7,440,298 4,819,212
PTEERL TR Derivative financial instruments 21 140,505 122,133
HREEHRKEHE Advances to customers and trade bills 22 78,340,141 76,986,891
A Investment in securities 23 50,817,131 46,908,420
Bz Investment properties 24 153,620 237,150
LU i Properties, plant and equipment 25 2,044,562 2,021,072
USRI S 2 Current tax assets 21,489 =
IRIERRIE A Deferred tax assets 29 23,499 640
HA&EE Other assets 26 1,561,296 523,275
HFEHEEH Total assets 163,514,373 149,854,781
=i LIABILITIES
BRAT R EcAtn < bR A7 R Deposits and balances from banks and
4hER other financial institutions 20,567,635 17,747,463
TR T E Derivative financial instruments 21 75,396 40,361
& FfK Deposits from customers 27 122,573,031 116,291,434
FLAHRTE R B Other accounts and provisions 28 2,224,695 1,273,083
JERTHRIHE (R Current tax liabilities 42,013 195,776
TRIERTIH & {5 Deferred tax liabilities 29 137,303 183,675
B (EAEAH Total liabilities 145,620,073 135,731,792
BA EQUITY
B A Share capital 30 6,577,871 3,245,980
fehfh Reserves 9,378,717 8,939,297
AR TR R (G AR st Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 15,956,588 12,185,277
HYINEART R Additional equity instruments 31 1,937,712 1,937,712
B Total equity 17,894,300 14,122,989
EE R EARLEE Total liabilities and equity 163,514,373 149,854,781

% 43 £ 183 H et B A 15
TZAHRERSY -

KESEGH 2021 424 F 26 HidE
HZAEN LU A EREREE

=R 19
#HE E2F

The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

LYU Yaoming
Director

ZHENG Wei
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRI AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
i
Reserves
FEEM  AREE
{2 &N =i 2 EERHE° BEEE "HEEA 5t BINEATE  BAMEE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
Capital reserve’ reserve? reserve® reserve’ earnings Total _instruments equity
AT AETr BT BETtt BT BT BEETa BETT  BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2020 3,245,980 1,249,885 588 519,987  (108,991) 7,277,828 12,185,277 1,937,712 14,122,989
Profit for the year - - - - - 843,260 843,260 - 843,260
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - (47,118) - - - - (47,118) - (47,118)
Equity instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - (6,329) - - - (6,329) - (6,329)
Debt instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - (85,135) - - - (85,135) - (85,135)
Currency translation
difference - - - - 210,168 - 210,168 - 210,168
Total comprehensive
income - (47,118) (91,464) - 210,168 843,260 914,846 - 914,846
Issuance of ordinary
shares 3,331,891 - - - - - 3,331,891 - 3,331,891
Transfer to retained
earnings - - - (385,262) - 385,262 - - -
Dividends - - - - - (373,650)  (373,650) - (373,650)
Distribution to the
holders of the
additional equity
instruments = - - - - (101,776) (101,776) - (101,776)
At 31 December 2020 6,577,871 1,202,767 (90,876) 134,725 101,177 8,030,924 15,956,588 1,937,712 17,894,300
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

SR AR TR R
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
fekth
Reserves
BREEM  AFEHE
A i G EEEREGE S WG BERA Wt BHNEATH EALEH
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fairvalue Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve' reserve? reserve® reserve*  earnings Total __instruments equity
AT BETIT BT BT BT BTt BETT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201941 H 1H At1January 2019 1,772,988 1,224,732  (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,524,041 9,665,484 1,937,712 11,603,196
LA Profit for the year - - - - - 1,262,568 1,262,568 - 1,262,568
HoAth UGS Other comprehensive
income:
I Premises - 25,153 - - - - 25,153 - 25,153
LIAPE /B2 A Equity instruments
Hfth 2 E 25> at fair value
RS T B through other
comprehensive
income - - 15,108 - - - 15,108 - 15,108
DIAF(EZ(EET A Debt instruments
Hi e mE s> at fair value
BHBTE through other
comprehensive
income - - 202,461 - - - 202,461 - 202,461
Gl R Currency translation
difference - - - - (56,687) - (56,687) - (56,687)
SE T 4EEE Total comprehensive
income - 25,153 217,569 - (56,687) 1,262,568 1,448,603 - 1,448,603
ST IERE Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,992 - - - - - 1,472,992 - 1,472,992
S R R Transfer from retained
earnings - = = 105,610 - (105,610) - - -
1358 Dividends - = - - - (298,920)  (298,920) - (298,920)
SZA#ESNEAR T AR Distribution to the
BEEFA holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,882)  (102,882) - (102,882)
R E LA E%{E Release upon
= A H A4 mEUgzs  disposal of equity
ks T > instruments at fair
i 5 value through other
comprehensive
income® - - 1,369 - - (1,369) - - -
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019  3,245980 1,249,885 588 519,987  (108,991) 7,277,828 12,185,277 1,937,712 14,122,989

1. PR (G R EAL MR AR 1. Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

B EFTR AR E T EER -

ATEERHOEHFANLATES
(AR TGS B E0s
Wi R Bt AT B EZ TS
ZH o
BRSSO Septe
AHRBOR S - B RER
S 53 B B R B B G 0
T—RER2 | CRERAIEL
HAATEHRR) -

S B AR T R AR
TR PR B -

R LA TR L AR 2K
252 RS TR R AR
P DUATHS H 0T -

policies adopted for the revaluation of premises.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value through other
comprehensive income securities held until the securities are derecognised.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment
allowances recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (‘HKFRS”) 9.

Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for foreign currency translation.

The release upon disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

was made because the investment was no longer to be held for strategic purpose.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash inflow before taxation
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas profits tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid
Issue of ordinary share capital
Final dividend paid to the equity holders of

the Bank
Distribution to the holders of the additional
equity instruments

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

B
Notes 2020 2019
AT T
HK$°000 HK$ 000
32(a) 7,400,368 1,722,883
(276,272) (40,342)
(100,281) (66,027)
7,023,815 1,616,514
25 (46,246) (43,218)
(46,246) (43,218)
(80,378) (66,296)
(8,360) (5,207)
30 3,331,891 1,472,992
16 (373,650) (298,920)
16 (101,776) (102,882)
2,767,727 999,687
9,745,296 2,572,983
21,189,799 18,688,142
347,779 (71,326)
31,282,874 21,189,799

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 32(b)

The notes on pages 43 to 183 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
services.

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.

. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the fair value revaluation of
investment in securities at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are
carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

43



A A8 H

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

e BRI (8)

2. TEEFTBER (&)

21 GEEEE (B

(@) Eft 2020 51 A 1 HEFRBHNE

FHERERHIE R R R 55T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2020

SV & IR 2R
Applicable for
financial years

Standards / Amendments Content beginning on / after

TR H SR 3 9% (g EBIER 20201 A1 H

EID)
HKFRS 3 (Amendment)

TGRS 1 975 8 5%
(&7
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendment)

FIEEAELCE © BB S
RIZE 9 5% ~ dEsTERIEE 39
S S TR T S RIS 7 5%
ZfE5T

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform: Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Definition of a business

HRZEE

Definition of material
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SEEMBREmENEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
2. FTESSEER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) T 2020 £ 1 A 1 HACEBNE (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
R AR A R EET for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2020 (continued)
(&
LA B A B 2 B 1S s 2B R Further information about those HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group is
BT - as follows:
o FRECEN S E—IE T B « Interest rate benchmark reform is the market-wide initiative to replace or
DA — e g R SR A o A ] reform interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternatively risk-free interest
BB R e B o BT rates (“RFRs”). The Group has closely monitored the market progress on

the transition of IBORs to RFRs. The adoption of this amendment will not

PHEETIEA FHAEELSTGH o N ;
BT F A S BT E have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

BRERERNUE ERPE -

o AREE ARSI HEE + The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that has not
SR FH A3 R © yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Standards / Amendments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2020

Py

Content

RERE A 2
Applicable for
financial years
beginning on/after

(BB HEEAD) 5 95%
(EAEGEHEAT 5 39 5%
(EBMGHREEA) 57 5%
~ (EBBEES ) B4

Sk (EAMBHREEAD %
16 S 2 1E5T

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

(BB RSN 5 3598
(=)
Amendments to HKFRS 3

(BRI 2816 Y2 fea]
Amendments to HKAS 16

(BAGAE) 5 37 S 53]
Amendments to HKAS 37

RV RS AR 2018 2
2020 A HAMEIE UL

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

(RGN 51582 E8T
Amendments to HKAS 1

AEE AR T EET R

5 2 AR AT RE R AR Y
o b H ARG P2 AT
TR R O B RIS T
fEAFE -

HAEAEE — 55 PR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

5 IS HEZE
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

YIZE ~ s beaset © BEE HTRRT Z PR
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use

BRI EY — EEIRA

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

&R B =R RS

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

2021 %1 H1H

1 January 2021

20221 H1H
1 January 2022
20221 H1H
1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022

20221 H1H
1 January 2022

2023FE1H1H
1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

Gre B R B AR T R AT H
JBATEIEE 12 A 31 HAi 58 -

EAE

RERE WS ERREIE AT R H A I
JEAFEESEMERZ 12 5 31 H
LEHIA TS E R - BTIRS =] Ry A LR pre
2 BTHG - AR IR A TR
|~ SBALIE K A 510 P 2 P L S R DL
SCRELETR I - AR R AR L
HEHEA PEHIRE - AP R T A TEHIE
i > AL N E AN (7S
B R HA N PR ) -

(S ACIPEC g=(EE el S VYR e
PERIRER A H B SR E T B ek M Et
F o B OISR - SR 2
HISSER > 505 Rt B AR R SRR 2
IS 2 it AR R T BRI  Hd -
ERAR T AR - R RIS SR
FEAERIRE B IRINFIRE RSS2 2
R AR A B -

AEEERF R BTSRRI
FELRHVE B 2 5 T AR - Bl
R B ARG S 2R N PR R R
2R A3 DL S W HAR R R 2y 288
E SR R R R S

BRSBTS I A ] P
R Y B I B N = 2 A R AR
AR AR Y B tiERe Ry ifas - (EIAETR
KPR B IR Z AT I A F 2
REEAZ NP ERERD > IS8R R
At — R EE (5 2.8) BN
SPEAE > 20 (AT FEpAIIRTE
—WENE R EERFEE  RETER

IR B L TR A B B T 3

FEALTHIAESIROER I A IR
T AR A bR AR TR E R 2k (I T
2.15) g -

The consolidated financial statements include the financial information of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.8)
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate and joint venture, and is offset against the gain or loss on the loss
of control of that subsidiary.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, if any (Note 2.15).
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SEEMBREmENEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
2. FEEBER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 SEmE 2.3 Segmental reporting

YRS S RS R W T EE R The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
NI E 5 AEESHE internal reporting provided to the Group’s senior management, which is the
Ty B B 4R BB chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and
jﬁsé%%m&%ﬁég%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and expenses

directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating

o fEEETE N % ) W
i FEREE S5 ) TN - Y Soament porformance.

FEELE oy JH E AR BRI UCA R 52

o
2.4 HMEEmE 2.4 Foreign currency translation

KEE & EN SR rrEE E Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are

IR S A A B A R B T measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which

St (TIHREEME | ) o A4S the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial

WS F DENTR o BIASRIT Y statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional

THEE Ky 2HI 15 - and presentation currency.

Y NEERT PIgin T Sy E T EIEE Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using

ZAh{E S H A RIHAPE R & B ThEE the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates

Bl SNEERE B DA 5 H 7 MERGEE at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign

BT S | EAYPE 23835 » DAL DIYNEE By A exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency

ML &M EE R EEEast4sEE transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

H HYPE R SR 8% I B transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

U ZEFEMEST N E A S E U s AR currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period

FEVE By GRS B G SR A - are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other

comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.

AN ) 7 B — R (N 2 T Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in

0o ] DUNIEH EA RN E profit or loss. However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation

M7 e S E U TS iESY of the following items are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI):

o« EUBEFE DL AN EAE S s A Hfih & + equity investments in respect of which an election has been made to present
TSRS subsequent changes in fair value in OCI;

o 35 E DU B S SN 2 - a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign
LB As s & operation to the extent that the hedge is effective; and

- GETHA RSy EE - I - qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective.
HRARE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

24

25

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and derivative financial instruments are included in gains less losses
from trading securities or financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are presented
as gains less losses from foreign exchange and foreign exchange products in
the income statement. Differences arising on translation of equity investments
which an election has been made to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in fair value reserve.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

+ income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency
translation reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve.
When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and
as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are
designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

2.7

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
expense

(1) Interest income and expense
Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the
financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than
credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but not expected credit losses.
For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on initial
recognition, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using
estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses (i.e. no expected
credit loss provision is required at initial recognition).

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees
and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
expense (continued)

(1) Interest income and expense (continued)
Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at
which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
expected credit loss allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross
basis.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of
interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the
asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please refer to
Note 2.14.

(2) Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income and expense that are not an integral part of the
effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when
the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management
fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are recognised as
revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been completed and
the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has retained a
part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to other participants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

(1)

)

U]

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. A financial asset is measured
initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

Classification

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- fair value through profit and loss;
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

+ amortised cost.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets depend on:

+ the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
« the cash flow characteristics of the assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

« amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.

+ FVOCI, if the contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.

+ FVTPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI. Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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(2) Classification (continued)

(ii) Equity instruments

BT RAER T A IR A
EHBTLH - % LAREA
P TRTATEIE DT AR
SRR (R -

PriaanER - AEEE R E
A ETERIEIY RS - f50E TR
ZRLNAHEE bat AH A AR
HEFT PR REEHARRFTA R
{382 DL HEE bt AR T
St o AR E R DR LA
EE LR AHAM SRR ECR
B L S A H VAL R Rk
HUP O R R
I PAERY B RUEFER B Fepth
WegshfERy - IR G HAR B E T
W SR R A (R
{EZAE (A [l )R A & B o P
{EBILFIR - EAGEE A IHERIHE
FUEURE R, BN SR AR
HRIEF > SRR AR
AL EUAZCE ©

DL PHEE bt AIBRAR i R
Y BT RS R R FE AR W R A
Lot R s -

(iii) SERSERIHIRS

AEE DU RE R W SE RS A R B

Mgt e - DA R A &

FERER A H RSl S5

A AV ERNELSE |

* B FIS A TR A YRR
R ~ st IR T8
U ol S e e ST Vet
< B 2 B B R T B B 0
HYsE Rl R RAIIIR

© QMRS EHYRRE R A S
FEEE

- SRR E RS (RAEE(E
EBHATRARISREE) DL
B WA E R e

© SERSCE TR - Pl
ER G HLEHNEE N HE
EEWHU EERER - K

< HEBREEEE B - B -
el ~ 4 EEHY IR N R R A B B Y
THEEN - TR HET RIVE
SRR SR > TR IE A
EEEHEHERE E T E
BRI ARG —EP 0

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer's perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group’s management has
elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at FVOCI. The Group’s policy is to designate equity
investments as FVOCI when those investments that are not held for
trading. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,
including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the
“Net trading (loss) / gain” line in the income statement.

(iii) Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in
which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

+ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the
Group’s management;

« the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

« how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

+ the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as
part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(2) Classification (continued)

(iv) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of

(v

~

principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity
risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash
flows;

+ leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money, e.g.
periodical reset of interest rates.

The Group holds a portfolio of long-term fixed rate loans for which the
Group has the option to propose to revise the interest rate at periodic
reset dates. These reset rights are limited to the market rate at the time
of revision. The borrowers have an option to either accept the revised
rate or repay the loan at par without penalty. The Group has determined
that the contractual cash flows of these loans are solely payments of
principal and interest because the option varies the interest rate in a way
that is consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic
lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount outstanding.

Reclassification
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial

recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets.
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The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees
and loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

The Group has designated certain financial liabilities as at FVTPL in either of
the following circumstances:

+ the liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair
value basis; or

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a contract between the holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities
and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line
basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts
are taken to the income statement.

2.11 Derecognition of financial instruments

(1) Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1

2.12

Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
(1) Financial assets (continued)

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity
investment securities designated as at FVOCI is not recognised in
profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created
or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its statement of financial position, but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or
a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial
asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to
recognised the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Group retains the obligation to service the
transferred financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is
derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability
is recognised for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for performing the
servicing.

(2) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in its principal market or the most advantageous market
accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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212 NVEETE (8D 2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)
EEES ARG THS A ERE A If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation
FEEG S HEIA EAEIEIIET T techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
(G E A\ - IEE discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
EIEZ NETHEA S IR SR E techniqgues commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in
7 ~ HARE S (EHA R Hofth i s & Bl im the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
RS e FaasE A L fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
B EEEZ AR S8 B iR PN i 2R minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
HIZ 8 -
213 £ 2.13 Precious metals
HeEaEES HEEESE - & Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious
B H NP EEV GBS E%ZE metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value.
it - B ENET TS EERAES Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are included in net
WS ERHR SRS A S trading gain / loss.
5 -
214 SRIEERE 2.14 Impairment of financial assets
AREEMER LT IELLAEEE(EET A The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial
AT SR T 2L AT (= SR A A8 instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:
FAEf
- DGR AE T B 2 BREE - A - financial assets measured at amortised cost, which are held for the
TZE LI A & KA R & 4T collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
e EN principal and interest;
o DA EE LT AH A 2 U 2 - debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling);
EBsEs (AIED
- THEREWIERK - lease receivables;
- DEHINHABAEREL - financial guarantee contracts issued;
© CEHHERURE » & - loan commitments issued; and
BIF&EE - - contract asset.
HA LA ERTENEREE  BfEN Other financial assets measured at fair value, including equity and debt
INPAE SR AR 2 B () R A8 558 securities measured at FVTPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI
5 E BN ES LS A M2 (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
Wegs z epysgzs (R AT[E) Refirdise: assessment.
TR AR M T TR S S4B AIRTA -
KREE DL =8 AL EE AR 12(E The Group measures loss allowances for 12-month or lifetime ECL using
S8 (B B S T a 3-stage approach as follows:
FEE ii:guis DERIEI=FS
Stage Description Impairment Loss
1 T 128 F YT £5 15
Performing 12-month ECL
2 JETTHEREREH -SSR E VAT DR ERIHNZ I E EEL

Performing but with credit risk increased significantly at reporting date | jfetime ECL
since its initial recognition

3 N XA THIAE SRk
Non-performing Lifetime ECL

12N TEE(EEEELESR T H 12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a

TEHE HiBM12(8 BN Fra VBIEEY financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the

HEFTEEEERL - reporting date.
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HETEIESES Measurement of ECL
TEHE &8k 2 —(E(S SR AR ECLs are a probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. They are
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measured as follows:

- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: at the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive);

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows;

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the
commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the
holder less any amounts that the Group expects to recover.

The criteria of “significant increase of credit risk” has taken into
consideration of two key factors:

+ The exposure has a significant deterioration of internal or external
rating as compared with the rating at the time when the exposure was
originated; and

+ The rating of the exposure falls out of the “Low-Credit Risk Threshold”
that is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment
grade”.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial

position as follows:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the
gross carrying amount of the assets;

+ loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision;

+ where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn
component, and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from
the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the
loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision; and

+ debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised
in the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of
these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance is
disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve in OCI.
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Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in impairment
losses on financial instruments in the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Non-integral financial guarantee contracts

The Group assesses whether a financial guarantee contract held is an
integral element of a financial asset that is accounted for as a component
of that instrument or is a contract that is accounted for separately. The
factors that the Group considers when making this assessment include
whether:
+ the guarantee is implicitly part of the contractual terms of the debt
instrument;
+ the guarantee is required by laws and regulations that govern the
contract of the debt instrument;
+ the guarantee is entered into at the same time as and in contemplation
of the debt instrument; and

- the guarantee is given by the parent of the borrower or another
company within the borrower’s group.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is an integral element of the
financial asset, then any premium payable in connection with the initial
recognition of the financial asset is treated as a transaction cost of
acquiring it. The Group considers the effect of the protection when
measuring the fair value of the debt instrument and when measuring ECL.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is not an integral element of
the debt instrument, then it recognises an asset representing any
prepayment of guarantee premium and a right to compensation for credit
losses. A prepaid premium asset is recognised only if the guaranteed
exposure neither is credit-impaired nor has undergone a significant
increase in credit risk when the guarantee is acquired. These assets are
recognised in other assets (see Note 26). The Group presents gains or
losses on a compensation right in profit or loss in the line item ‘net charge
of impairment allowances’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt is credit-
impaired, the Group considers the following factors:

- the market’'s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond
yields;

- the rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness;

- the country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt
issuance;

- the probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering
losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness;

+ the international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary
support as the Contingent Term Facility to that country, as well as the
intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and agencies
to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth
of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political intent, whether
there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes but not limited
to the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

+ a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

+ the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise;

« itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is
evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a
loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered impaired.

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing
financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the
borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset
should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows:

- If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising from the modified
financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing asset.

- If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing
asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the
final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls
from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected
date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective
interest rate of the existing financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the

period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from
that entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that
entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its

consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are
classified as investment properties. Properties leased out within Group
companies are classified as investment properties in individual companies’
financial statements and as premises in consolidated financial statements
in the comparative period. Land held under operating lease is classified
and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is
a finance lease. Lease payments were accounted for as described in Note

2.18.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are

measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening
periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference
to the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments are made
when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income statement
up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises revaluation
reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released
and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

All plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered owner of
the property interest and leases of underlying plant and equipment (Note
2.18), are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at
cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the
item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis of its
respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost
or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- properties over the life of government land leases

- plant and equipment 2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication that
properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is
treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is
reversed through the premises revaluation reserve or the income statement
as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income
statement.

2.18 Leases

At inception nof a contract, the group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(1) As a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
lease commencement date, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
itis located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received.
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(1) As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. When a right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property, it is initially measured at
cost, and subsequently at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the
lease liability and decreased by lease payment made. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate,
changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option
is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is
reasonably certain not to be exercised. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal options. The
assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
such options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.

(2) As a lessor

As alessor, the Group leases out its investment properties as the lessor
of operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant leases.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 2.14.
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The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO
schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected
to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves, they
do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on
leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are expected to
be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts
are significant.
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Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In these cases, the relevant
amounts of tax is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income,
is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in which profits
arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of
certain assets including financial instruments at FVOCI and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of financial
instruments at FVOCI and revaluation of premises which are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred
income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive income and
is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.
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Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the
statement of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are
reported as “Repossessed assets” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that
result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and
other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are
excluded from these financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if:

(@)

(b)

a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.

an entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or

an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(iif)

Both entities are joint venture of the same third party.

(iv)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

v)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has made
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 4.1E and Note 5 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to impairment and fair values of financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Note 4.1E: impairment of financial instruments involves determining
inputs into the ECL measurement model, including incorporation of
forward-looking information.

(ii) Valuation of financial instruments

The Group’s accounting policy for valuation of financial instruments is
included in Note 5. The fair value of the financial instruments is mainly
based on the quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price quoted from a broker / dealer for non-exchanged traded financial
instruments.

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies
Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies are described below:

(i) Classification of financial assets

Note 2.8(2)(iii) and Note 2.8(2)(iv): assessment of the business model
within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Measurement of ECL

Note 4.1E: establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on
the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,
determining methodology for incorporating forward looking information
into measurement of ECL and selection of models used to measure ECL.

(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and impairment allowances are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available
tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets
recognised.
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The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk management
governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (RC), a standing committee established by the
Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks,
approving significant risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation. The CEO Executive Meeting (Credit Approval) is responsible for
approving credit transactions exceeding Chief Executive (CE) ‘s authority or
referred by CE. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.

The CE is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks, and material
risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the Board of
Directors. The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) assists the CE in managing the Group’s
various types of risks, and approving material risk exposures or transactions within
his authority. With the support from Risk Management Department (RMD) and
Financial Management Department (FMD), the CRO assists the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities for the day-to-day management of risks and initiating new risk
management strategies, projects and measures that will enable the Group to better
monitor and manage new risk issues or areas that may arise from time to time from
new businesses, products and changes in the operating environment. He will also
take appropriate initiatives in response to regulatory changes. The CRO and the
General Manager of RMD are also responsible for reviewing material risk
exposures or transactions within their delegated authority. In accordance with the
principle of setting the hierarchy of risk management policies approved by the
Board, the senior management is also responsible for approving the detailed risk
management policies of their responsible areas.

4l



A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

SEBERRIE (8)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. GRURREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

RERREEEE (B

A A (] B A HOAR e e e
T - B AR s B R Y5 — AR
i BB R A AL N B B A
SR FEEE > DURERE ~ AR
SRR b E B ECRNIAR R -

AREEEY T BN EERIET o B
ST TILAITHIAE SRS - DIBL Sk
BHEEE SR EMEBCR ~ 25 R RE -
AR T N DR SR A A 70 L o B P R B T T
RSERS S - [FI (R BN T YRS
L ARV SEERIN AR o

EE PR S R R B

Fo T R el R B TRy AR
REEEN T —E 58 SR L R E
BPEEHEL - EEmBEERET - AR
B % B AL A HIATIRE Ry 1L WHIE
TEENEEERE SR -

IR REH R S B -
o B B A S PR LA RS S e M
mBASEETH]  HETT ELASRYE mBES LAF -
e\ B BB 1 A A EE A B S MR P AT
IR

AT R L B T A R A A AR
TR FESE R B AL - A RAE
an A AT HEL TS -

a1 (=R

EEREENE 5 25 5 5 T AR A
TR E T AP T AR A Y R
b - GBS SRR - DU &
FEAHERNNRINZ LG FEETE
[z - FE R AR E EE - H R
BRETFE -

EREREEEE

REHGET —E2ENEEERE
H R SR P A11E & 19 (5 B R a IR
# T VB R 5 S - A/
TE B A b R % E BORBR P e (5
S RFRIRER > DU & 55 5 SR BRI
HRgEE -

A EEFRIAH SRR HIE T IR
LR > DABERE ST IR ~ R R R
HYIEDL ©

Financial risk management framework (continued)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and
product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. Various risk management units are responsible to conduct independent
risk assessment in the product development process.

Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk management units and approval from
designated unit heads/the management.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss caused by customers or counterparties who are
unable to or unwilling to meet their contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in
the trading book and banking book, as well as on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes well-defined authorities and
responsibilities for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

Risk Assessment Department (RAD) and RMD are responsible for credit risk
management. Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk
management responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence.
Both RAD and RMD, which are independent from the business units, is
responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and has the
primary responsibility for providing an independent due diligence through
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an
effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating
credit risk management policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk,
and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews
on the concerned portfolios.

Advances to customers and trade bills

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit and
other functions, is responsible for making an independent assessment of
material credit applications. Credit applications for non-retail exposures are
independently reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings
(in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios to support
credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used
to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for
credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is
required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group adopts an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to
Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master
rating scale is in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital)
Rules.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports to the RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous
monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five
categories with reference to the HKMA'’s guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the
net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings,
assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer or
security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the
credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control processes as
applied for advances. Ongoing monitoring and stop-loss procedures are
established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a
payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk
arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. In the personal
sector, the main types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits
and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of
collateral are real estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and
machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s
financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2019:
Nil).
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

A. Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the
Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to
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credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group
could be required to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan
commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure to

credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as

follows:

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature
of the counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”)
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination
event. In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will
be included to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement.
Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one counterparty to another, as

appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances to customers and trade bills, contingent

liabilities _and

commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 75. Advances to
customers and trade bills, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking
account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The components and
nature of contingent liabilities and commitments are disclosed in Note 33.
Regarding the commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without prior
notice, the Group would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in
case where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent
liabilities and commitments, 24.98% (2019: 26.44%) is covered by collateral

as at 31 December 2020.

76



A A8 H

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

S BERZERE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. EEB&EOT B. Credit quality analysis
(a) ZERERKESEBNE (a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills
B8R
THIENEEERE 5 The following tables set out information about the credit quality of advances to
=R EEEES TR customers and trade bills. The amounts in the table represent gross carrying amount.
HRTAIE YT -
2020
12 & B HI7EEA JEEERENKE EERENSS
o e E8EE TS TEEARSE fast
Z AR A F B Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ets Pass 76,624,088 223,184 - 76,847,272
TR Special Mention 384 652,827 ) 653,211
KR Substandard . . 39,057 39,957
i Doubtful - - 129,827 129,827
i Loss - . 110,379 110,379
JRIE Loss allowance (476,643) (8,637) (278,510) (763,790)
HRMHIE Carrying amount 76,147,829 867,374 1,653 77,016,856
2019
12 {8 B B97EEA FHEEREN S EEREN S
s e EEHE TSR TEIAETIR “aEt
FHSHRARNIZ P B Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT T AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ER Pass 74,473,819 753,406 - 75,227,225
TEBE Special Mention 4,333 539,201 - 543,534
R Substandard - - 96,089 96,089
R Doubtiul - - 182,289 182,289
s Loss - - 17,822 17,822
TREAER Loss allowance (326,066) (18,309) (284,868) (629,243)
Ar{E Carrying amount 74,152,086 1,274,298 11,332 75,437,716

77



A A8 H

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

S B aeRITE

4. GRRREE (&)

41 EEERE (8
B. FEERNT

() EFERRELSTENE
BER (8

FESIV A 52255 Trade bills at amortised cost

Erg Pass

TREZER

Loss allowance

HRIAIE Carrying amount

PN AYIE 555 Trade bills at amortised cost

LS Pass
TREAER

HRIAIE Carrying amount

Loss allowance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)

(a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

2020

12 [EAMTES  MERRENSRE EERENSS
(B3 Zict TSR TREESE dast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
1,327,776 - 1,327,776
(4,491) - (4,491)
1,323,285 - 1,323,285

2019

12 {8 5 #9 7R IHEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE TEIAETE THIETE Hast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,553,101 - 1,653,101
(3,926) - (3,926)
1,549,175 - 1,549,175
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
B. EEERDHT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

(b) BREFERRESE

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade

SMTEEEERR

YR AE SR T R oA
B RIARE I &S R R A7

bills

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions. The amounts in the table

EEE SR LE represent gross carrying amount.
AR
2020

P ) 12 [EAMTES  SMERRENSRE EERENSS
FERCRAT ~ $517 S EAth Balances and placements with (=R SIS TR P

RIRSEG5ER K 7K central banks, banks and other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
financial institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Er& Pass 30,197,824 - - 30,197,824
JEEAER Loss allowance (1,924) - - (1,924)
ARIAIE Carrying amount 30,195,900 - - 30,195,900

2019

P - ) 12 {8 B B9THEA FHEEREN S EEREN S
??)Eﬁw%ﬁ ~ $797 K HAth Balances and placements with (IS T T yast

ERTEREIGEER 7K central banks, banks and other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
financial institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EF& Pass 22,774,206 - - 22,774,206
TR Loss allowance (484) ) B (484)
SfR{E Carrying amount 22,773,722 - - 22,773,722
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. Credit quality analysis (continued)
(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

The following tables present the credit quality of debt securities mandatorily measured
and designated at FVTPL. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated
for the issuers are reported.

2020
Aaa Aal & Aa3 A1 & A3 A3 DT SRR 45
Lower
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT  BETT BT BBTT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Financial assets
mandatorily
measured at
FVTPL - - 16,725 196,119 25,384 238,228
Financial assets
designated at
FVTPL - - 159,752 40,027 163,421 363,200
- - 176,477 236,146 188,805 601,428

2019
Aaa Aal £ Aa3 A1 A3 A3 LU ETAR Hat
Lower
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT T BT BT B%TT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Financial assets

mandatorily

measured at

FVTPL - - 28,999 71,488 47,663 148,150
Financial assets

designated at

FVTPL - - 158,116 39,959 172,532 370,607

- - 187,115 111,447 220,195 518,757
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(continued)

41 8RR (8

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. E&8&S (&) B. Credit quality analysis (continued)
(b) REFERXKESE (b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
INTEEFEERR (8) bills (continued)
BB 5 R FAGERE S Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the Group manages
NEEEEEHEFE its corporate and bank lending risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties
BUREEEHE MR with individual counterparty limits set.
THEEMNITE—BUL R
A 2 1 e A (1
A F IR -
PEREHASGSE R H - % At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investment in debt securities
TR T 2 B analysed by designation of external credit assessment institution, Moody’s Investor
HFRGIENEEEZR Services, or equivalent, is as follows:
Pariis N
2020
12@ANTEE  JEEERERNSEE EERESS
S " " (B3, i e TR fast
FEsER AT 2 09(E Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
B 5 TGS deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - - - -
Aal % Aa3 Aa1 to Aa3 120,910 - - 120,910
AT Z A3 Alto A3 887,257 - - 887,257
A3 DI Lower than A3 346,434 R - 346,434
frETaR Unrated i ) ) )
k(B Loss allowance (3,600) - - (3,600)
HRI{E Carrying amount 1,351,001 - - 1,351,001
2019
12 &l F 7R JHEE A S EERENS
e » » EERE TEIAETE TEIFEE Hast
I HRNAL A5 B9 Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
S5 AT deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - - - -
Aal % Aa3 Aa1 to Aa3 113,448 - - 113,448
AT % A3 Alto A3 1,095,282 - - 1,095,282
A3 DI Lower than A3 435,465 - - 435,465
SHESPAR Unrated - - R -
JEEAERE Loss allowance (1,798) - - (1,798)
HRAIE Carrying amount 1,642,397 - - 1,642,397
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€D 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. EEERDHT (&)

(b) BREFEREESTE
SMTEERRER (&)

DI S(ET A2 Debt securities and certificate of

W IS a8 75 Sk

2%
s

Aaa

Aal & Aa3
Al £ A3
A3 DI
ARIAIE

TRIEE

DIUATEZ( L AT
W s 5 B

2%
[EisA

Aaa

Aal % Aa3
Al £ A3
A3 LIF
ISR

IR(EAER

deposits at FVOCI

Aaa

Aa1 to Aa3
A1to A3
Lower than A3
Unrated

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

Debt securities and certificate of

deposits at FVOCI

Aaa

Aa1 to Aa3
A1to A3
Lower than A3
Unrated

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2020

12EANTEE  HMEERENKES SERENRS
fEREE TS TeHEE gt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3,505,435 - - 3,505,435
7,231,983 - - 7,231,983
29,791,378 - - 29,791,378
5,698,954 - - 5,698,954
2,446,284 - 107,215 2,553,499
48,674,034 - 107,215 48,781,249
33,294 - 344,341 377,635

2019

12 {8 B 197EEA JHEERENS S EERENS
EERHE TEMARTR TEIAETR “aEt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT HBIETIT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
6,947,971 - - 6,947,971
9,990,944 - - 9,990,944
20,178,046 - - 20,178,046
6,184,284 - - 6,184,284
1,418,838 - - 1,418,838
44,720,083 - - 44,720,083
26,400 - - 26,400
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S BERZERE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

41 EEERE (8
B. FEERMT (&)

(b) FrE MK EBHEESI
NEEREER ()

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

HAth Rl & 7ZE Other financial assets
Er% Pass

TR Special Mention

KR Substandard

SR Doubtful

IR Loss

TREAER Loss allowance

HRMHEIE Carrying amount

HAth Rl E7ZE Other financial assets
LS Pass

TR Special Mention

RER Substandard

SR Doubtful

(5= Loss

TREAERH Loss allowance
FRIAHE Carrying amount

2020
12[@RMTEN  JEEERENSEE EERESS
(B3 i TSR TREESE dast
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
1,339,636 - 1,339,636
7 7
653 653
708 708
(4,299) (387) (4,686)
1,335,337 981 1,336,318
2019
12 (@ HI7EHA IHEERENSS  EERENSS
EEGHE TR IR THIFEE Hast
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
312,153 - 312,153
10 - 10
432 432
699 699
(306) (735) (1,041)
311,847 10 396 312,253
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S BERZERE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8
B. FEERMT (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) FrE MK EBHEESI
NEEREER ()

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2020

12[@RMTES  JEEERERNEE EERESS
. S . - fE i e TEHSIE st

B EWE A E UK Loan commitments and financial Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
SETES G AR guarantee contracts issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
atg Pass 14,094,571 10,000 - 14,104,571
RERDE Special Mention ) 103,322 ) 103,322
TER Substandard ) i i ]
R Doubtful - - 8,597 8,597
e Loss i} i} B i}
R {E Carrying amount 14,094,571 113,322 8,597 14,216,490
TRIEES Loss allowance (51,644) (1) _ (51,645)

2019

12 {8 B 197EEA IHEEREN S EERENS
! . . i . S8R TEIARETR TEIAETIR “aEt

B R T £k Loan commitments and financial Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
S IMESE PR ek guarantee contracts issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L Pass 12,578,378 3,817 - 12,582,195
RERDE Special Mention ) 47,084 ) 47,084
RAEY Substandard ) i i )
i Doubtful - ; 8,597 8,507
il Loss _ _ _ R
REAI{EL Carrying amount 12,578,378 50,901 8,597 12,637,876
JKIEZERE Loss allowance (26.802) ™) ) (26,803)

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the
borrower.

AR H 2 &5 0
HA G F R T R ATy
A > HIFIETERL -
HEHTHIEEZ 85K
EHH =R HER T A
W R AR > APIE
Wi - HRIIMEE . &
R EL IR R ik B R K
WA BRI
AR ER—EH B
FRONJEE 380 1 2 A RN R
o IS E R -
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4. GRRREE (&)

41 EEERE (8
C. Ebg&EE

(a) FERAIEM i BEAE A
BUERTHY R = 5 P B

Algra BRI RN
HY B Y B e 5 LB 40
T

FEIFAT ~ $R9T R FAM 2
TSR

FESRTT R HoAth < Rl AR —
Z2+Z{E A NEHZE
AR

OTAEERTH

SRHITE LA HEZEBET A
R LA

FRIE B LN A BET A
B 2 (AR A

Ploy P E g bat AR A2
T W 2 2 ARk R 75

HHNHA

DI er A St 2 2 55 %

=

FRERRE S5

RS & M BRI R PASM
HYIH H #Y % = 18 F R0
T

HEEEEEHEE

B S AT 2 B

BATE S AT 2 BB

BN 7S S S M A A S R
WsH 2 G

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancement

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to assets in the consolidated statements
of financial position are as follows:

2020 2019
AT HARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Balances with central banks, banks

and other financial institutions 22,755,602 17,954,510
Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months 7,440,298 4,819,212
Derivative financial instruments 140,505 122,133
Investment in securities mandatorily

measured at fair value through

profit or loss 238,228 148,150
Investment in debt securities

designated at fair value through

profit or loss 363,200 370,607
Investment in debt securities and

certificates of deposit at fair value

through other comprehensive

income 48,781,249 44,720,083
Investment in securities at amortised
cost 1,351,001 1,642,397
Advances to customers and trade
bills 78,340,141 76,986,891
159,410,224 146,763,983

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the consolidated
statements of financial position are as follows:

2020 2019

AT BT IT

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Direct credit substitutes 5,147 5,147

Transaction-related contingencies 25,621 24,771

Trade-related contingencies 677,387 475,735
Commitments excluding those that

are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 3,151,595 4,645,828
3,859,750 5,151,481
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S BERZERE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8
C. Ehx&EhE (8D

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk (continued)

(b) AT T B PSR4
#

LUNE R & F B a2
TSR HATHRI
Ti2 REM SRR BRZ
BE B ERNIEERE R

(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of loans and advances.

G -
2020
FERREREAE FEWERr FREZRE
ERERER FEEZEST BESHE AR ZRE R
Gross % covered by Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances to collateral or impairment impairment
customers  other security Impaired allowances allowances
AT EETIT BEETT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R Z &K Loans for use in Hong Kong
TRE&RsE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VpEER - Property development 3,408,076 25.05% - - 23,378
- VEEE - Property investment 3,638,788 51.02% 25 - 12,878
- BRE - Financial concerns 6,026,042 23.71% - - 16,460
- RS - Stockbrokers 2,276,150 2.06% - - 9,561
- i EEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,141,089 66.29% 10,284 10,265 19,483
- Bl - Manufacturing 709,330 23.08% - - 3,107
- el KB - Transport and transport
equipment 655,320 1.26% - - 2,266
- PRALESN - Recreational activities 26,716 100.00% . . 83
- EEfRHY - Information technology 72,620 5.56% - - 654
- Hith - Others 2,712,789 66.19% 3,023 3,023 6,829
{EA Individuals
- IS EE A RS - Loans for the purchase of
NG e e flats in Home Ownership
SR E R Scheme, Private Sector
PSS Participation Scheme
BB and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 50,805 98.33% - - 75
- EEHEM YRR & - Loans for purchase of
2 other residential
properties 4,460,498 100.00% - - 4,695
- Hithr - Others 8,495,354 98.41% 776 776 64,702
AEA T 2 SRR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 36,673,577 59.44% 14,108 14,064 164,171
H oA Trade finance 407,295 36.85% 155,676 155,676 523
TEEBLIMIH &30 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 40,699,774 20.33% 110,379 108,770 320,586
Ea= e Gross advances to customers 77,780,646 38.86% 280,163 278,510 485,280
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4. GRRREE (&)

41 EEERE (8

C. Ehx&EhE (8D

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(b) ITHESTEZERERK
& (&)
R Z &K Loans for use in Hong Kong
T RaemsE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VEEE - Property development
- VA - Property investment
- SRigE - Financial concerns
- fERA - Stockbrokers
- SRS - Wholesale and retail
trade
- B - Manufacturing
- A R - Transport and transport
equipment
- PNETEE) - Recreational activities
- AEREY - Information technology
- Hit - Others
fEA Individuals
- IS EE A RS - Loans for the purchase of
TSRS flats in Home
B E Ownership Scheme,
e Privgt_e S(_actor
B Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme
- S (e - Loans for purchase of
Bk other residential
properties
- HAth - Others
TERB{IE 2 SR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong
H oA Trade finance
TERABLIMER Z &K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong
Ea= e Gross advances to

customers

C. Concentration risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2019
A A A FEMRERZ BRI
&R BEZH MBI B ZIRERE R
Gross % covered by Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances collateral impairment impairment
to customers or other security Impaired allowances allowances
AT T BT T AT T AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,948,523 34.74% - - 11,265
2,990,725 74.68% 20 - 10,444
3,714,601 24.46% - - 17,381
1,023,915 7.48% - - 2,123
6,201,435 85.16% - - 6,445
1,510,084 13.47% - - 4,169
635,218 36.93% - - 470
14,440 100.00% - - 20
76,715 5.64% - - 1,076
4,172,343 59.13% 11 - 7,366
34,610 100.00% - - 49
3,322,481 100.00% 3,239 - 2,557
7,803,061 97.51% 187 - 89,501
34,448,151 67.97% 3,457 - 152,866
1,500,565 81.32% 100,339 100,339 2,544
40,118,243 13.50% 192,404 184,529 188,965
76,066,959 39.50% 296,200 284,868 344,375
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S SRR Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(&) (continued)

4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 88 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Flg&EHE (8) C. Concentration risk (continued)

(c) I HEERTEZEF (c) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
R
AR P& 1 The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
HEE T 2R ER S locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
B TF- 2 Frfeit WA R advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
FRESRRE - B E customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

TR ZHE ORI AE I B
R R - AR
RS BYEOR N ZFAEY -

2020
F—KEB
BESE F=RE {52
B SRR AHIERK K BB R B
Stage 3 Stage1 &2
Total advances Overdue Impaired impairment impairment
to customers advances advances allowances allowances
AT AT AT AT EWTIT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
e Hong Kong 45,870,310 921,899 179,617 179,617 279,616
o [ P 3 Mainland China 25,528,684 169,795 100,546 98,893 169,615
FAth Others 6,381,652 2,845 - - 36,049
77,780,646 1,094,539 280,163 278,510 485,280
2019

FRE
BEH BElEE M
& e ST 224 TAEZE TAEER
Stage 3 Stage 1&2
Total advances to Overdue Impaired  impairment  impairment
customers advances advances allowances allowances
BETIT BT BT BMTRT BNTR
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
i Hong Kong 44,810,458 673,783 189,376 188,526 208,876
o [ P 3 Mainland China 26,231,080 117,457 104,751 96,342 118,006
HAit Others 5,025,421 2,073 2,073 - 17,493
76,066,959 793,313 296,200 284,868 344,375
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

JEAE B E o B e G % of impaired or classified advances to total advances to customers
&P SR E L 0.36% 0.39%

JE SR E TR Market value of collateral held against impaired or classified

AR TE advances 37,050 49,458

88




A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.
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(continued)

Sl BRI
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4. GRURREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
D. #ERIEAE(E

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

REFTHET S B
ZHFHEH SAYHES] >
FOEAMBEES R -
Mg E 55 R
A G ES Y - DU
PR (5 B T B B 2 HY Bk
e

AREEF P B REK
HYFE A SR R P P
R B B B 14 EE T
TE o RIS EAE T
TV (LWYEEEEl
)~ HAPSE - HAth s
SCIRAHEE ~ Bl Fal
F (5 FsE S dE R - PR
R F R B [ R s
75 {8 6 75 B Y K
Hb > FESRTT R Hofth <5
PRIHISETE R 0 B
FRIT R B — i
R

FEUSIE] AR B30 s 3k
W AR i AL
TPy B fE RN B A H
AR A - 5%
ST EE S A IR
R AT HAMEE FIAR
Btk 26 ) i el &
JEE RIS Z SB SRR A
el J g Iy > S {5
MR A B R
(B R PR Ay R A
SRR TR -

The Group has established guidelines on the acceptability of various classes of
collateral and determined the corresponding valuation parameters. The guidelines and
collateral valuation parameters are subject to regular reviews to ensure their
effectiveness over credit risk management.

The extent of collateral coverage over the Group’s loans and advances to customer
depends on the type of customers and the product offered. Types of collateral include
residential properties (in the form of mortgages over property), other properties, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits, standby letters of credit and
guarantees. Collateral generally is not held over balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions, and loans and advances to banks, except when
securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.

The Group takes possession of collateral through court proceedings or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers during the course of the recovery of impaired
loans and advances. These repossessed assets are reported in the statement of
financial position within “other assets” (Note 26). If the recovery from the repossessed
assets exceeds the corresponding exposure, the surplus fund is made available either
to repay the borrower’s other secured loans with lower priority or is returned to the
borrower.
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GRS R Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 8RR (8
D. #imRIEALEE (G

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

FrA RFIR R B
R ERVIRIT L > 2
HIRT R ZMWHERE -
PR —8E 7Rl
FEHTRY B 7 Rl S
BT ESS - fHE
75~ IR AR AT S
PR R Y -
2 - (SRR TTRE R
AR BRI
B ER TR AR E
oSk

ISDA 1y &4 AL
B PR R T A2 38 B SR
BhEs > EhuEs
KINEZE > TAE A EINESS
2T REETHET—
IS INEE A 5 TE
By A — R
4 A TESC R E 4%
1B - Bl S48
SHE DTS E AL
HMBWIFTA KRBT
5 o REEINGIESRET
ISDA {1y E&4IAERE -
B ST a TS At
&0 BEIE > FEAR S ETAET
#9757 2 (AT > DR
HERERBLIEN THY
WAE e S T
JEBE:

SR BN AR B TR
PRHOH R YE (I EE
33) AIALEE L Y
ERERARE Al
SHE RS R EREEE
#e I AL G E
Ris B E R
PELH o BN TR
PRHUMAT RS - AR
G U BT
B e AR E
T -

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is
determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible
bills are generally unsecured with the exception of asset-based securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by pools of financial assets. However, the credit risk
may be implicit in the terms or reflected in the fair value of the corresponding
instruments.

The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivatives activity is the ISDA
Master Agreement which covers the contractual framework within which dealing
activity across a full range of over-the-counter products is conducted and contractually
binds both parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding transactions
covered by an agreement, if either party defaults or following other pre-agreed
termination events. It is also common for the Group to execute a Credit Support Annex
in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement with the counterparty under which
collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the market contingent counterparty
risk inherent in the outstanding position.

For contingent liabilities and commitments that are unconditionally cancellable (Note
33), the Group will assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line when there is a
concern over the credit quality of the customers. Accordingly, the exposure to
significant credit risk is considered as minimal. For commitments that are not
unconditionally cancellable, the Group assesses the necessity of collateral depending
on the type of customer and the product offered.
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S BERERMTE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRKEINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL

AIREBREEENSE
(EE e

SERfTRE 2.14 Y EETEL
5 o

ERE R

B TR LR
BRI PREEE 1
TR~ A & A
B &R TSRS . #4
SR B SRR
N CEAIEN PRI
Y - i EiEE B ENE
BRI - R
E:RJiP S gIE S|
EERH -

SHEEY H BV S i EE
AACHERE (5 5 = Ba 2
BB

© BEEE HAVRIERE
Y R QYRR
(PD): }

* FERIAATHERS R
BESEARE PR 2
G PDOFEFAT RCH

#)-

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

See accounting policy in Note 2.14.

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and expert credit assessment.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

+ the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with

+ the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment
expectations).
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S BERERMTE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRKEINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&

EEEEEA

A SRR Y R TH
SR B HE 4 B
&7 R ARIE
FC S E S [F H (5 BT
BER - (EEEBRER
e AR E LR E
PERE BNZARER ©
B LN Z AR R
WSS E/ONCRE

Y o

W EEREERERAE
FTARAE - (HENHEE
e (5 R Y
b =HEEHE & > Bran
EEREBRER 1N 2 2
IR B LY R 72 B N
EEREERER 283 2
IR e = 2 -

HKRERERARIEE
JEU SRR AR R
HRRERIER - 21kl
BT E b
EiMAREERRS
o BFEREE IS RLIT
WARRIEEH] -

Credit risk grades

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data
that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit
judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that
are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the nature of the
exposure and the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring
increases exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller than the difference
between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition based on available
information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which
may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring
typically involves use of the following data.
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(&) (continued)

4. &EiEEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. FEHA(S SELMINEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)
EERESE (&) Credit risk grades (continued)

R ZE i

Corporate exposures Retail exposures All exposures

- EHIREE PMREESNEE - b - NEUENE ST RS - (ERELS: - EfEEIRELUR — %
FETRE - EHEE  THEHESE - K55 FIER L ThRn R

BEERIBIT-40 - TAIER - ST - 5
BEZER B TENE - EHEEE
EAEHE S

+ Information obtained during periodic - Internally collected data on customer -« Payment record — this includes
review of customer files - e.g. audited behaviour — e.g. utilisation of credit card overdue status as well as a range of
financial statements, management facilities variables about payment ratios
accounts, budgets and projections.

Examples of areas of particular focus
are: gross profit margins, financial
leverage ratios, debt service coverage,
compliance with covenants, quality of
management, senior management

changes

- [EESFHIENRES  WEE  SNDE - T EEEERE * BT IRERAY(E ]
SRR

- Data from credit reference agencies, - Affordability metrics - Utilisation of the granted limit

press articles, changes in external
credit ratings

CfERANEENEZANGEEENED - GESFREINTEE - GFETHEEE - TETERY RIS
(CDS) fEig (ALRA) (G

+ Quoted bond and credit default swap - External data from credit reference < Requests for and granting of
(CDS) prices for the borrower where  agencies, including industry-standard  forbearance

available credit scores

 EEAFTRVBUS » B BRI B © R WBEOEIRHIBRA IR K
HZE R g PRI TR B b TEMIEAE

« Actual and expected significant + Existing and forecast changes in
changes in the political, regulatory and business, financial and economic
technological environment of the conditions

borrower or in its business activities
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S BERERMTE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRKEINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD
for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information about its credit
risk exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of product and borrower
as well as by credit risk grading. For some portfolios, information purchased from
external credit reference agencies is also used.

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate
estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to
change as a result of the passage of time.

This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between
changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors as well as in-
depth analysis of the impact of certain other factors (e.g. forbearance experience) on
the risk of default. For most exposures, key macro-economic indicators include: GDP
growth, benchmark interest rates and unemployment. For exposures to specific
industries and/or regions, the analysis may extend to relevant real estate prices.

The Group formulates a “base case” view of the future direction of relevant economic
variables as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios (see
discussion below on incorporation of forward-looking information). The Group then
uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of PDs.

94



A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

S BERERMTE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)
4. SRIEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRKEINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&

REEERBRETRE
i

REEER R E T
WIIRYZERIA R BT &
M > GE R
TE R R E VRN R -

AASRE R HYE 215
HME - EHEERGRE
EHYE R I
METHE RN - RIEH
SOIE B ERIIRI(E S
[\ 5 WIHETER LA E
e -

BFEHH I EE HE
(A ) » AR AH R R
Kl o AEEEIREH
R BRI E E M
R E (5 B R b S
- HHSZ AR Re A
FeBF A5y S WA H
Bt -

TER—TAIRGIR - K
EHRHEEENE R
s 30 RIEH
(S &g B -
R B A s R
FEFIHA F A DA i R U
B S BARRUH R B
E - HEEFIHHEARE
JEE AT REEV{E
BN -

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by
portfolio and include quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, including a
backstop based on delinquency.

The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since
initial recognition if, based on the Group’s quantitative modelling, the remaining lifetime
PD is determined to have increased by more than a predetermined range.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience,
the Group may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in
credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of
such and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis
on a timely basis.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs
when an asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by
counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which
full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without considering any
grace period that might be available to the borrower.
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41 88 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. TS S ELMINEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
FECEREE TS Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly (continued)
wm (8D
AR B A T BRI R The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant
TSR IS S i increases in credit risk by regular reviews to confirm that:

INAVERERY AR - LA

=
o

o B HIRESAT R R L - the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an
IR LRI B(S exposure is in default;
SRR

- HEEHR 30 KA « the criteria align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;
IR LR AR Y and
B —2 5 R

< 12 ([ H Ay E LR « there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month
(551 PEES) fifFsE PD (stage 1) and lifetime PD (stage 2).

IR (5
2 TREY) ZRHHyEER

J R -
Remss s SRhE Modified financial assets
A& G Rl R The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including
EREZE STk 2 Eh e changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a
BFEMSREELE s &5 current or potential credit deterioration of the customer.

JF IR ER DU B3 = B i
SVEAE (B BRI B A
RAHY LA -

A AN REE When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result
R E R e IR in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased
P REERENEE significantly reflects comparison of:

JE\Bg A A B B T AR

B YIRS e

« B HEN B - its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with
TR AR AR BR T4 A
HYELIRER © K

 IRIBVIAAHER IR AYEL - the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the
BRR G EER S original contractual terms.
BRIERFEUIAE
LR -
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Modified financial assets (continued)

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as
forbearance activities) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of
default. Under the Group’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a
selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk
of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under
the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the
revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of
interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and
corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy.

For financial assets modified as part of the Group’s forbearance policy, the estimate
of PD reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the Group’s ability
to collect interest and principal and the Group’s previous experience of similar
forbearance action. As part of this process, the Group evaluates the borrower’s
payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various
behavioural indicators.

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk
and an expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is
credit-impaired / in default. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good
payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer
considered to be credit-impaired / in default or the PD is considered to have
decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Definition of default
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
Group. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has
breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount
outstanding.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group considers indicators that are:

- qualitative — e.g. breaches of covenant;

- quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the
same issuer to the Group; and

- based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their
significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Group for regulatory
capital purposes.
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of
whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and its measurement of ECL. The Group formulates a ‘base case’ view of
the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two or more
additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each
outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the countries where the Group
operates, supranational organisations such as the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (OECD) and the International Monetary Fund, and
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The “base case” represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used
by the Group for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other
scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. Periodically, the
Group carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination
of these other representative scenarios.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit
losses.
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Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

The economic scenarios included the forecast of the following key indicators.

2020 2019

TR A ERE R
TR RN A AR R R
SNE S =S

FREMEHE - FHEE - B
EHREEYEMEEE
BN E

SR SRR
TR G SRR AYRE
s AL T S
RN
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Wi YR AR TR HETT
SFAf - IE LRI AL
NI L EDE 62 )
RERBNEERZE - /£
AHEERT - 5
A AT B RIS 1
ER G ETHELM
e R GH TR
b 3 BEAE R OER 2 Pl
B - RS EHERR

b - BOMFRZRE R
B ERY 4 E A
i & B9 2 A0 R Ak

L

Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate

China Real GDP Growth Rate

China Unemployment Rate

HKMA Hong Kong Loans & Advances

Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index

Hong Kong Private Consumption

-5.9% to 4.7% -1.3% t0 2.6%

2.0% to 7.8% 5.1% t0 5.7%

3.6% to 3.9% 3.6%

4.1% to0 9.4% 3.0% to 5.9%

-0.6% to 5.3% -0.9% to 5.5%

-10.2% to 5.4% -1.8% to 3.0%

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following
variables:
- probability of default (PD);

+ loss given default (LGD); and
- exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models
and other historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as
described above.

PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical
rating models, and assessed using rating tools tailored to the various categories of
counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on internally
compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is
available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for large corporate
counterparties. If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, then
this will lead to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. PDs are estimated
considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates.
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the
claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the
financial asset. For loans secured by retail property, LTV ratios are a key parameter in
determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibrated for different economic scenarios
and, for real estate lending, to reflect possible changes in property prices.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For lending commitments and financial
guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well as potential future amounts
that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is
determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in
time using scenario and statistical techniques.
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for financial
assets for which credit risk has not significantly increased, the Group measures ECL
considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any
borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for risk
management purposes, the Group considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which the Group has the right to require
repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for retail overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment
component, the Group measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Group’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel
the undrawn commitment does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment
structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Group can cancel them with
immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day
management, but only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at
the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk
management actions that the Group expects to take and that serve to mitigate ECL.
These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning the
outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Measurement of ECL (continued)

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

- instrument type;
- credit risk grading;
- collateral type;

+ LTV ratio for retail mortgages;

- date of initial recognition;
+ remaining term to maturity;
+ industry; and

+ geographic location of the borrower.

The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular
group remain appropriately homogeneous.

For portfolios in respect of which the Group has limited historical data, external
benchmark information is used to supplement the internally available data.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the
impairment allowance by class of financial instrument. The reconciliation is prepared by
comparing the position of impairment allowance between 1 January and 31 December
at transaction level.

31 HAE -
2020
12 & B HYFEEA FEEERERN EEREN
EEEE KB THEE KBTI HE &5t
Lifetime ECL
not Lifetime ECL
BFPEK Advances to customers 12-month ECL  credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R1H1TH Balance at 1 January 326,066 18,309 284,868 629,243
e 12 (EHATEE &Rt Transfer to 12-month ECL 646 (646) . .
BRI EE SR EAVA S TEIESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (924) 924 . .
I SEREIRCSTENETS  Transfer to lifetime ECL creditimpaired (648) . 648 .
AR New financial assets originated 209,221 163 . 299,384
T4 FRE I e RiETE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (133,266) (13,209) (105,337) (251,812)
SHoy Write-offs ; ; (131,051) (131,051)
TR Changes in models . . . )
PETREE Unwind of discount of loans impairment loss . . . ;
S s i
4 N R A s Foreign exchange and other movements 5,485 a4 4,685 10,214
BEEFE TR Net remeasurement of loss allowance (19,937) 3,052 224,697 207,812
P12 H31H Balance at 31 December 476,643 8,637 278,510 763,790
2019
12 & H i 7E (S ER(ED EERIER
{EEEA K G TEIRGTR LG TEIRGTR “aEt
Lifetime ECL
not Lifetime ECL
ZEEE Advances to customers 12-month ECL _ credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®1H1H Balance at 1 January 139,832 17,599 189,268 346,699
2 12 {[E B Ve S EE Transfer to 12-month ECL 191 (191) } )
T EE S REAVA S TaRIESHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (9,722) 9,722 B} B
BEEFUREI TR Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired (291) (11,506) 11,797 -
P AR New financial assets originated 208,291 149 - 208,440
AU R Financial assets that have been
derecognised (41,630) (377) (69,260) (111,267)
=Y Write-offs - - (27,019) (27,019)
TSR Changes in models i} ) . i
e Ol Unwind of discount of loans impairment loss _ i 3.414 3.414
NS R A Foreign exchange and other movements 400 (110) (4,403) (4,113)
TR EEF R Net remeasurement of loss allowance 28,995 3,023 181,071 213,089
MW12H31H Balance at 31 December 326,066 18,309 284,868 629,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Trade bills

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Trade bills

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@ANTEY JEMEERENKE EERENKS
(Ed=T Fic TSR hizt-tl i &t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
3,926 - - 3,926
4,491 - - 4,491
(3,926) - - (3,926)
234 - - 234
(234) - - (234)
4,491 - - 4,491

2019

12 @AMEY  FMEERENSS EERENAS
(B=ii! TSR THIFETE Hat

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,624 - - 1,624
3,733 - - 3,733
(1,624) - - (1,624)
(58) - - (58)
251 - - 251
3,926 - - 3,926

105



A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

S B aeRITE
(8

4. CREREE (8)

41 EEEE (8D

E. TEHAERRKEINAR

(&

BEREFRR (8D

LU ER AR (55857 e

e

TEiked

B1H1TH
i 12 {E BT E BSR
T HE SRR B T

R (EER(EA R S TR

AR RIEE
EA R ERIAE

S

s
SN R A
SR

W12 31 H

DLBBRPASINE Y (RS AR
tekit

BR1HA1H
2 12 {E B ITETHE BSR
T EE SR EA A B TSR

TR EER(E RS THIER

HTE AR
EA R ERIAE

e
)

SN )
S

Mw12 31 H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at amortised cost

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at amortised cost

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@RNTE JMEERENGS FEERENSS
(B 5| TR TREESE &5t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1,798 - - 1,798
(271) - - (271)
5 - - 5
2,068 - - 2,068
3,600 - - 3,600

2019

12 @AMEY  FMEERENSS EERENAS
E5EHE THEETE THEIRR dast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
334 - - 334
41 - - 41
(16) - - (16)
(13) - - (13)
1,452 - - 1,452
1,798 - - 1,798
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@RNTE JMEERENGS FEERENSS
(B 5| TR TREESE &5t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
26,400 - - 26,400
(8,169) - 8,169 -
19,353 - - 19,353
(13,587) - - (13,587)
278 - - 278
9,019 - 336,172 345,191
33,294 - 344,341 377,635

2019

12 @AMEY  FMEERENSS EERENAS
E5EHE THEETE THEIRR dst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
14,428 - - 14,428
9,344 - - 9,344
(4,986) - - (4,986)
(144) - - (144)
7,758 - - 7,758
26,400 - - 26,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Balances and placements with
central banks, banks and other
financial institutions

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Balances and placements with
central banks, banks and other
financial institutions

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@RNTE JMEERENGS FEERENSS
(B 5| TR TREESE &5t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
484 - - 484
1,916 - - 1,916
(482) - - (482)
13 - - 13
@ - - (7
1,924 - - 1,924

2019

12 @AMEY  FMEERENSS EERENAS
E5EHE THEETE THEIRR dast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
325 - - 325
485 - - 485
(318) - - (318)
(8) - - (8)
484 - - 484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Other financial assets

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020
12@RNTE JMEERENGS FEERENSS
(B 5| TR TREESE &5t
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
306 - 735 1,041
1 - 27 28
(1 - (40) (41)
- - (10) (10)
1" - 36 a7
3,982 - (361) 3,621
4,299 - 387 4,686
2019
12 ([HHMER JMERRENSS EEEESES
E5EHE THEETE THEIRR dst
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
120 - 1,305 1,425
- - 175 175
- - (960) (960)
(12) - (9) (21)
198 - 224 422
306 - 735 1,041
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts
issued

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts
issued

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2020

12@RNTE JMEERENGS FEERENSS
(B 5| TR TREESE &5t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
26,802 1 - 26,803
33,530 - - 33,530
(6,004) (1) - (6,005)
] - - (]
(2,677) 1 - (2,676)
51,644 1 - 51,645

2019

12 ([HHMER JMERRENSS EEEESES
E5EHE THEETE THEIRR dast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
8,427 22 - 8,449
Q) 1 - -
14,049 - - 14,049
(1,551) (22) - (1,573)
(21) 1 - (20)
5,899 (1) - 5,898
26,802 1 - 26,803
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4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiEREk 4.2 Market risk

735 B\ 2 15 R Rl i 55 (H A%

(B ~ FIR ~ PR SRR ~ P in
{ERS ) BN EEGRITHNE ~ Fl 2~
W RO A R B (L L B LT
HREAS A SR BN ARAUIRE - A5
B ERAUE TSR R - '
BB B R P o TR
EHEYEL > BRI AL
W e R S S A S R SRS K
5 50 2 A JE B B A P A AE B
EHTE > AOEMAEEEER
T REREAERY TSRS - (e E

AR g IR e b B A SR E A
JFRE TSR - RS R
WEEZAE - SR
REHD Bl - & EIH > S A
- R B EA T SR
EHEERRA - ihesEE
JEIETT H AR - A
LR 6 T 8 R DL B
HEERAIIRESEEITIE N - WHECR
e U181 31 Py T 455 e £ 42
TEATREZ A B KPA -

RERTTEE A T 55 E e Fe A R PR
B R SR BRI
AT o S fE AR
HEEERRNEREE - 18
B R ~ BRI U
Mo - EREERIEEEAIIRER
GUE LR E ) Ry =(EE 4 - 7>
I EREHEZ R - SRR
G R B RS H A - 2R
15 B AL 0 R AE AL 1 35 R e
TR R A PR E TS -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a
balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing market risk is to
secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective management of potential
market risk in the Group's business, according to the Group's overall risk appetite and
strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well- established risk management
regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. RMD is mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market
risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the Group, and
ensuring that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.

The Bank sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RC, CEO Executive Meeting and the General
Manager of RMD respectively. Business units are required to conduct their business
within approved market risk indicators and limits.
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SEEIBERZEREE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 HigEkE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
A EfRE A. VAR
AERATER o (2 — The Bank uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
TG e » 17 7 A e o 5 2 senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
ZEEGNSHEE RS A calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
EEHRAS%—EEEST = market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with
TR 5 4 R SR AR DL a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.
ERIFRE L TS i
FFE99% EE/KE N 1R
FrA ISR ErE G E
A B R (PR AT -
NREEMUARSR T — R T 5 The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure' of the
bR a RS E - Bank.
i E=xid 24 24
M 12F31E REEE SEERE  PIRE
Minimum Maximum
At 31 for for Average for
Year December the year the year the year
BETIT BT BETT  BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ST 2 SR VAR for all market risk 2020 1,980 776 2,097 1,677
2019 793 73 798 426
PR i 2 JE B VAR for foreign exchange risk 2020 1,980 776 2,097 1,677
2019 793 73 798 426
TR a2 JE\ s E VAR for interest rate risk 2020 - - 2 -
2019 - - 1 -
i Note:
1. R B RS 5 4 N 45 R 1 ik 1. Part of structural FX positions have been excluded.

LRz (L ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR (continued)

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events
may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
extreme in nature;

the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Bank recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

B. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly the
HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used
to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between
assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps)
are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign currency-denominated

assets and liabilities.

The Group had the following net structural positions which were not less than 10% of
the total net structural foreign currency position at the end of the reporting period:

2020

AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

e
us

NG B
Total
foreign

Dollars Renminbi currencies

Net structural position

1,925,020 2,171,063 4,096,083

2019

BT ITHE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

ES

us
Dollars

PN
Total
foreign

Renminbi currencies

Net structural position 1,933,901

1,691,215 3,625,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk

FE R R R AR EE R
SRS R S E R S R BT ]
AEE R T R AU MO (E (E
HRSZAREAYEE - AR
bR IE EZR A &SRR - 4518
PERFEH T SRR R R
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L B YR PR 1507 ol R 9 3
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b -
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Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions
are:

- gap risk: gap risk is the risk arising from the changes in the interest rates
on instruments of different maturities. The extent of gap risk depends on
whether changes to the term structure of interest rates occur consistently
across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel
risk);

- basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the
yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period; and

- option risk: option risk arises from interest rate option derivatives or from
optional elements embedded in an authorised institution’s assets, liabilities
and / or off-balance sheet instruments, where the authorised institutions or
its customer can alter the level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk
can be further characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural
option risk.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with the “Banking
Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by the Board. FMD is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of
Financial Markets Department, FMD assists the ALCO to perform day-to-day
interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the
formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of
risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk
management reports to the senior management and the RC, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

SEBERRIE (8)

4. GRURREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 R (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. FlZmpx (&)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, price value of a basis point
(PVBP), net interest income sensitivity ratio (NII), economic value sensitivity
ratio (EV), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into different levels,
which are approved by the RC, CEO Executive Meeting and the General
Manager of RMD accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to
conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of
the adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on
interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted
to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage
to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two indicators to
monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
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2020
-z =
—ERN =EA +=ER —ZAf HEHME et Hst
Non-
Upto1 1t0 3 3to12 1t0 5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
AT AT AW B¥Te B¥T BNt BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 20,078,836 - - - - 2,892,996 22,971,832
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - 7,384,601 55,697 - - - 7,440,298
Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 140,505 140,505
Advances to customers and
trade bills 47,929,386 11,237,761 13,767,410 2,671,492 2,734,092 - 78,340,141
Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL - 9,552 95,518 72,633 60,525 62,599 300,827
— securities designated at
FVTPL - - 15,880 199,779 147,541 - 363,200
— securities at FVOCI
8,287,698 7,584,871 12,830,277 20,078,403 - 20,854 48,802,103
— securities at amortised
cost - 665,328 340,152 345,521 - - 1,351,001
Investment properties - - - - - 153,620 153,620
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 2,044,562 2,044,562
Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets) 34,935 - - - - 1,571,349 1,606,284
Total assets 76,330,855 26,882,113 27,104,934 23,367,828 2,942,158 6,886,485 163,514,373
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (14,604,011)  (2,085,395) (1,981,301) - - (1,896,928) (20,567,635)
Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (75,396) (75,396)
Deposits from customers (47,951,252) (34,802,381) (26,507,551) (4,442,405) - (8,869,442) (122,573,031)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (167,326) (13,862) (58,980)  (145,210) (13,105) (2,005,528)  (2,404,011)
Total liabilities (62,722,589) (36,901,638) (28,547,832) (4,587,615) (13,105) (12,847,294) (145,620,073)
Interest sensitivity gap 13,608,266 (10,019,525) (1,442,898) 18,780,213 2,929,053 (5,960,809) 17,894,300
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months
Derivative financial
instruments
Advances to customers and
trade bills
Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL
— securities designated at
FVTPL

— securities at FVOCI

— securities at amortised
cost

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2019
—% =%

—fEARN =Ed  +=EA —=AF  HfFME TR “Eat

Non-

Upto1 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
BETIL BT BNt BTt BITIT BWTL  BWTC
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
13,924,513 - - - - 4,311,475 18,235,988
- 3,506,091 1,313,121 - - - 4,819,212
- - - - - 122,133 122,133
53,135,176 9,958,833 12,747,625 1,118,133 27,124 - 76,986,891
12,536 55,340 20,549 53,407 6,318 - 148,150
- - - 214,401 156,206 - 370,607
4,753,137 7,967,402 9,618,909 22,380,635 - 27,183 44,747,266
- 705,422 93,230 843,745 - - 1,642,397
- - - - - 237,150 237,150
- - - - - 2,021,072 2,021,072
21,917 - - - - 501,998 523,915
71,847,279 22,193,088 23,793,434 24,610,321 189,648 7,221,011 149,854,781
(7,543,112)  (1,559,588) (6,348,801) - - (2,295,962) (17,747,463)
- - - - - (40,361) (40,361)
(44,942,074) (31,812,183) (34,016,778) (1,849,932) - (3,670,467) (116,291,434)
(315,413) (11,162) (50,251)  (153,885) (17,106) (1,104,717)  (1,652,534)
(52,800,599) (33,382,933) (40,415,830) (2,003,817) (17,106) (7,111,507)(135,731,792)
19,046,680 (11,189,845) (16,622,396) 22,606,504 172,542 109,504 14,122,989
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group

The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi in terms
of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2020, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward /
downward shift of the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been HK$36,700,000 (2019:
HK$28,100,000) higher / lower. The impact on reserves would be insignificant.
The sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the interest rate exposure for major currencies in banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

i
12 5 31 HEE
Impact on positions
at 31 December
2020 2019
BFIAEE Earnings perspective BT AT
HEER Scenarios HK$°000 HK$'000
TR R Up / down 100 basis points parallel shift in
AT BRSNS 100 BB HK dollar yield curves 182,000 / (182,000) 173,500 /(173,500)
ErE R heE Up / down 100 basis points parallel shift in
ST B TEE 100 SR US dollar yield curves (500) / 500 (51,000) / 51,000
NERWEZE S R Up / down 100 basis points paralle! shift in
AT RS TR 100 Sk Renminbi yield curves (144,800) / 144,800  (94,400) / 94,400

SR R AR R
B EIECEARIR ) T Y IE
YRR S AR M A L
FIFATIE B REH B Ryl EF)
AR w] RE PR AU R BRI R 1T
By~ PG THTARE  FrE T
BEETERI A Rk HIEERT
B HBENHETE HAZERK
RHEIIH Z AR R -
Beti: Ny SRV N S e
FR R By — o5 -

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several
assumptions, including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest
rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge accounting, all positions being
assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of products in which
actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to
act as the Contingent Term Facility.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the
liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability.
Deposits from customers are the Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure
stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group actively attracts
new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary funding
from the interbank market. According to different term maturities and the
results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group
adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank
placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate
funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The
Group is committed to diversify the use of funds and sources and tenors of
funding to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent
triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem
occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has established
intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage the liquidity
funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance
of funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity
risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments,
derivatives, options and other complex structured products. The Group has
an overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity
management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day
liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan. Where necessary, in order
to mitigate liquidity risk, the Group could take different mitigation actions
which include, but are not limited to sales of bonds in the secondary market,
funding from interbank market or repo in the money market, attracting new
deposits and keeping the core deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by the Board. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Markets Department to assist the
ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratio
(LCR), net stable funding ratio (NSFR), loan-to-deposit ratio, maximum
cumulative cash outflow (MCO) and liquidity cushion. The Group applies cash
flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at
least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various
severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information systems such
as Assets and Liabilities Management System and Basel Liquidity Ratio
Management System are developed to provide data and the preparation for
regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the
HKMA, the Group has implemented behaviour model and assumptions of
cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis
under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under
normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-balance
sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future
cash flow based on contractual maturity date and the assumptions of
customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes
MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum cumulative net
cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess
if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in
order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December
2020, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding
marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative cash
flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK4,614,063,000 (2019:
HK$8,400,908,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined
crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retail,
wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-
related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer loans;
and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31 December
2020, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under the three stressed
scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing needs under
stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable
securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector
entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate with a corresponding
external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even under stressed
scenarios. As at 31 December 2020, the liquidity cushion (before haircut) was
HK$19,425,985,000 (2019: HK$24,625,303,000). A contingency plan is being
established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant procedures and
responsibility of various departments.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis.
During the year of 2020, the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than
100%.

The NSFRis calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2018, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate NSFR on consolidated basis. The
Group is required to maintain a NSFR not less than 100%.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting

HEHEHH o347 date to the contractual maturity date.
HNERHE EE
K AfEHEELEE
H 9 eles BA PR 53 % -
2020
—& =z REEE
B —EAR =@A +=@A —EHEF HFEUEL HEA &gt
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to5 Over 5
On demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETIT BT BT BT B¥TIT  B¥TT B¥TT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BiE Assets
EFRE RFTGSRIT R Cash and balances with
Hofth 4 Bl R 45 R banks and other financial
institutions 5,217,582 15,903,303 - - - - 1,850,947 22,971,832
T R 1T R EHoAth 4 Rl i % Placements with banks and
—ZE+ Tl BN EH other financial institutions
> EHAERL maturing between one
and twelve months - - 7,384,601 55,697 - - - 7,440,298
it =N Derivative financial
instruments 95,385 631 22,621 1,391 20,477 - - 140,505
P R 5 Advances to customers and
trade bills 18,474,079 2,378,205 5,333,036 24,329,934 22,208,667 5,616,220 - 78,340,141
A Investment in securities
— SREIMEDL AN B b — securities mandatorily
NIFRE#5% measured at FVTPL - 585 10,517 95,851 71,503 59,772 62,599 300,827
— FERDANEHES ST — securities designated at
NIFRE 7 #6% FVTPL - 610 1,210 17,434 197,959 145,987 - 363,200
— DIONHAESE s A= At — securities at FVOCI
S 2 5855 53,212 6,188,368 3,759,443 14,905,206 23,875,020 - 20,854 48,802,103
— DI A HE 585 — securities at amortised
cost - 6,291 632 426,171 917,907 - - 1,351,001
& YIE Investment properties - - - - - - 153,620 153,620
WIS ~ 250 R R A Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 2,044,562 2,044,562
HEE (HFEEIFRIE  Other assets (including
LR EFRTEE FE ) current and deferred tax
assets) 987,203 448,857 123,327 21,208 - - 25,689 1,606,284
KRG Total assets 24,827,461 24,926,850 16,635,387 39,852,892 47,291,533 5,821,979 4,158,271 163,514,373
i=li4 Liabilities
SRIT R oA S Rl > Deposits and balances from
TR GE e banks and other financial
institutions (4,406,596) (12,094,343) (2,085,395) (1,981,301) - - - (20,567,635)
TSR T E Derivative financial
instruments (13,360) (5,670)  (26,758) (2,761)  (26,847) - - (75,396)
F PR Deposits from customers ~ (40,680,848) (16,139,846) (34,802,381) (26,507,551) (4,442,405) - - (122,573,031)
HAMBETE R4 (s Other accounts and
AN R IE Ry MR AE R I provisions (including
&) current and deferred tax
liabilities) (422,344) (1,217,258) (66,855)  (400,594)  (145,210)  (13,105) (138,645)  (2,404,011)
=i b Total liabilities (45,523,148) (29,457,117) (36,981,389) (28,892,207) (4,614,462)  (13,105) (138,645) (145,620,073)
RENE SRR Net liquidity gap (20,695,687) (4,530,267) (20,346,002) 10,960,685 42,677,071 5,808,874 4,019,626 17,894,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis (continued)
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2019
—% =% FHEE
BiEE —EAN =EH +=fEA —EAF  HEMLE HHA “EEt
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT AT BTt BT BTt BT BN AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 6,104,131 10,633,966 - - - - 1,497,891 18,235,988
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one
and twelve months - - 3,506,091 1,313,121 - - - 4,819,212
Derivative financial
instruments 87,106 5,259 6,763 14,805 8,200 - - 122,133
Advances to customers and
trade bills 16,224,011 3,202,383 6,801,934 23,734,721 22,269,514 4,754,328 - 76,986,891
Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL - 12,814 50,971 20,615 57,468 6,282 - 148,150
— securities designated at
FVTPL - 613 1,215 1,770 212,356 154,653 - 370,607
— securities at FVOCI
- 3,740,834 4,382,640 10,141,356 26,455,253 - 27,183 44,747,266
— securities at amortised
cost - 8,437 1,598 135,038 1,497,324 - - 1,642,397
Investment properties - - - - - - 237,150 237,150
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 2,021,072 2,021,072
Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets) 145,840 230,619 144,323 304 - - 2,829 523,915
Total assets 22,561,088 17,834,925 14,895,535 35,361,730 50,500,115 4,915,263 3,786,125 149,854,781
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (4,530,452) (5,308,622) (1,559,588) (6,348,801) - - - (17,747,463)
Derivative financial
instruments (6,246)  (15,683) (1,045) (5,799)  (11,588) - - (40,361)
Deposits from customers  (27,832,051) (20,780,489) (31,812,183) (34,016,778) (1,849,933) - - (116,291,434)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (581,226)  (371,590)  (51,439)  (292270)  (153,966)  (17,025)  (185,018) (1,652,534)
Total liabilities (32,949,975) (26,476,384) (33,424,255) (40,663,648) (2,015,487) (17,025)  (185,018) (135,731,792)
Net liquidity gap (10,388,887) (8,641,459) (18,528,720) (5,301,918) 48,484,628 4,898,238 3,601,107 14,122,989

A LB R TRl
W, EE - WINEARE
TRE S W B
e WA ZEET R
I 2 R Oy AR A
1 o FLAAREI 2 5y
1T 48 AR5 R 6 S R
oY e RHSIRZ B
AT B {0 A B 24
(arg) -

The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities which have
been overdue as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is
reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to
the residual maturity. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if

any.
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(continued)
4. &EiEEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
A3 FEELERE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. #A&NEHIBE ot Z RITER B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
BER
(a) JEFTETEZHER (a) Non-derivative cash flows
T ENE T AR 12 The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December
A 31 B2 amma for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.
LR ELIEIIAH YR
ZHER -
2020
—F =%
—EARN =EA +Z®EA —EAHE HEUE dEst
Up to 1t0 3 3to12 1t0 5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BT AT AT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
= Financial liabilities
$RIT R Hh 4 Fif% Deposits and balances
W 12 R 4B 6 from banks and other
financial institutions (16,508,806)  (2,096,275) (2,011,615) - - (20,616,696)
& PR Deposits from customers (56,828,247) (34,870,066)  (26,684,489) (4,852,496) - (123,235,298)
Hitrai e Other financial liabilities (1,592,607) (15,147) (210,367) (145,210) (13,105) (1,976,436)
SRE U Total financial liabilities (74,929,660) (36,981,488)  (28,906,471) (4,997,706) (13,105) (145,828,430)
2019
—F =%
—EAR ={EA +=EH —EAHF FELLE HEE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to 5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BT AT AHTIT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SRIERE Financial liabilities
$RTT R HAth 4 Fif% Deposits and balances
W 12 R4k from banks and other
financial institutions (9,841,190)  (1,567,829) (6,465,183) - - (17,874,202)
& PR Deposits from customers (48,633,964) (31,946,437)  (34,451,129) (2,138,214) - (117,169,744)
= Other financial liabilities (759,801) (15,108) (137,267)  (153,966) (17,025)  (1,083,167)
SRE R Total financial liabilities (59,234,955) (33,529,374)  (41,053,579) (2,292,180) (17,025) (136,127,113)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an
asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are
disclosed at fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and
currency swaps.

2020
—& =
—EAN =@EA +=@ER —ZEAFE AFUE Hst
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BETT BETIC BT B%TT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
fFEAALRELEH 2 Derivative financial
e S =Yi= liabilities settled on a
net basis (14,415) (4,325) (9,787) (12,456) - (40,983)
AR ALEGEH 2 Derivative financial
iR T R instruments settled on a
gross basis
Total inflow 5,448,549 7,748,929 1,532,786 - - 14,730,264
Total outflow (5,453,529) (7,754,352) (1,538,816) - - (14,746,697)
2019
—F =%
—{E@ARN ={EH +fEA —ZEHF AFME dEst
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BWTT  BWTT BRI BRI BB
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FB 4RSS > Derivative financial
e =Yt liabilities settled on a
net basis (6,583) (1,617) (1,491) (8,336) - (18,027)
FUEEE RSS2 Derivative financial
TR TE instruments settled on a
gross basis
RN Total inflow 2,201,560 2,054,737 4,109,610 - - 8,365,907
QR Total outflow (2,221,216) (2,047,317) (4,093,243) - - (8,361,776)
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(continued)
4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
43 mErEsERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. #&EIHH S 2 2T B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

Benm (&)

(c) BEEMEERINEE (c) Off-balance sheet items
ERURHE Loan commitments
HRAAEER 2020 4 12 The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
H 31 H&E PR E RS instruments as at 31 December 2020 that the Group commits to extend credit
& R H A RE >~ T I 2R to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$13,508,335,000 (2019:
TH » HO%S s HK$12,132,223,000).
13,508,335,000 T (2019
o 12,132,223,000
JC) °
FA TS HE R R HA A T il Financial guarantees and other financial facilities
AEEE 2020 /£ 12 H 31 Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
H 2 WA 1538 (R e oA B 75 December 2020 amounting to HK$708,155,000 (2019: HK$505,653,000) are
Bl&E & OB B K maturing no later than one year.

708,155,000 5= (2019
4 1 505,653,000 7T )
HEHAH DA —4F -
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(continued)

SEBERRIE (8)

4. GRURREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BEREH 4.4 Capital management
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The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the
Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Group’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio requirement. The ALCO
monitors the Group’s capital adequacy requirement. The Group has complied with
all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in
respect of banking operation as further elaborated below:

In prior years, the Group adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”)
approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-
securitisation exposures. Since 1 October 2020, the Group has adopted the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach to calculate all the credit risk capital
charge. The Group continues to adopt the standardised credit valuation adjustment
(“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty.

Since April 2020, the HKMA has approved the Group to adopt the standardised
(market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate general market risk capital charge for
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and exclude part of our Group’s CNY
structural FX positions in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The
Group continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to
calculate the market risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (STO) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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SEBERRIE (8)

4. GRURREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREHE (B

4.4 Capital management (continued)
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The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (ICAAP) to comply with the HKMA'’s requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2020. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar I,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges
for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group
considers this ICAAP as an ongoing process for capital management and
periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation
to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted
to the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well
as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is determined
and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains
adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its business
development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk, return and
capital adequacy.
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SEBERRIE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

5. REMGENAPE
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It
also includes properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to
ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all other
significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include verification of
observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models and changes to
models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed market
transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant
valuation issues are reported to senior management, RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker / dealer quotations to determine
the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market
quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held
by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are
mostly observable and obtainable from open market.
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SEBERRIE (8)

5. KEMABNAPE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
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The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
technique that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount rate
or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market for
instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts
are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models. The inputs can be observable or
unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest rate, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less commonly
traded option products which are embedded in structured deposits. For certain
complex derivative contracts, the fair values are determined based on broker /
dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”)
are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market
factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future values of exposures, default
probabilities and recovery rates.
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SEBERRIE (8)

5. REMAENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 DAHEETENS# TR (8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A NPERIFE

A. Fair value hierarchy

2020
gES FER FE=EN Rt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BTt AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SRERE Financial assets
s DA PE B LE AJEZS Investment in securities
sk ([ifEE 23) mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss (Note 23)
- [HEHEE I - Debt securities - 238,228 - 238,228
- Tk - Certificates of deposit - - - -
- frass - Equity securities - 62,599 - 62,599
HE BN ESE( L AIELS Investment in securities
rass ([fEE 23) designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
- BB - Debt securities - 363,200 - 363,200
PR T E (FFEE21) Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) - 140,505 - 140,505
DLASEEE LR A M A UL Investment in securities
HHEES (M 23) measured at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- EHET - Debt securities 2,064,144 37,988,869 - 40,053,013
- TPk - Certificates of deposit - 8,728,236 - 8,728,236
- BenEEsF - Equity securities - - 20,854 20,854
2,064,144 47,521,637 20,854 49,606,635
SRaE Financial liabilities
PR T AR (FEE21) Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21) - (75,396) - (75,396)
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SEBERRIE (8)

5. REMAENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 DAHEETENS# TR (8

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A NFHEIES (8) A. Fair value hierarchy (continued)
2019
BoEs ETESR EEER HEst
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SRERE Financial assets
s DA PE B LE AJEZS Investment in securities
sk ([ifEE 23) mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss (Note 23)
- EHET - Debt securities - 89,739 - 89,739
- kS - Certificates of deposit - 58,411 - 58,411
- BefnEE sz - Equity securities . - - _
HE BN ESE( L AIELS Investment in securities
rans ([fEE 23) designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
- EBETF - Debt securities - 370,607 - 370,607
e TE (FfEE21) Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) - 122,133 - 122,133
DAASEAEZLET AT M A UL Investment in securities
HHEES (M 23) measured at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- EHET - Debt securities 6,966,205 32,313,573 - 39,279,778
- TPk - Certificates of deposit - 5,440,305 - 5,440,305
- RS - Equity securities - - 27,183 27,183
6,966,205 38,394,768 27,183 45,388,156
B == Financial liabilities

Preef TR (flEt21)

A S EE B EUFUNE
PR B

Z R (2019 4 & fE) -

Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

- (40,361)

- (40,361)

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 for the Group during the year (2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

P VASE ik (e N e i
ZEREE

Financial assets at FVOCI

EpRgs Befrag s St
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
BT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2020 - 27,183 27,183
Losses
— Other comprehensive income
— Change in fair value - (6,329) (6,329)
Purchases - - -
Sales - - -
Transfer out of Level 3 - - -
At 31 December 2020 - 20,854 20,854
PLAHE S et AH A ST
2 BRERE
Financial assets at FVOCI
G fetrg 77 Hat
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2019 - 21,465 21,465
Gains
— Other comprehensive income
— Change in fair value - 5,718 5,718
Purchases - - -
Sales - - -
Transfer out of Level 3 - - -
At 31 December 2019 - 27,183 27,183

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, financial instruments categorised as level

3 are mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares.
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SEEMBREmENEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
5. EEMAENARE (&) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
51 DAREENSRTE (&) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
B. E=B4AVEBE ST (8) B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

FE TR HERY A E RIS BUZAR The fair values of unlisted equity shares are estimated using the
W T7 #Y N L R 4 discounted cash flow model, on the basis of an analysis of the investee’s
R FEAEFR G REA S SE financial position and results, or with reference to multiples of comparable
oI ELEEY BT AT 2 P TE listed companies, such as average of the price / earning ratios of
SRR S At comparables or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are not
EhiRy A E - Al H&EE S ERE available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price / earning ratios
TE o A PEELE SR 2 Tk of appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value
LR A B HEFE LR of the underlying equity investments increased / decreased by 5%, the
4 o BB TS Group’s other comprehensive income would have increased / decreased
BT/ 5% RIS H by HK$1,043,000 (2019: HK$1,359,000).

il < AT & e B D s
1,043,000 7T (2019 4 : Mg
1,359,000 7¢) -

A BEEIREIZESH TR
Valuation technique Significant unobservable Range
Input(s)

FE BT PEE( LG A | EEFE B! N
FHWGEIIRAS TR
Unlisted equity instruments at | Net asset value Not applicable Not applicable
fair value through other
comprehensive income

BB A= E(IES 17.20%

Discounted cash flow model Discount rate (2019: 11.69%)
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e BRI (8)

5. REMAENAHE (8)

5.2 JEDIAPEET BRI SR TR

O3 PR SR DAE— R B IR B2 AR R
SRR A [ 2 TR 2 B ARG
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RERGY Z B REE R ARG
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HEEEK

Kby 2 & F B GEFEfE
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DUk p AT B (F T A

R FH DABRLISE St 3R o 40 A 3 TR
SR 2 ) 38 Ry kR B A B B < e A5

RIEHE -

B EEH

REy 2B FEARRER AR —
FEANEN > FAREEENFEME -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value

of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with / from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from
the end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value

approximates fair value.

Debt securities at amortised cost

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve

appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the

end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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EEBEEEE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
5. EEMAENARE (&) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.2 JELIAPESENESMTE (&) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
Bz DA_E IR AME BB A R Rl The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
THEAN  FEREIELLA T ES 2898 instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying
T EZARAEERIAEE - values being approximation of fair values.
2020
RRTE AHE
Carrying value Fair value
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
DLBkeRCAST EHYEE 5 Investment in securities measured at
(F2E 23) amortised cost (Note 23) 1,351,001 1,364,469
2019
WRIAME AHE
Carrying value Fair value
BT BT
HK$ 000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
DI A G EHIEE Investment in securities measured at
(IFEE23) amortised cost (Note 23) 1,642,397 1,661,545
TRIIRCHEH A FEA SR The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
BZ AN ESER - fair values disclosed.
2020
F—EEk = 1 B=E%R 4T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AETIL  BWTIT ARTIT  ARTT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000

SEEE Financial assets
DB ER ARG AT 75 Investment in securities measured
at amortised cost - 1,364,469 - 1,364,469
2019
E—TEk FE B B=EH 45
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HERTT AT HRTIT HERTIT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEEE Financial assets
DeR AT 20755 Investment in securities measured
at amortised cost - 1,661,545 - 1,661,545
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI ()

5. REMAENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value

5.3 DA ER BHFESRIERE

AR L ERMT BT
5 (B AR R IE JF 2 Bl EE R P
1B -

BB R

REE 2 7y BA BV
E - FrAAEE SR B E
CAEEE TR - A2 {EH
IR IR RA T R AT AR
ONEVHERT  HA RS ENEA
BEHAREEE BN EETAER
ZAB o AR EYIZETER I K
TEME A A o S E R
RILEEAETI > AR g
PRI BTSSR A5 (5705 - e
Ffli{E45SR © (HETTENERGA
O JRELREE R

(i) R E R
EITEREZR

Wy By 2E @ ah Z 2
E - TS E AR T
S BRI E (LR ) B4
%%ﬁ%ﬁi& FAER (4

NEARE)  HEHEELEEE X
el s 2 R 72 B E
R o WERBEEEE
AR T RN E A -

AIEE 2 VB AT R
M FERE > e RS R
FOEWIRIYIFETS - ATEEERY)
EZHERE - mSHeRER
(bR I fE IS T L
E R RS -

(i) HWzE=
B

WO I Ry 2R = R R AT AL )
SEZ N PEPI SR TSI
U AEAE  FHEAEEY)
SEARE T EL2E 2 M F
I (AR EE A E

PN VEETRIVE

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market
to determine the fair value of non-financial assets.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff
Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change
in valuation methods during the year and the methods used are consistent with
last year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either
the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach by reference to
market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect the
differences between the comparable properties and the subject properties.
These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales
price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are
generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
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SEEIABEREREE (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. BEEMAEINAYEE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DIAHESTBAESRIEE (8) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

WEYEE EE Investment properties and premises
(i) ARESE =B FEENE (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
wh )
PUR B B A HER SRS The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
MRS =R REEYIZEFT value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as
BRI E )7 A R AR AT follows:
ZRFE -
(EY=Wapzs EARNBIZEHEE hnkESE N AT ZE R 2R BN AR R R
Valuation method Significant Weighted Relationship of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs average to fair value.
THGLLEDEE | YIS Al EhE S -5.37% (B A ER -
W AE AL Lz (HE) (2019: 5.10%) The higher the premium,
Market comparison Premium / (discount) on the higher the fair value.
approach or income features of the property
capitalisation compared to comparable rigtm » A PEBYE -
approach properties The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.
VISEAR B AL E I E | Premium / (discount) on features of the property is determined after taken into
w8, (HrfE) Ty 5] account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
LN ERZE EAYE accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with
S PIaNpscte 2z i EEE) - reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.

(i~ (RN~ IR0
J& ~ Hif -~ fiREFEE -

A AFENER A. Fair value hierarchy
2020
Rk S_REH E=EHR i
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETon BT BT A%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JESRIEE Non-financial assets

rEsE (M 24)
VI ~ Sbt Rkt (It 25)

- B

FEREE
B (M 24)

VI - db Rt (IffsE 25)

- BE

REFZIEERMEENTRNE
AE BRI G
5% (2019 4F @ 4% ) »

Investment properties

(Note 24) - - 153,620 153,620
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 25)

— Premises - - 1,706,828 1,706,828

- - 1,860,448 1,860,448

2019
s EES FEEER “s
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BETIT BT BT BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Non-financial assets
Investment properties

(Note 24) - - 237,150 237,150
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 25)

— Premises - - 1,707,835 1,707,835

- - 1,944,985 1,944,985

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for
the Group during the year (2019: Nil).

139



A A8 H

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.
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SEBERRIE (8)

5. REMAENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DA HER BHFESRIERE (&)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

B. FE=EHRHTHEEH
2020

JEEREE

Non-financial assets

Y - B R
Properties, plant
and equipment

KB BE
Investment
properties Premises
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 237,150 1,707,835
Wrzs,” (E518) Gains / (losses)
- sz — Income statement
- BEE AT — Net loss from fair value
7 FEsiE adjustments on
investment properties (7,330) -
- HEfhiFEZFEE — Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - (239)
— HAthr e mEas — Other comprehensive
income
- BB — Revaluation of
premises - (58,186)
e Depreciation - (23,192)
HE Additions - 4,410
A =gk Transfer into Level 3 - -
EEC Ay Reclassification (76,200) 76,200
PR S22 H Exchange difference - -
2020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 153,620 1,706,828
#2020 412 A 31 HERAT Total unrealised losses for
JEERE ENFENE AU the year included in income
TR e statement for non-financial
K T assets held as at 31
December 2020
- BEMENPEAE — Net loss from fair value
SR adjustments on
investment properties (7,330) -
— EiEEIFEE — Net loss from revaluation
of premises - (239)
(7,330) (239)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

5. REMAENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 UIAHER BAFEEREE ()

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. E=BRAVHEED (8

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
2019

JEREE

Non-financial assets

LUE &4 )
Properties, plant
and equipment

B B
Investment
properties Premises
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
7201941 H1H At 1 January 2019 233,350 1,696,410
Wit~ (58D Gains / (losses)
- sk — Income statement
- BEYZEN T — Net gain from fair value
ZFU AR adjustments on
investment properties 4,846 -
- EFEZFEE — Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - 2,794
— HAthr e ms — Other comprehensive
income
- BEEM — Revaluation of
premises - 27,006
e Depreciation - (22,528)
HE Additions - 3,107
A =@ Transfer into Level 3 - }
BT Reclassification (1,0486) 1,046
PR S0 7E2H Exchange difference - -
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 237,150 1,707,835
J/* 2019 4F 12 H 31 HEFAN Total unrealised gains for the
JEEFEFE N FENE AUL year included in income
P O N b e e statement for non-financial
) o assets held as at 31
December 2019
- BEMEANFEFES — Net gain from fair value
TP adjustments on
investment properties 4,846 -
- Bl EEZF — Net gain from revaluation
of premises - 2,794
4,846 2,794
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(continued)
6. JFEFIRUTA 6. Net interest income
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FIRUCA Interest income
TF O [E] 2 Fe EoAh < i A 1y Due from banks and other financial institutions
FOH 224,508 378,279
IS S Advances to customers and trade bills 2,638,468 2,753,187
HARE Investment in securities 980,139 1,071,164
HAr Others 2,880 5,517
3,845,995 4,208,147
FIESTH Interest expense
B 2% H i e B E 02 Due to banks and other financial institutions
T (175,228) (151,730)
Z R Deposits from customers (1,949,565) (2,030,662)
HE&E Lease liabilities (8,360) (5,207)
oA Others (524) (1,975)
(2,133,677) (2,189,574)
R EUCA Net interest income 1,712,318 2,018,573

FELLA T EBLET AfBm 2 & Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$3,816,961,000 (2019:
Tl 7 AL <5 il 2 58 T E AR B A HK$4,192,248,000) and HK$2,133,677,000 (2019: HK$2,189,574,000) for financial assets
BUZ AR F) B 7 55 Bl Ry s and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
3,816,961,000 7 (2019 4 :

2 4,192,248,000 JT) K ikiE

2,133,677,000 jT: (2019 4 : #

iz 2.189,574,000 7T ) -
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SraBERMTEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

w

7. FRBEENFESKA 7. Net fee and commission income

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
RBE RASIA Fee and commission income
Fr Insurance 141,239 175,423
e L Securities brokerage 115,087 74,216
el Loan commissions 423,120 285,575
eI Payment services 29,083 33,677
PEZE < Bills commissions 22,440 14,641
REE Safe deposit box 20,463 19,849
e Funds distribution 8,193 7,789
HA Others 75,339 56,084
834,964 667,254
& RAESSTH Fee and commission expense
sHARaRan Securities brokerage (17,231) (12,540)
Hofl Others (14,310) (11,716)
(31,541) (24,256)
B ERASWA Net fee and commission income 803,423 642,998
HpRE Of which arise from:
JELAANHEELET AR 2 Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
ERE E e A E through profit or loss
- IRFE B AU A - Fee and commission income 445,561 300,217
- BE e - Fee and commission expense (272) (261)
445,289 299,956
SRl MM ZEEEE) Trust and other fiduciary activities
- eBsE AU A - Fee and commission income 6,886 6,704
- ARFSE R e - Fee and commission expense (1,665) (1,358)
5,221 5,346
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

8. Net trading (loss) / gain

2020 2019
AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

Net (loss) / gain from:
Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products (43,903) 32,448
Net gain / (loss) on investment in securities
mandatorily measured at fair value

through profit or loss 4,314 (300)
Interest rate instruments (5,297) (6,257)
Commodities 304 50

(44,582) 25,941

9. Net gain on other financial assets

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000

Net gain on investment in securities measured
at amortised cost 5,997 -

Net gain on investment in securities measured
at FVOCI 306,638 69,778
Others (366) (289)
312,269 69,489

10. Other operating income

2020 2019
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

Dividend income from investment in securities
- Unlisted investments 2,171 4,437
Gross rental income from investment properties 4,513 6,631
Incomings in respect of investment properties 227 255
Others 2,329 992
9,240 12,315

There are no direct operating expenses included in the outgoings in respect of investment
properties related to investment properties that were not let during 2020 (2019: Nil).
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SraBERRMTEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

w

1". FEEE SR 11. Net charge of impairment allowances
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BEER R E g Advances to customers and trade bills 255,715 312,622
BHEE Investment in securities 352,754 13,593
FERIAT ~ ST R A Balances with central banks, banks and other financial
RS ER institutions 1,427 159
Hr e E Other financial assets 3,608 597
HEAERIN Off-balance sheet 24,849 18,374
638,353 345,345
12. BT H 12. Operating expenses
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
NEEH (BEEEME) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- EBN R H A - Salaries and other costs 696,510 580,415
- BIREA - Pension cost 33,693 33,209
730,203 613,624
FE Rk R aLkg Premises and equipment expenses
) (excluding depreciation)
- FEMS - Rental of premises 59 80
- EERHY - Information technology 12,102 9,546
- Hfth - Others 11,105 13,676
23,266 23,302
#re8 (BffEE25) Depreciation (Note 25) 123,170 95,565
- BRWEE - S R - Owned properties, plant and equipment 37,909 31,529
- [FFRE&E - Right-of-use assets 85,261 64,036
T AT < Auditors’ remuneration 4,194 6,315
- FEaT RS - Audit services 3,406 2,793
- JEREETHRS - Non-audit services 788 3,522
HoAn & T H Other operating expenses 239,390 206,104
1,120,223 944,910

13. LEYENEEFHE  13. Net (loss) / gain from fair value adjustments on investment
ZzE (B /i properties

2020 2019
BT HTIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
AN RS Net (loss) / gain from fair value adjustments on
¥R s investment properties (Note 24)
(if3E 24) (7,330) 4,846
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14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Net (loss) / gain from disposal / revaluation of properties, plant and
equipment

2020 2019
AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings (8) (1)
Net (loss) / gain on revaluation of premises (Note 25)

(239) 2,794
(247) 2,723
Taxation
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 106,965 146,318
- Under-provision in prior year 4,631 24
111,596 146,342
Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 89,704 79,979
201,300 226,321
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 29) (24,364) 5,048
176,936 231,369

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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15. Taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in another
jurisdiction

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Under-provision in prior year

Additional tier 1 capital securities dividend payment
Foreign withholding tax

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount

2020 2019
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

1,020,196 1,493,937
168,332 246,500
18,660 41,767
(24,202) (52,424)
23,726 12,478
4,631 24
(16,793) (16,976)
2,582 -
176,936 231,369
17.34% 15.49%
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Cr e B ERRMTEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
16. BERZAFIR 16. Dividends and Distributions
(i) PEEAE R AT B R (i) Dividends payable to equity holders attributable to the previous financial year,
FERE approved and paid during the year
2020 2019
ST L T k]
Per share* Total Per share Total
B BT bt AT
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
AR AL K S B Final dividend in respect of
TEREREARE S the previous financial
year, approved and paid
during the year 0.2 373,650 80 298,920
*2019 45 H 30 HiE » A * With effect from 30 May 2019, every one issued share in the capital of the Bank was
SRITREA TS 1 REST subdivided into 500 subdivided shares (the “Share Subdivision”), the dividend per
R R4l By 500 B AR share for the period ended 31 December 2020 was calculated by reference to the
(TR el ) > BE issued shares after the Share Subdivision.
2020 = 12 H 31 HikHA
IRy R S A%
TR DETE -
(i) ARFEAAIE BT REFI (i) During the year, amount paid on perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier
— B FE S IR 1 capital securities is HK$101,776,000 (2019: HK$102,882,000).

Fy A5 ¥ 101,776,000 T
(2019 4F : H#H owx
102,882,000 7y ) »

148



A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

SEMBERRKE (8

17.

18.

BB A

AEEELE AL B TR SE
PETHEZE g Gaiteie]) T
O Z B SHE AR R G H Rz o SR ORank
Zysaiieat 8 o B RESERIRGT
# - B AR R GBI H
R AR £ 2 5% > L
R B R B EAR H 2 5%
E15% % (R B ZRFBE
H1) - (B S RERRIR ~ FERTR RS
{8 FH & 11 B IR B 4 i 104E 21
LLEZEEN N UCHI100% 2 (8 £ 1
A BB R EN R T - [RE
I PRI L IS (B
BRoN) - ATUEB0% E90% 7 & 3
oK - R EBRURZ (GRAMEAT
T HIERET) FIFR -

WE% CamsEiRpl) 120004£12H
1VH B - A SEEIR 2B SRR
fi Zsafiest#] > Zat#l o ZeeA
Fo T aRE S B R ek (E b A IR &
H] > SR EE R PRI R
WAEEHARAE -

£ 202059125 31H > FHIREY
H#eil2810,0007T (20194F : 4k
713,0007¢ ) QUi iz R
NP S
14,701,000 77 ( 20194 : 4y
14,892,0007T ) » ifi AEE FH [ 74
St B EE A4 B
7,058,000 7T ( 20194F : 493
6,317,0009¢7) »

HEME

Rk (EBATIRG) (F6225)
36381 R /A El (RBEFFIGE
D ) AR A B AR T
A AT R 5 T
2 RS R SR 2 B
BT

HREE
HoA
- BAHT R R
- BB AEAL
- Hfth (EFRERREETO

AEERE N PRI T H R
2 B x4 R 752,360,000 7T
(2019 : 12,604,000 ) -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

18.

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions are subjected to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-
Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$14,701,000 (2019: approximately
HK$14,892,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$810,000 (2019: approximately HK$713,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$7,058,000 (2019: approximately HK$6,317,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation. Details of the emoluments paid
to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for
the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as
follows:

2020 2019

BT AT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Directors’ fees 4,370 4,314
Other emoluments

- basic salaries and allowances 8,160 9,410

- discretionary bonuses - 17,429

- others (including pension contributions) 3,273 2,951

15,803 34,104

Fees of HK$2,360,000 (2019: HK$2,604,000) were paid to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year.
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19. EEHSEERERTT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

P &AL R
(i
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
73R Cash 216,230 281,478
fFI R LR TR R Balances with central banks 3,909,384 5,591,532
FETERAT B L Ath <5 Fb A S Balances with banks and other financial
A4S ER institutions 2,942,926 1,729,013
TESRT S HoAth SRl — Placements with banks and other financial
&l 5 N2 B HE institutions maturing within one month 15,903,903 10,634,047
22,972,443 18,236,070
TRAE S Impairment allowances
- TS - Stage 1 (611) (82)
- B TISEL - Stage 2 - -
- HEIEE - Stage 3 - -
22,971,832 18,235,988

20. fEERfT R EHAr&Fit% 20. Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing

B—=+_EA A7 between one and twelve months
RAZ EHATFIR
2020 2019
BT HEETTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETRERTT B Eo A< R A% G Balances with banks and other financial
—Z+EARNEHEZ institutions maturing between one to twelve
TEHATEIT months 7,441,611 4,819,614
NEqIER Impairment allowances
- TS - Stage 1 (1,313) (402)
- JHE IS - Stage 2 - -
- R =FEE - Stage 3 - -
7,440,298 4,819,212
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21. Derivative financial instruments

21. TESRTE

AR HET PR R M FA R 074 B
TEAOFEE ERER A -

=

Elizéz

WA AR AH— B E 54

-
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/

o

g
e

aur

3

TN R R R R AR [FIBR A
AR o BRI AR A B 5OR ]
R (AEEMREDFER) 5L ERY
FrA4HE - PRI SN - 34

SNERIRER IR IRV T ()T B
B (FAT) RIVERARF:—REH
HHER AR —E R P AT E AT (E AR R
(RO ) S (RUEHIE) —
Bt Ay TEAVRER (MIEEGE) /Y
— T - BREESNEFERE R -
FERYEE 5 (e B T WL —EAVIIREZE -
AR SR B T S M i
EERRBUE B B FETT (AR 2 it
ITEHEZHARE) -

REEZTA SR TR G4/ &I
FHEHEFIIN TR - S SR T
BIES) HEBEEER R
KARTERZLGE  E T2 LA
ZEL]/ ZEBEAR M T — (8
ARIER N BT ERR Y B 2 SR (R PR
SHELAVELEE - (B2 - B RIRATS K
HIARARAIR S s AR 2 PE - AT
A RE R AR E AT G A (5 S b 2
Gk - BEEAENTE S T RS
BRI PR ST S FRA I E - TR
e LENSETTREEEAF (EE)
BAAH] (B AUZE > BB BTt
FEA [FIARIA BORA T E) -

REEHET SN SIS T BRI S
FEEAEREE TR - ARREE
R ESE TSR AT A A B R
R A A S Iy 25 A o e LR
FHE -

PTARE SR E A B B SR TRV A 2
b > RASEAE L A EEA YT
AT PTG - BIPTAE SRS
EELE RV AR A1 S AR IR P2
WAHIET A AR IR - SR A b
LG HRCER AN 28 > LU 745
T TISHEIE s R

The Group enters into exchange rate and interest rate related derivative financial
instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller
(writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy
(a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a
specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-
counter between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock
exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract / notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract / notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the end of the reporting dates and certain of them provide a basis for comparison
with fair values of instruments recognised on the statement of financial position.
However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates or market interest rates relative to their
terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the
notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the
maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and
control.
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract / notional amounts and fair values of each class

HIN2ANMBHZ &8 /% of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
FEEE RN AE
2020
B8/ 2HEEEH AVE
Contract / Fair values
notional HE =i
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PEFREGEY Exchange rate contracts
BTHA K A Spot and forwards 961,017 97,298 (15,142)
8] Swaps 14,096,968 22,146 (32,726)
SRS ZHRE Foreign currency options
- E AR - Options purchased 8,351 23 -
- H R - Options written 8,351 - (27)
15,074,687 119,467 (47,895)
ESEES| Interest rate contracts
st Swaps 1,678,689 21,038 (27,501)
16,753,376 140,505 (75,396)
2019
s e eyt
Contract / Fair values
notional - {z3 A
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PEFREGEY Exchange rate contracts
BTHA K7 2t Spot and forwards 1,170,736 88,544 (7,427)
8 Swaps 8,017,633 25,361 (21,307)
SN ZHRE Foreign currency options
- HANARE - Options purchased 1,571 6 -
- B - Options written 1,571 - (10)
9,191,511 113,911 (28,744)
IESSES| Interest rate contracts
st Swaps 2,143,257 8,222 (11,617)
11,334,768 122,133 (40,361)
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22. ZEERREEE 22. Advances to customers and trade bills

2020 2019
BT HERTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
{EPNEE Personal loans and advances 13,616,426 12,045,683
NEIERK Corporate loans and advances 64,164,220 64,021,276
HPEK Advances to customers 77,780,646 76,066,959

B P EORE Advances to customers impairment allowances
- T - Stage 1 (476,643) (326,066)
- B TISEL - Stage 2 (8,637) (18,309)
- SR - Stage 3 (278,510) (284,868)
77,016,856 75,437,716
5 Trade bills 1,327,776 1,553,101

5 IR R E AR Trade bills impairment allowances

- ETEE - Stage 1 (4,491) (3,926)
- B TISEL - Stage 2 - -
- HEIEE - Stage 3 - -
1,323,285 1,549,175
78,340,141 76,986,891

A20204E12H31 H B & E As at 31 December 2020, advances to customers included accrued interest of
I E =1 F] 2 A #2180,337,000 T HK$180,337,000 (2019: HK$237,214,000).

(2019 4F : %% 237,214,000

JC)°
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(continued)

23. Investment in securities

2020
BEIMDAE  AERMUAT PN isk:-]
HELEAR EBGEIAR (EEAEMmE DlgkarmA
28 5SS wm2EEs  EBREEZER rEZHER 4=t
Investment in
securities Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities securities at
measured at designated at fair value Investmentin
fair value fair value  through other securities at
through profit through profit comprehensive amortised
or loss and loss income cost Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Certificates of deposit:
- Listed in Hong Kong - - - - -
- Listed outside Hong Kong - - - - -
- Unlisted - - 8,728,236 - 8,728,236
- - 8,728,236 - 8,728,236
Debt securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 82,522 40,027 6,094,516 1,013,552 7,230,617
- Listed outside Hong Kong 152,637 175,632 4,752,932 120,910 5,202,111
- Unlisted 3,069 147,541 29,205,565 220,139 29,576,314
238,228 363,200 40,053,013 1,354,601 42,009,042
238,228 363,200 48,781,249 1,354,601 50,737,278
Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 - - - (3,600) (3,600)
- Stage 2 - - - - -
- Stage 3 - - - - -
- - - (3,600) (3,600)
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 238,228 363,200 48,781,249 1,351,001 50,733,678
Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 51,535 - - - 51,535
- Listed outside Hong Kong 11,064 - - - 11,064
- Unlisted - - 20,854 - 20,854
Total equity securities 62,599 - 20,854 - 83,453
300,827 363,200 48,802,103 1,351,001 50,817,131
Analysed by type of issuer
as follows :
Sovereigns - - 18,872,423 - 18,872,423
Public sector entities - - 1,513,178 - 1,513,178
Banks and other financial
institutions 51,256 347,320 23,433,969 799,529 24,632,074
Corporate entities 249,571 15,880 4,982,533 551,472 5,799,456
300,827 363,200 48,802,103 1,351,001 50,817,131
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23. Investment in securities (continued)

Certificates of deposit:
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Debt securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Impairment allowances
- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3

Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit

Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Total equity securities

Analysed by type of issuer
as follows :

Sovereigns

Public sector entities

Banks and other financial
institutions

Corporate entities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2019
BHIELIATE  FERLUAF LUASE{E S
EE(LEE AR EEETAE EEtAHMS DIgEERRA
i L O %t ZFS S THIW 4 Z 5657 FHEZEE R et
Investment in
securities  Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities  securities at fair
measured at  designated at value through
fair value fair value other Investment in
through profit ~ through profit comprehensive securities at
or loss and loss income amortised cost Total
HIETIE ST BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
58,411 - 5,440,305 - 5,498,716
58,411 - 5,440,305 - 5,498,716
59,248 39,959 8,963,966 1,106,571 10,169,744
30,491 174,442 10,428,704 252,093 10,885,730
- 156,206 19,887,108 285,531 20,328,845
89,739 370,607 39,279,778 1,644,195 41,384,319
148,150 370,607 44,720,083 1,644,195 46,883,035
- - - (1,798) (1,798)
- - - (1,798) (1,798)
148,150 370,607 44,720,083 1,642,397 46,881,237
- - 27,183 - 27,183
- - 27,183 - 27,183
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
- - 19,912,275 - 19,912,275
- - 1,415,230 - 1,415,230
81,983 354,282 18,623,804 912,851 19,972,920
66,167 16,325 4,795,957 729,546 5,607,995
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
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(continued)

23. Investment in securities (continued)

At 1 January 2020

Additions

Disposals, redemptions
and maturity

Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

Impairment allowances

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Additions

Disposals, redemptions
and maturity

Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

Impairment allowances

At 31 December 2019

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

2020
BEELAT RERUAT  UATES
EHELFAR EELEAR EPAREME DEERRAE
WZH wZ#Er EHlEmZEEF FRZES &t
Investment in Investment in
securities securities  Investment in
mandatorily designated at securities at
measured at fair value fair value Investment in
fair value through  through other securities at
through profit comprehensive amortised
profit or loss and loss income cost Total
AT BT T AT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
556,668 - 79,716,573 - 80,273,241
(410,971) - (76,635,834) (303,135) (77,349,940)
3,281 (106) 54,580 (1,022) 56,733
4,314 (6,319) (166,254) - (168,259)
(615) (982) 1,085,772 14,558 1,098,733
- - - (1,797) (1,797)
300,827 363,200 48,802,103 1,351,001 50,817,131
2019
BHEIMLAT SUEBLAT  DIATESE
EELET AR EELETAE st A DUEERECA
BIEE RZEF  EWEZESR  AHRZEE wat
Investment in
securities  Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities securities at
measured at designated at fair value Investmentin
fair value fair value through other  securities at
through profit  through profit comprehensive amortised
or loss and loss income cost Total
BT AT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 364,604 26,592,001 1,670,901 28,627,506
150,492 - 77,786,627 134,954 78,072,073
(2,594) - (59,950,084) (150,000) (60,102,678)
985 (104) 266,651 1,194 268,726
(300) 7,307 320,578 - 327,585
(433) (1,200) (268,507) (13,175) (283,315)
- - - (1,477) (1,477)
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
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24. &Y 24. Investment properties
2020 2019
AT HHTIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
w1H1H At 1 January 237,150 233,350
NEE (R s Fair value (losses) / gains (Note 13)
QS ERED) (7,330) 4,846
B EE R - BB R Reclassification to properties, plant and
e (K 25) equipment (Note 25) (76,200) (1,046)
12 H 31 H At 31 December 153,620 237,150
&Y 2 IR EE R FHLIF The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
EREAMR AT - the leases as follows:
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEEEE Held in Hong Kong
RIAHEY (8 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 144,920 228,250
EEBLINTE Held outside Hong Kong
HHHTHZT (10 2% 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 8,700 8,900
153,620 237,150
#2020 12 5 31 H » 71 As at 31 December 2020, investment properties were included in the statement of financial
BRI TN EY) position at valuation carried out at 31 December 2020 on the basis of their fair value by an
2 JHRIBEI R AT independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
FE5HI BT AR A TR represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly
2020 4 12 H 31 ALNFE transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

B R AR AE T T 2 A
B - N PEEETEE R
TEA TR BT 5 T [ T
L2 EENEEHEY)
SENERUSIER -
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25. W - B3 25. Properties, plant and equipment

202041 H1HZ
AT FE

e

e

Hfl

IR (i 12)

R R
Ik 24)

[ 52 224

#2020 4E 12 H 31 HZ
R

2020412 A 31 H
FERAE
e

Rl e SO E

742020 £ 12 A 31 H~
FRIEFE

Net book value at
1 January 2020

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 24)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2020

At 31 December 2020
At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2020

158

R Bt ~ EE
HiE FE  RREE et
Right-of-use Equipment,
assets of fixtures and
premises Premises fittings Total
AETIT  AB¥TT AETIT EBETT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
71,917 4,410 41,836 118,163
(368) - (8) (376)
- (58,425) - (58,425)
(85,261) (23,192) (14,717) (123,170)
- 76,200 - 76,200
10,200 - 898 11,098
236,571 1,706,828 101,163 2,044,562
358,100 - 205,823 563,923
- 1,706,828 - 1,706,828
358,100 1,706,828 205,823 2,270,751
(121,529) - (104,660) (226,189)
236,571 1,706,828 101,163 2,044,562
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25. Yy - BB KEEHS  25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)

20191 51 HZ
IRHLHE

JEE FH 7 2 A %5 i AR I
55 16 SRAVEHEE

WE

e

Hfh

FEHTE (M 12)

HH o BEEEREYE
(F¥E 24)

e

HR20194 12 31 H>
HRIHHE

2019412 4311
FERCAE
fEAG{E

Rt e SO E

2019412 A 31 H>
FRIEFE

Net book value at
1 January 2019

Adjustment on initial application of
HKFRS 16

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 24)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2019

At 31 December 2019

At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2019

159

JEEfE I BefH ~ EIE
HiE JREE  EiE R dEst

Right-of-use Equipment,

assets of fixtures and
premises _ Premises fittings Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
- 1,696,410 42,159 1,738,569
117,730 - - 17,730
188,005 3,107 40,111 231,223
- - (71) (71)
- 29,800 - 29,800
(64,036) (22,528) (9,001)  (95,565)
- 1,046 - 1,046
(1,616) - (44) (1,660)
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
295,876 - 164,607 460,483
- 1,707,835 - 1,707,835
295,876 1,707,835 164,607 2,168,318
(55,793) - (91,453) (147,246)
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
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25. Y2 - BB EEHE 25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
(&)

B MRTAME e H AR R I The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
PROPHTATR follows:
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EFEEEAE Held in Hong Kong
FIHAFHEY (8 50 1) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,257,828 1,252,635
HHEATESY (10 422 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 410,700 416,200
EEEDINTE Held outside Hong Kong
AT (&8 50 1) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 33,000 33,700
HR AR (10 4% 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 5,300 5,300
1,706,828 1,707,835
2020 4= 12 H 31 H - %] As at 31 December 2020, premises were included in the statement of financial position at
M BIRNERNZ FE > T valuation carried out at 31 December 2020 on the basis of their fair value by an
iR 2V RO =i S independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
EEIfTARAER 2020 £ represents the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction
12 H 31 HPLAE AR with market participants at the measurement date.

FiEfT < H2EAhE - N PE
T HEEARFK
HIEI T R TS 2EE
TG —IHE E ERUSRY (#E

F& o
g bl EfhsER - FE As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
(EEEE TN S EE R recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and income statement as follows:
SRS FRMETSAIT -
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(fge) /ExEEEGE (Charged) / credited to premises revaluation
- FREHE reserve, gross of tax (58,186) 27,006
EEEEZE (B I Net (loss) / gain on revaluation of premises
s (fffaE 14) (Note 14) (239) 2,794
(58,425) 29,800
#2020 £ 12 § 31 H » & As at 31 December 2020, the net book value of premises that would have been included
o R EEAE A EHTR BE T T in the Group’s statement of financial position had the premises been carried at cost less
B ROREBATIR - AEEE accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HK$515,312,000 (2019:
I ERNR N B 2 R HK$443,569,000).

moF EE R OE W
515,312,000 j¢ (2019 4 :
s 443,569,000 7T -
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(continued)
26. Hfh&eE 26. Other assets
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEE Precious metals 65,179 54,525
g lol & E Repossessed assets 122,324 144,240
TEUCRETE K TE{Z Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,378,479 325,551
1,565,982 524,316
TUE AR Impairment allowances
- HEEPEE - Stage 1 (4,299) (306)
- PR T EEY - Stage 2 - -
- HEEIEE - Stage 3 (387) (735)
1,561,296 523,275
27. ZEER 27. Deposits from customers
2020 2019
BT AETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
IR B AL ARAT R Demand deposits and current accounts 10,065,280 7,634,868
REEK Savings deposits 30,394,687 19,524,084
TEHA ~ JEHA R AT ER Time, call and notice deposits 82,113,064 89,132,482
122,573,031 116,291,434
28. HAnAEIE & Ef# 28. Other accounts and provisions
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
oA (T HRIE Other accounts payable 1,923,601 998,403
THE AR Lease liabilities 238,449 237,823
HEff Provisions 11,000 10,054
2,173,050 1,246,280
SR K EN R HH ReR 2 Impairment allowances of loan commitments
TRAE A and financial guarantees contracts issued
- TR - Stage 1 51,644 26,802
- RIS - Stage 2 1 ]
- HEE=FEE - Stage 3 - -
2,224,695 1,273,083

161




A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

GaVEEEME  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

W

720201 51 H
et (HRD) Wiaatk
(BfE15)

BRCHA T
bEST A=A

#2020 £ 12 A 31
H

H2019FE1H1H

fEsCiE R
(BffEE15)

ErEC A S s

S

#2019 4212 H 31
H

29. RIEFRIE 29. Deferred taxation
RERIEEIRBEE BT Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
HANE25% T FTEH 5 bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
B pLA E AR B SR unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12, “Income Taxes”.
B AR o %5 2 PO MR T E
W 2 B I P 2 e R A
FATR TR AR -
W IR IR N 2 IR AL T The major components of deferred tax liabilities / (assets) recorded in the statement of
Bfn/ (&E) TEEE financial position, and the movements during the year are as follows:
DUR HARFEFEN 2 S EhA
T
2020
oEHTE
i BEEM W TR HA gt
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation revaluation Losses  allowance Others Total

BETT B¥TIL B¥TT BT BB BB
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2020 26,426 224,540 (390) (42,017) (25,524) 183,035
Charged / (credited) to
income statement

(Note 15) 3,496 9,302 (75) (37,087) - (24,364)
Credited to other

comprehensive income - (11,068) - - (30,471) (41,539)

Exchange difference - - - (3,741) 413 (3,328)

At 31 December 2020

29,922 222,774 (465) (82,845) (55,582) 113,804
2019
sk s i I -
wfaE  BEEf e TR{E HoAth Hast
Accelerated
tax  Premises Impairment
depreciation _revaluation Losses allowance Others Total

AT BT ENTET BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2019 23,753 222,601 (713) (45,825) (70,871) 128,945
Charged to
income statement
(Note 15) 2,673 86 309 1,980 - 5,048
Charged to other
comprehensive income - 1,853 - - 45,347 47,200
Exchange difference - - 14 1,828 - 1,842

At 31 December 2019
26,426 224,540 (390) (42,017) (25,524) 183,035
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29. RIERIE (&)

29. Deferred taxation (continued)

EAEERER R TRIE
HE AR A R
AR ARSI e [ — P B
e > AITRTRHE A ARV AR AE
T 2 B R A LT & (I
AR - NIIFE BRI
WYIIRZ %1 TEt ANEE
e

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

2020 2019
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000
BIAIIEE R Deferred tax assets (23,499) (640)
IR TE A (S Deferred tax liabilities 137,303 183,675
113,804 183,035

30. A . Share capital

e R A A R IR U
EESIREAIRE - WAEHR
TR FEE G LR -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Bank's residual net assets.

2020 2019
idrg 4| BT dp dE| T
Number of Number of

shares HK$’°000 shares HK$’000

B1HE1H At1 Jan_uary 1,868,247,500 3,245,980 3,368,247 1,772,988
L THEZE Shares issued 349,988,500 3,331,891 368,248 1,472,992
By dr AT B2 Effect of share subdivision - - 1,864,511,005 -
#12H31H At 31 December 2.218.236,000 _ 6,577,871 1.868.247.500 _ 3.245980

HRIEE A (AFRET) 55135
1k > ARERTTAYE i e e 22
HE - LA A
AR EAMDREAILLA - 3
AL SR TR R G i —
—EEIT TG - FTA S
AT SRTT R ER & 7 U7 Iy
HraiE%E -

A RT3 12202049 H 29
H -~ 104310 ®12H28H®
R DUFRSER9.52T
AR E TR - 51K
fic €72 20204£9 H 29 H #&47
203,994,800 [ ~ U HY H#& 5
1,942,030,496 7T » 552 7 fip
£ 1> 2020 4E 10 A 31 & 17
10,504,200 f& ~ Ui Hy 3 h
99,999,984 7T K 55 3 7 it &
#2020 ££ 12 28 H & 17
135,489,500 [ ~ i Hil 3 4
1,289,860,0407T -

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary
shares of the Bank do not have a par value. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
assets.

The Bank passed the resolution on 29 September, 31 October and 28 December 2020 to

issue new shares at HK$9.52 each to its
203,994,800 shares was issued with a
September 2020, the second allotment
consideration of HK$99,999,984 on 31
135,489,500 shares was issued with a
December 2020.
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SFE M BRI
(&)

W

3. FIMREATR

31. Additional equity instruments

2020 2019
BB AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
2.5 [BEEITLKAIERFTREK US$250 million perpetual non-cumulative
BN E RS subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 1,937,712 1,937,712

AERITR20174:11 29 H
AT T EEE25EFEIT
(HOBRMH B ST AR SR
{E#5%51,938,000,0007T )
HYR AR BT KBRS —
Py (THINEAL
B )e Mok ABINEA TR
20224211 H 29 H i {# 12
FiE (] AT > SRR
TEN5.25% - EEIFARATT
(CHME[OTRE > SEE AR
I E NG LA IR B
oL 2 S SR A A 2
FATRE TR -

ERFEEFIRMA A
FITHEMRBEZEINEA
T HAYRRGR E HCHAE
B0 MHUHIFER g R
T -

B & o B AT A
P BT A R4
B ZEYNEAR T AR
e G S i
REEZHAG S T HEFTH
B -

1420225211 529 H £
HgmREH  ASRTHER
i [ R i B P R B Y
BYNEATLR BHEZES]
B R s RIPIR A -

20204522 H 11 H 24
HE 5 ARk E ILERNE AR
T E | E#1£50,907,000
IR A #450,869,0007T -

On 29 November 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional
tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$250 million
(equivalent to HK$1,938,000,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.25% coupon until the first call date on 29 November
2022. The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not
redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would become
non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
29 November 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as
set out in the terms and conditions.

During the year, the coupons of this additional equity instruments were paid with the amount
of HK$50,907,000 and HK$50,869,000 on 22 May 2020 and 24 November 2020
respectively.
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W

32. 4TS HERMEE  32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) BRAEATERAI BRI AT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to operating cash inflow

KBHS 7MY before taxation
R
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
el Profit before taxation 1,020,196 1,493,937
BN EE Net loss / (gain) from fair value adjustments on
B (U2) investment properties 7,330 (4,846)
HE EEYIE - 6 Net loss / (gain) from disposal / revaluation of
FeasfsestE (U properties, plant and equipment
) 247 (2,723)
HEAEFMEZE Interest on lease liabilities 8,360 5,207
reg Depreciation 123,170 95,565
B AT Net charge of impairment allowances 638,353 345,345
JEEHAH 8 3 EH >~ Change in balances with banks and other
TENLERAT B EcAth financial institutions with original maturity
RS AE R E) over three months (615,528) (982,756)
JFEEHIH 8 3 EH >~ Change in placements with banks and other
TESRTT R At e Rl financial institutions with original maturity
T e HRTTL > S8 over three months 985,805 539,001
TR T A ) Change in derivative financial instruments 16,663 (2,360)
KEEHRRESHEES Change in advances to customers and trade
) bills (1,608,965) (27,365,223)
a8 Change in investment in securities (2,018,958) (16,394,127)
HAth &~ EE) Change in other assets (1,041,629) (68,513)
SRAT R HoAtr <Rl Change in deposits and balances from banks
TPl et 2 ) and other financial institutions 2,820,172 5,814,193
B2 ) Change in deposits from customers 6,281,597 37,961,919
M BRTE f HE > 5 Change in other accounts and provisions 925,392 270,575
PSR ) SR Effect of changes in exchange rates (141,837) 17,689
W ATACE RS A Operating cash inflow before taxation 7,400,368 1,722,883
s e R et Cash flows from operating activities included:
BFE
— B E — Interest received 3,916,154 3,937,309
- EffFIE — Interest paid (2,408,325) (1,868,326)
- U E — Dividend received 2,171 4,437
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2. SFERSRERNEE 32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(&)
(b) IREMEFHRSTEHE (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
ot
2020 2019
BT T A TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EFRE REFIHIHE 3 Cash and balances with banks and other
AN FisR T R E financial institutions with original maturity
R R4S R within three months 19,809,461 15,689,145
EEHEAIEHE 3 [EANZAE Placements with banks and other financial
SRAT B Hofthr 45 Rl b A > institutions with original maturity within
R three months 6,117,853 2,509,536
FEFEHHHE 3 AN Debt securities with original maturity within
%5 three months 4,070,683 2,404,986
FEEIHHE 3 AN Certificates of deposit with original maturity
e within three months 1,284,877 586,132
31,282,874 21,189,799
(c) HLEEBIR TS (c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of financial position
&
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
[ 4 R R R AT R B Cash and balances with banks and other
M4 BRI 45 a8 financial institutions (Note 19)
(FfFEE19) 22,971,832 18,235,988
TESRTT R HoAth < mb f s — Placements with banks and other financial
LT ANEEZ E institutions maturing between one and
BAfFR (KTEE 20) twelve months (Note 20) 7,440,298 4,819,212
HHREE Investment in securities
H q: a8 1] P DL S Of which: securities mandatorily measured
gLzt A at fair value through profit or loss
6 %‘s securities 238,228 148,150
H EP CFLE B DLASE Of which: securities designated at fair
B Lt AB value through profit and loss
Ee ﬁ 363,200 370,607
H EP DUASEEEA Of which: securities at fair value through
HAEM W other comprehensive income
Pl 48,781,249 44,720,083
oo EERY kA A Of which: securities at amortised cost 1,351,001 1,642,397
LSRR ES R Amount shown in the consolidated statement
B of financial position 81,145,808 69,936,437
B RABE S 3 @A Less: Amounts with an original maturity of
LRy %E beyond three months (48,011,987) (47,248,747)
oL ZIRE TR S Ay g Less: Cash balance with central bank subject
IRITHIH &4 1F to regulatory restriction (1,850,947) (1,497,891)
TE4rEHE R BRI Cash and cash equivalents in the
& REEREHEE consolidated cash flow statement 31,282,874 21,189,799

166




A A8 H

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

2 2 . . .
SR BRI Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R (continued)
33. ERAREERRIE 33. Contingent liabilities and commitments
SARBE FURIE 2R ARE The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
A7 R IR Y &8 R RIE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
e rmdRed - HAgTHE S is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
A2 A4 R R A E SRR adequacy ratio:
RESEEREALZN T
2020 2019
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HHEEEAREE Direct credit substitutes 5,147 5,147
L SR 2 SR AR Transaction-related contingencies 25,621 24,771
A B AR SR B (E Trade-related contingencies 677,387 475,735
REE SRS > Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
K without prior notice 10,356,740 7,486,395
Ht&¥E - HEHEAH £ Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 EEDUT - up to one year 564,022 275,275
-1 E - over one year 2,587,573 4,370,553
14,216,490 12,637,876
lE eyt veE Credit risk-weighted amount 1,225,636 1,843,553
EEREIIEEEERE () The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
1T (BAR) #HA) 518 - 1 Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
FEEUAFARZ S T2 5 fe & characteristics of each type of contract.

G Z AR -

34. ERELE 34. Capital commitments
G (B AR TP P e v 4 The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the
ZEREESEUT ¢ financial statements:
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
At R A E RS Authorised and contracted for but not provided
for 22,855 13,758
EFAEEARZELY Authorised but not contracted for 184 18,226
23,039 31,984
PAEBEARIERTL 77 Ryl A The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
Z BRI RO DU equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.

B2 e TR R -
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w

35. fHERE 35. Lease commitments
(a) fERARFEA (a) As lessee
UEEERNEIE /6 S The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments
HEEL) TYIRAE under non-cancellable operating leases:
B R 2R R A B A
FIZHSZ N 2 B4
2020 2019
EWTIT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
At R Land and buildings
- Rigis 1 & - Not later than one year 513 330
-1FED EE5FEN - Later than one year but not later than five
years 23 -
536 330
AT AT > 4 Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
ETHET T F R R 2R renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
Tohats HHH 2 M E B agreed dates or according to the special condition as stipulated in the leases.
KINBIHRF HIRRGR B
{EFH<BEHE -
(b) fERHFHEA (b) As lessor
TR oS~ &2 The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
BG4 T R A E receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:
MEFIT G ZRKA
BATH & 2 i 2
2020 2019
AT AETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ot BT Land and buildings
- Rt 14 - Not later than one year 1,673 4,440
-1TFERLEZE 5 FERN - Later than one year but not later than five
years - 1,669
1,673 6,109
REFE DKL 2HEP X The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
TS FHE T leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
HEE 1 FEE 3F require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according
KR — IR 12 to the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of the lease.

TR bt sz e R LT i
i - RIS T L IR
[IOELEiEE=
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36. TR

AR E R % AR E I AR ER
ER R - ZERE R R ARG
BHIEHEEEEAR -

R ERR HAEETEH FRAFHA
JIT RS THE Z F R AT R B
Ko ORI ERE MR E L E
RS -

37. pEEHmE

(a) EEFEID

RIEEEEH L B = EEEH
EAMT ARSI TSR ~ 3R
TSR R B © SRS ARAY T
TEAEN AR e e S

BASRIT R SRIT B R9 g
fEft R EmHIsRI TR - B S
KBS B B S HRARYE
i fe HAE SRS ~ A R
bn SNBSS S TR A e (AR
ITHBR T ERIRBEAZ S - 1M
RFERITHEBREERRBLF
BE - ENMEESBSR RTHE
HESN  HATEHEENREE
&~ FIFRFISNER T - T Eofl, 25—
> EREFEALEERA FHE -
TEYE R A -

SETBARAVEEE « B~ A~ S
B AN RN 5
E st B T R - R E
T ELPE I N % SRS AR B LR
EPPR=e:it FREXTE i N
PSR EGHER - HEE N
HEE BT > L2
HSGHIR B E - W5 A B
HIRFE -

A B Y £ AR B F B
Al B s E R 1 S R
W AAEHZERS - RILFTASER
JERF B RS H BUF T I -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

36. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various
independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the
normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims
because the directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against
the claimants or the amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be
material.

37. Segmental reporting

(a) Operating segments information

The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate
customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest rate
and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
investment properties and equity investments.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the
business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are
presented on a net basis.
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37. FEEHE (8D

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) fEEHBEY (8D

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

2020
BEASHT T =g Hithr et EHHES &a
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
ST T ST T ST AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SRR (ZHD) AUA Netinterest (expense) / income
- fhk - External (907,770) 1,407,740 1,212,348 - 1,712,318 - 1,712,318
- B5RETS - Inter-segment 1,297,380  (239,192) (1,058,188) - - - -
389,610 1,168,548 154,160 - 1,712,318 - 1,712,318
SRR RSN Netfee and commission
YA income / (expense) 281,525 523,712 (2,600) 786 803,423 - 803,423
SFATSMRS S (B Nettrading gain/ (loss)
#) 20,093 14,700 9,841  (89,216) (44,582) - (44,582)
AERBUATESE  Netloss on financial
sEAIEGE R T instruments designated at fair
EU5iE value through profit or loss - - (6,319) - (6,319) - (6,319)
otz L Net gain on other financial
Tt assets - 113,424 198,845 - 312,269 - 312,269
HATERUTA Other operating income - 448 550 23,435 24,433  (15,193) 9,240
REURELEERIZ$  Net operating income /
= N (expense) before

G impairment allowances 691,228 1,820,832 354,477 (64,995) 2,801,542 (15,193) 2,786,349
TRAEZER SR Net reversal / (charge) of

(¥ impairment allowances 18,826 (274,540) (352,754) (29,885) (638,353) - (638,353)
B Net operating income /

[63::)) (expense) 710,054 1,546,292 1,723 (94,880) 2,163,189 (15,193) 2,147,996
e Operating expenses (411,360)  (349,860) (37,340) (336,856) (1,135,416) 15,193 (1,120,223)
Kk, (B8 Operating profit/ (loss) 298,694 1,196,432 (35,617)  (431,736) 1,027,773 - 1,027,773
YL HESE Netloss from fair value

AR adjustments on
investment properties - - - (7,330) (7,330) - (7,330)
HE EEE - 25 Net loss from disposal /
ARG FhstE revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - - - (247) (247) - (247)
TFATaF] Profit / (loss) before

(BB taxation 298,694 1,196,432 (35,617) (439,313) 1,020,196 - 1,020,196
=i Assets
Sy Segment assets 16,363,528 72,781,881 72,806,839 1,562,125 163,514,373 - 163,514,373
=i Liabilities
SrEEE Segment liabilities 87,484,965 51,696,763 5,807,306 631,039 145,620,073 - 145,620,073
gt Other information
B H Capital expenditure (6,135)  (25,433) (103) (86,492) (118,163) - (118,163)
#res Depreciation (6,002)  (10,752) (560)  (105,856) (123,170) - (123,170)
Egas: i Amortisation of securities - - 53,453 3,280 56,733 - 56,733
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37. EEHE (8

(a) EERE Y (8D

SFE M BRI
(&)

SFRIE (4 /A Netinterest (expense) / income

- AR

- BT

P AL N
can

FRSIS (6
1)

SR BLIATAEE
S SRS SRIT
e

FHifth Rl L

s

FAA

HREAT P
E-TN

R i

G

L,

@EEF (B

e N
o e

HiEE EfEPRE - 85
o Reased 3

BRAsAasH],
((=i2))

HE
Ty

&R
Pap:ii=t

Hiftrgt
BN
b=

- External
- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income / (expense)
Net trading gain / (loss)

Net gain on financial
instruments designated at
fair value through profit or
loss

Net gain on other financial
assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before
impairment allowances

Net charge of impairment
allowances

Net operating income /
(expense)

Operating expenses

Operating profit / (loss)

Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties

Net gain from disposal /
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment

Profit / (loss) before
taxation

Assets
Segment assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation of securities

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2019

ESRT T BT Hoth /Nat EOHEH GrE

Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal _Eliminations Consolidated
AR AT AEETT AT HEETT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(1,150,380) 1,853,880 1,315,073 - 2,018,573 - 2,018,573
1,548,109  (519,687) (1,028,422) - - - -
397,729 1,334,193 286,651 - 2,018,573 - 2,018,573
288,014 356,302 (1,318) - 642,998 - 642,998
25,966 17,282 6,172 (23,479) 25,941 - 25,941
- - 7,307 - 7,307 - 7,307
- 22,538 46,951 - 69,489 - 69,489
- 582 592 26,215 27,389 (15,074) 12,315
711,709 1,730,897 346,355 2,736 2,791,697 (15,074) 2,776,623
(85,450)  (228,131) (13,594) (18,170) (345,345) - (345,345)
626,259 1,502,766 332,761 (15,434) 2,446,352 (15,074) 2,431,278
(432,665)  (274,115) (35,520) (217,684) (959,984) 15,074 (944,910)
193,594 1,228,651 297,241 (233,118) 1,486,368 - 1,486,368
- - - 4,846 4,846 - 4,846
- - - 2,723 2,723 - 2,723
193,594 1,228,651 297,241 (225,549) 1,493,937 - 1,493,937
14,293,027 69,974,778 63,635,494 1,951,482 149,854,781 - 149,854,781
81,679,680 45,208,054 8,068,192 775,866 135,731,792 - 135,731,792
(5,425) (34,846) 41) (190,911) (231,223) - (231,223)
(5,593) (2,739) (280) (86,953) (95,565) - (95,565)
- - 268,726 - 268,726 - 268,726
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37. FEEHE (8D

(b) HEFHEIRE Sy

DUNERE R 152
BRI

A
o B A 3

T
A

38. ERAHEE

#20204E12H31H - Ak
74 5 8 i 2245 (F K
(2019 &% @ # ¥
446,922,00077 ) » AHEEZ
HEMZERE (20194
#2441,717,00097) > A T
S YR -

4202012 H31H - A%
e o (o o AT 2 A Ry
# % 8,730,628,607 T
(2019 % Mo
3,316,597,0007T ) - AHH]
RfEtritFAEME N 2
HE & ®E R ER
9,174,021,41571.( 20194 :
H513,421,293,0007% ) » 174
FEESHEE L IR -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:

2020 2019

FEHURE PRHCR(E oo
EHERIZ Y 5a ] HEFHTZ K i E;;JJ

RRBUA b=l BT i
Net operating Net operating Profi
income before Profit  income before rofit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT BT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 2,230,629 754,943 2,133,678 1,058,989
Mainland China 555,720 265,253 642,945 434,948
2,786,349 1,020,196 2,776,623 1,493,937
2020 2019
e HEE
Total assets Total assets
BT BETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Hong Kong 126,331,879 117,583,454
Mainland China 37,182,494 32,271,327
163,514,373 149,854,781

38. Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2020, there were no liabilities which were secured by bills (2019:
HK$446,922,000). There were no assets pledged (2019: HK$441,717,000) included in
“Trade bills”.

As at 31 December 2020, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$8,730,628,607
(2019: HK$3,316,597,000) were secured by debt securities. The amount of assets pledged
by the Group to secure these liabilities was HK$9,174,021,415 (2019: HK$3,421,293,000)
included in “investment in securities”.
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39. &R T B 2K 39. Offsetting financial instruments
TRIRALEE T 2 The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
BUTIE PR B AR TR A enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:
HoA A AT B SR 4 SR A < i
TH

2020

RERMBRAR IR
iR
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
financial position

R BREERS REBRIEERSR

ERRLH SN CHEOm TR R ) Bgmz
BEGHE =Nt A SRMTH B B
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised  Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
assets financial position financial position instruments received amount
AR AR EWTIT EWTIT AWTIT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
=73 Assets
774 4k Derivative financial
TE instruments 20,997 - 20,997 (20,997) - -
Hfth&ZE Other assets 496,037 (445,856) 50,181 - - 50,181
517,034 (445,856) 71,178 (20,997) - 50,181
2020
FRERMBARRETEHZ
sl o]
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
N R financial position
COREERRET REBRERD
EHERER fEH EHMRem FIRISREE B EfEHZ )
=ik | B A8 SRTH &M B
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross recognised financial
amounts of financial assets liabilities
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities financial position financial position instruments pledged amount
AT T AT BT T BT T BETIT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
b=Ci-t Liabilities
744t Derivative financial
TH instruments 61,988 - 61,988 (20,997) - 40,991
Hfth& (& Other liabilities 966,717 (445,856) 520,861 - - 520,861
1,028,705 (445,856) 582,849 (20,997) - 561,852
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39. &R T H 7SN 39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

(&)

2019

KA IR R Z AR

fofl 45

Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial

. . position
o MBI RT R R
CHERER X3 CRERER PRy & RlE & Bz -
HEEAEE =l TR EREITHE Bt PR
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Net amounts of
amounts of  financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral
assets  financial position  financial position  instruments received Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT AB¥TIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
B Assets
#5744 Fh Derivative financial
TE instruments 14,277 - 14,277 (14,277) - -
HAr&EZE Other assets 503,191 (416,593) 86,598 - - 86,598
517,468 (416,593) 100,875 (14,277) - 86,598
2019
FHENM IR FT P IESE 2 A
Lk
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
- - position
o MBI RT RWEAR R
CREDER R TSR FIoReY & m e [% i -
B RAEE iz T ERITH Bl T
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial liabilities
recognised financial assets set presented in the Cash
financial off in the statement statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities of financial position  financial position  instruments pledged amount
BT I T BETTE BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
=i Liabilities
#7446 Fi Derivative financial
TH instruments 33,032 - 33,032 (14,277) - 18,755
HAr& & Other liabilities 422,539 (416,593) 5,946 - - 5,946
455,571 (416,593) 38,978 (14,277) - 24,701
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39. &SR T H 7SN 39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)
(&)
WHAREEGETARRBIMT For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
ETERZ G FHEHEE related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
Toneds o (e S AR AR A B HL A predetermined events occur.
HIRERNBEMR AIE—2
Sy 2 B e H T ER

S -

40. EEEHR 40. Loans to directors
RBEEE (AHEIEE) 5 Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
383K (AHE] (BrFEE=SH Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
TR #HEI ) 5 =50 Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
FUE - [ ARITE SRR AL
ZERGEEAT ¢
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
WEEREAREEZHR Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
L L outstanding at year end - -
NENREERRZC S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
= AR transactions outstanding during the year - -
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M. FEZEREALRS
REAEIHEL A TR -

7 £ [ e T P B PR R 1 i 32
el BFIERRRT R — AT
e \RSEAIE] (T )
JRILAT SRR T

(a) EBAFREAEE
il Z EoAh S ETTHY

X5

AEEZ BRI E
R SRR A
MRAE O T HEREES
7)) EREIESER
BFEPE R E AR AE
EHIE AT EFEE
KB AR AT HE FE
MRS T RS -

KRy L PRI SRAT
T IR E &
SEEE) o % 2020 4F 12
H 31 H - AREEAH R E
W e FEAS JE P BB SR AT
IR S oY ) R B
4,852,000 7T (2019 4
12 5 31 H &K
471,331,000 7T ) F i
180,564,000 7T (2019
12 5 31 H kg
2,700,491,000 ¢ ) -
2020 B MEIERIRTT
AR B P E
AR A R H S oy
Al By B W 52,000 ST
(20194212 31 H:
HEE 11,997,000 7T) K2
# W 15,317,000 T
(20194212 [ 31 H:
5 91,670,000 7T)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

41. Significant related party transactions

General information of the parent companies:

The Group is indirectly controlled by Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., which is a
Chinese commercial bank established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Chiyu International Financial Holdings
Limited (“Chiyu International Holdings”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xiamen
International Investment Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd.

The majority of transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. arise from
money market activities. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount due
from and to Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. of the Group were HK$4,852,000 (31
December 2019: HK$471,331,000) and HK$180,564,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$2,700,491,000) respectively. The aggregate amount of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.
during 2020 was HK$52,000 (31 December 2019: HK$11,997,000) and
HK$15,317,000 (31 December 2019: HK$91,670,000) respectively.
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8 (continued)

M. FEEFREALIE 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

(a) EEAF B ATEER

ZHAAFETHIR S

(&)

RE B SR 2 H
fit A EII R A H & P AT
- 14 2020 4 12 F 31
H > AL EIH B RO
Hil 311,784,000 75(2019
F 12 7§ 31 O
302,312,000 ) - 2020 4
L2 S YNCIEESS LI A
RIS AR T A AR
SRR B 4,686,000
JC (2019 4E 12 7 31 H
Hil 7,392,000 7T) ©

S INSIPSE Rt s i
NEIINA SR ETHE R -
2020 FREELRpI SRR 2 H
fill 2 IR U S 5 A
FE AR AT A SR B
1,670,000 7¢ (2019 £E 12
F 31 H : ## 1,550,000
gL

HZE 20204212 H 31
Ik REBEFAEBE
145,988,000 J¢ (2019 4F
12 H 31 {H : i
154,653,000 ¢ ) F3E P
FESRAT ATV (& - 1
2020 £ 12 A 31 Hik» A&
% oA B %
239,443,000 T [ JH F9E]
B SR AT S T Y K 5 5
(2019 ££ 12 H 31 [ :
£ ) - 2020 443 HIHEAFTE
FRERTTIHEH A RS 9,025,000
56 (2019412 A 31 [
7% 9,000,000 ) FE UL
A FOE B PR B R 1 T I L
i 2,287,000 ¢ (2019
£ 12 7 31 H B
10,922,000 1) FIEA ©

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$311,784,000 (31 December 2019: HK$302,312,000). The
aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions during 2020
was HK$4,586,000 (31 December 2019: HK$7,392,000).

The majority of transactions with parent companies and the other companies controlled
by the parent companies arise from rental service. The aggregate amount of income of
the Group arising from these transactions during 2020 was HK$1,670,000 (31 December
2019: HK$1,550,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount of the Group invested in the
subordinated debt issued by Luso International Banking Limited was HK$145,988,000
(31 December 2019: HK$154,653,000). As at 31 December 2020, there were
HK$239,443,000 in debt securities issued by Xiamen International Bank (31 December
2019: Nil). The interest income gained during 2020 from Luso International Banking
Limited and Xiamen International Bank were HK$9,025,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$9,000,000) and HK$2,287,000 (31 December 2019: HK$10,922,000) respectively.
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M. FEEFREALIE 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(b) FEEREAER (b) Key management personnel

B PN =Pt = N Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
BEE P A planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
MEARAGETE] - F5EH including directors, senior management and key personnel. The Group accepts
EEEEEBZ AL deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in
BIEEE SR EEE the ordinary course of business. During both the current and prior periods, no material
KFEAE - KEETFE transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its
EREFRTEHSTTHE holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

SN SRR A g
HERAREEME - 1
Wi R AES - AR
A B ERAT e HAZE R
NEZEHEERE B

HAREATHETER
ECE
FHEEREBAEEHZE12H The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
31 H IR 2 a0 is detailed as follows:
T
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hem - HA IS T Salaries, other short-term employee
TR SR ITER] benefits and post-employment benefits 50,678 84,327
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%{%ﬁ)ﬂ“ BIiRRMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
42. BABARLR R FEZSE 42, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
Bk
(a) IR (a) Statement of financial position
»12 H 31 H As at 31 December 2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HE B ASSETS
JEE 17 B < B A7 SR A T e HoAth <8 il Cash and balances with banks and other
TREHIASER financial institutions 22,880,381 18,228,791
1E8RTT R HAth S Ffits — 2+ Placements with banks and other
&l 5 N2 B HE financial institutions maturing between
one and twelve months 7,440,298 4,819,212
TR T E Derivative financial instruments 140,505 122,133
BEEH N E 5 EE Advances to customers and trade bills 78,340,141 76,986,891
A Investment in securities 50,516,304 46,760,270
Ea= (=Yl Investment in subsidiaries 365,713 195,713
JREVISZBS a8 2 B Amounts due from subsidiaries 227,085 192,040
EYF Investment properties 153,620 237,150
Y2 - BEM RS Properties, plant and equipment 1,932,855 1,909,471
USRI FE Current tax assets 20,539 -
IRAEMIHE Deferred tax assets 23,373 640
HiEE Other assets 1,555,958 520,449
B Total assets 163,596,772 149,972,760
b=i= LIABILITIES
BRAT R EcAh RS 2 A7 R Deposits and balances from banks and
4heR other financial institutions 20,511,269 17,747,463
Prdem T A Derivative financial instruments 75,396 40,361
E TR Deposits from customers 122,783,631 116,443,676
JEEAT T8 2 WK Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,795 1,795
AR R Other accounts and provisions 2,221,801 1,272,603
JEN T E Current tax liabilities 41,950 186,248
IRAERRIA & Deferred tax liabilities 132,544 179,674
B fRAEEH Total liabilities 145,768,386 135,871,820
[=Z EQUITY
[R&N Share capital 6,577,871 3,245,980
fhifH Reserves 9,312,803 8,917,248
AERT T R AL R AT A (A Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 15,890,674 12,163,228
HYNEART R Additional equity instruments 1,937,712 1,937,712
g Total equity 17,828,386 14,100,940
IV e EN Total liabilities and equity 163,596,772 149,972,760

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board

by:
LYU Yaoming ZHENG Wei
Director Director
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#r (8)

(b) FEEBHHR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
(continued)

(b) Statement of changes in equity

BRI AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
4]
Reserves
FEER  AREE
itz " B BERE RERH  wWEEA T FYINEATERE  BAGE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve’ reserve? reserve® reserve* earnings Total _instruments equity
AWTT AT ERTL BETT BT BE¥TT A%t BT EBETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
202041 H1H At1January 2020 3,245,980 1,227,167 588 519,987 (108,991) 7,278,497 12,163,228 1,937,712 14,100,940
FRERF Profit for the year - - - - - 800,314 800,314 - 800,314
HAth S s Other comprehensive
income:
FREE Premises - (48,072) - - - - (48,072) - (48,072)
PLAAE #(E5F A Equity instruments
Hfih 4 i U 25 2 at fair value
RS T A through other
comprehensive
income - - (6,329) - - - (6,329) - (6,329)
PLA-HZ{EEE A Debt instruments
H 2w at fair value
EHRTE through other
comprehensive
income - - (85,135) - - - (85,135) - (85,135)
o e b Currency translation
difference - - - - 210,203 - 210,203 - 210,203
LU AR Total comprehensive
income - (48,072) (91,464) - 210,203 800,314 870,981 - 870,981
AT A Issuance of ordinary
shares 3,331,891 - - - - - 3,331,891 - 3,331,891
B 2 A R Transfer to retained
earnings - - - (385,262) - 385,262 - - -
iids) Dividends - - - - - (373,650)  (373,650) - (373,650)
LA EEANE A T B FF Distribution to the
HHEFE holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (101,776) _ (101,776) - (101,776)

J/+2020 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 6,577,871 _ 1,179,095 (90,876) 134,725 101,212 7,988,647 15,890,674 1,937,712 17,828,386
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(b) MEzEEIR (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
(continued)

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

SR AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
(=4
Reserves
PR E IANPEE
[N fehfE ! G EEREG MERE WERR st BUNEATH AR
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fairvalue Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve’ reserve? reserve® reserve’  earnings Total __instruments equity
AT AN TT ERTIT BRTOT BETOT BT BNTOT AlTT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
201941 H1H  At1January 2019 1,772,988 1,203,829  (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,539,494 9,660,034 1,937,712 11,597,746
R Profit for the year - - - - - 1,247,784 1,247,784 - 1,247,784
HoAth A - Other comprehensive
income:
FREE Premises - 23,338 - - - - 23,338 - 23,338
DL EE (B A Equity instruments
HAth 2 ks> at fair value
Bt T A through other
comprehensive
income - - 15,108 - - - 15,108 - 15,108
DL 2 (BEF A Debtinstruments
HAth 2 ks> at fair value
HHTHE through other
comprehensive
income - - 202,461 - - - 202,461 - 202,461
Currency translation
difference - - - - (56,687) - (56,687) - (56,687)
Total comprehensive
income - 23,338 217,569 - (56,687) 1,247,784 1,432,004 - 1,432,004
BT Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,992 - - - - - 1,472,992 - 1,472,992
e o T ELH| Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 105,610 - (105,610) - -
3358 Dividends - - - - - (298,920) (298,920) - (298,920)
GAJEESNE AR T ELfF Distribution to the
HEFE holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,882) (102,882) - (102,882)
K& & LN {8 81 Release upon disposal
A H A4 E Y zs  of equity instruments
> L HE s T EL>  atfair value through
g 5 other comprehensive
income® - - 1,369 - - (1,369) - - -
#2019 412 [ 31 H At 31 December 2019 3245980 1,227,167 588 519,987  (108,991) 7,278,497 12,163,228 1,937,712 14,100,940

P EE B Al A Y 1L KR EL R AR
Al B AE AT ER A Y St Bk o

ATRERFOEFELATES
(G At 2 T4 B
e L TERR B A (B
% o

B ST RIS O SB
HRBURIEE S e ERER
R ) B 7 BRI B G (4
T—RBRZ ) (@ERARER
AR FTREER ) -

ST B A A TR PP RAR A
HT SRR T e -

PR DA TS LR AR 2
252 B3 T BRI
DA B 9T -

Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the revaluation of premises.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value through other
comprehensive income securities held until the securities are derecognised.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment
allowances recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.

Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for foreign currency translation.

The release upon disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
was made because the investment was no longer to be held for strategic purpose.
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Subsidiaries of the Bank

43. ARITZIHBEATE 43.

% 2020 47 12 A 31 HASR The particulars of direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2020 are

CAIRITRI R AR

21 September 2020

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank

182

17 E 1 R RN S A FIH A as follows:
BB IRANE
Eallipg-¢ = BT SUEREA
B iR K H # FEEA FrA FEER
Place and date of Issued share capital  Interest
Name incorporation / operation  / Registered capital held Principal activities
ERIAT (REA) ARAT & bopiilEah) 100% PRERRRFS R AL B
1981411 A3 H 100,000 #7¢
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited 3 November 1981 HK$100,000 investment holding
BEEFEARAF i Eeiilah) 100% P PR S B R 5E
1961412 H 11 H 2,800,000 T HE
Seng Sun Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding and
Company, Limited 11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties
to group companies
AR AE I depilibdh) 100%* FrE PR
20015 H 4 H 2 BT
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Investment holding
4 May 2001 HK$2
ERBEEERARAE I bopiilEah) 100% PRt SRR AR R S
201743 13 H 5,000,000 &7T
Chiyu International Capital Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Corporate finance
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$5,000,000 advisory
EREEEHEARAFE B beilEan) 100% B
201743 H 13 H 356,800,000 T
Chiyu Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Asset management
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$356,800,000
i Eeiilah) 100%* ESREEULE S
201843 H 29 H 1 5T
Sun King Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Property holding
29 March 2018 HK$1
EREESEIIEAE AT PERE By 100%* EETHAF
201941 H 22 H 100 Z£7¢
Chiyu Fund Segregated Cayman Islands Management shares 100%* Fund vehicle
Portfolio Company 22 January 2019 UsD100
EREEHEEER C-D A FEEA 100%* g Sia=e S
[RAHE 2020 £ 4 H 17 H 1,250,050 =T
(H 2021 4 3 29 HEEATH
BN BRI E
EeEE (D ARA
Eib)
(Name changed to &k f.5H: Shenzhen Registered capital 100%* Equity Investment
MRS EAEH CGEYD A 17 April 2020 USD1,250,050
PR\ E] with effect from
29 March 2021)
ERREER CRID ARS F=I - 100% SRR - SRR K
G| 202049 H21H FAtFHRAR S
Shenzhen - 100% Information technology,

data processing and
other related services
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E R A ]

2020412 H 31 H > A
T HERERAERER
BUFEERIZERR AR AT Z%
ANEIPREAETE ML - Hi
SR 2N B Ry I P PR SR
T ZAFR—FIRPEEA
B S R B s M B T Y
PSEERTT -

P e

B LIS
BRI EWIT, -

M BHRRIZA
AFIBERRI 2021 42 4 1

26 HaERdEmB s
A -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44,

45.

46.

Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2020, the immediate holding company of the Bank is Chiyu International
Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
company is Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., a Chinese commercial bank incorporated in
the PRC.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement
presentation adopted in the current year.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26 April 2021.
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Credit Risk

1.1 Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:
2020 2019
fEZ FERK % P ESR
&8 =P &5 HEESTE

% of gross
advances to

% of gross
advances to

Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:
- six months or less but
over three months 39,957 0.05% 2 0.00%
- one year or less but
over six months 692 0.00% 79,847 0.10%
- over one year 239,514 0.31% 120,262 0.16%
Advances overdue for over
three months 280,163 0.36% 200,111 0.26%
Specific provisions made in
respect of such advances 278,510 193,198
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 28,450 28,358
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 7,703 10,372
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 272,460 189,739

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2020, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three

months (2019: Nil).
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(continued)
1. Rk (8) 1.  Credit Risk (continued)
1.2 KEHER 1.2 Rescheduled advances
2020 2019
g FERK % FERR
S8 GEEE St GEE SEEIL
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
K P BP0 (240 Rescheduled
SR e 3 (E advances to
A5, w5 customers net of
A amounts included
in “Advances
overdue for more
than three months” - - - -
K EH SR E AR Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
Ry B R B AE A1 A renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of
I 4 7[5 R R the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
BEFGTHE &30 - 85T advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
ERETETR 2 KRB L repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
W@ 3 @A - Hl
BIFELE DAl 3 (E A
ZER A e
1.3 EIEE 1.3 Repossessed assets
ALEEA 2020 12 H 31 There were HK$122,324,000 repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
HF A e & E R B December 2020 (2019: HK$144,240,000). The repossessed assets represent
122,324,000 T 2019 4! properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through
54 144,240,000 7T) © UL court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for release in
[ 78 5 2= 45 [ 30 2 S full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

FHHS e B SRz R R
2 (A AR P EE £
B FAAL AR 2 U5 =0
) MR AT
R o
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2. Currency Risk

f%@;ﬁf%Zﬁﬁﬂ?%ﬁﬂ Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading and non-trading and is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

b EUNTIE il
2020
BETIUEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

=T ERT Ve BT BRLUARR NS B

Swiss Other Total

us Euro Pound Australian Francs foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars  Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

HE&ERE Spot assets 43,844,693 1,286,644 235,168 655,462 17,919 43,393,546 855,075 90,288,507

HEEE Spot liabilities (33,020,819)  (374,024)  (205,024)  (938,263) (4,970) (42,081,352)  (567,534) (77,191,986)

EEEA Forward purchases 2,094,802 23,349 65,390 353,383 13,474 72,578 331,968 2,954,944

AR Forward sales (11,964,027)  (926,659)  (103,892) (68,419) (26,724) (1,595,124)  (619,480) (15,304,325)
&/ (F) #8548  Netlong/ (short)

position 954,649 9,310 (8,358) 2,163 (301)  (210,352) 29 747,140

2019
AT IEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

ETT Bt gEgE T EiARR AREE  HArsME  SMEREE

Swiss Other Total

us Euro Pound Australian Francs foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

HE&RE Spot assets 46,012,705 1,500,071 293,429 950,833 6,703 33,853,064 702,740 83,319,545

HEAE Spot liabilities (39,018,355) (1,153,791)  (274,677)  (931,162) (7,789) (34,009,374)  (522,031) (75,917,179)

EHHE A Forward purchases 1,316,677 11,569 69,564 31,008 11,720 836,191 325031 2,601,850

AR Forward sales (7,667,061)  (354,869) (85,932) (46,156) (10,932)  (493,329)  (508,560) (9,166,839)
&/ (J4) #)54  Netlong/ (short)

position 643,966 2,980 2,384 4,613 (298) 186,552 (2,820) 837,377
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RBE Z FAMEE R Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(&) (continued)

Liquidity coverage ratio

2020 2019
Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
- First quarter 224.76% 218.71%
- Second quarter 301.99% 191.46%
- Third quarter 214.89% 205.53%
- Fourth quarter 250.22% 210.17%

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

Net stable funding ratio

2020 2019
Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
- First quarter 143.92% 123.50%
- Second quarter 148.39% 127.14%
- Third quarter 149.48% 131.08%
- Fourth quarter 148.60% 142.44%

The quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.

The additional information of net stable funding ratio disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’ s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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(continued)
5. EBTAREH 5. Capital management
5.1 SRR 5.1 Basis of regulatory combination
2020 FEEERHIEST O The consolidated basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
BEOMRE (ST (AR Bank’s local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries specified by
FHD) KizeERREE the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
FiE BOR FH A ERAT 2 A Rules in 2020.
WER - BN T RIEE
B e 22 14K
fEgatiE M i o AR For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with
AR % i A R GR S b HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in Note 43.
BT - HABEEHEE
43 -
LG AE g SR Al 47 & The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
AN EETEREE N E consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as
=xns el A=l follows:
SEIFAT ¢
2020 2019
BRI = 7N HEEAEER BN
B Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity
BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EREEERARAH Chiyu International Capital
Limited 160,108 108,342 102,258 73,108
EREEEHARAET Chiyu Asset Management
Limited 373,804 349,817 186,820 174,720
ERFESRITIYE S /AE Chiyu Fund Segregated
Portfolio Company 1 1 1 1
DA B o 2 B Y 7 B The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 43.
HEAHTEE 43 ©
#2020 412 A 31 HJr There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
SHE AT 0] [ J& 2 =] 5] B L B scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of combination where the methods
FEsHERMEERES of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

F i T 5 PR RS ] & 7
% (201912 31 H ¢
) -
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capital ratios is analysed as follows:

(continued)
5. &EXREHE (&) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 HEALER 5.2 Capital ratio
2020 2019
Ll R G N S CET1 capital ratio 15.66% 13.59%
—ERE AR Tier 1 capital ratio 17.79% 16.19%
N Total capital ratio 19.23% 17.71%
FREHE D EEARLLR Y The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments 6,577,871 3,245,980
Retained earnings 7,933,040 7,220,972
Disclosed reserves 1,347,828 1,661,469
CET1 capital before regulatory
deductions 15,858,739 12,128,421
CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments (194) (8,610)
Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax
liabilities (23,499) (640)
Gains and losses due to changes in
own credit risk on fair valued liabilities
(12) (60)
Cumulative fair value gains arising from
the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties)
(1,397,685) (1,452,133)
Regulatory reserve for general banking
risks (134,725) (519,987)
Total regulatory deductions to
CET1 capital (1,556,115) (1,981,430)
CET1 capital 14,302,624 10,146,991
AT1 capital 1,937,712 1,937,712
Tier 1 capital 16,240,336 12,084,703
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(continued)
5. EXEH (#) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 FARER (&) 5.2 Capital ratio (continued)
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
TEER R R CE Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
EEMETA T REARN Collective impairment allowances and
AR T R — % regulatory reserve for general banking
ST RS AS risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
SRR G capital 689,395 484,445
SRR Ry —4E A Tier 2 capital before regulatory
deductions 689,395 484,445
THEAR BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ElE &S A ZHE Add back of cumulative fair value gains
ARHY R 1 R arising from the revaluation of land
) (B8R RISEHR) and buildings (own-use and
YN N investment properties) eligible for
ﬁ{T%Tﬁ%{EﬁEﬁE inclusion in Tier 2 capital
A B AP E A 628,958 653,460
A A B E R Total regulatory deductions to
HE Tier 2 capital 628,958 653,460
TARER Tier 2 capital 1,318,353 1,137,905
B Total capital 17,558,689 13,222,608
GETEARLLER T The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
e ErE AR Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.500% 2.500%
e WS TERE JIEER Higher loss absorbency ratio - -
PRI E AL R Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.689% 1.426%

#2020 4212 B 31 H >
BEEAUNEEEERR
CCyB ("JCCyB ) Lb#Hy
1.0% - #HREBECEE
2020 4= 3 H 16 H#EHm
N RFIEELEEE 2.0%
P 1.0% o RITFANEAS
15 F BB R 4 P AR Y Ho B
HEEREIEAE ] JCCyB
EE% Ay 0% -

As at 31 December 2020, the applicable jurisdictional CCyB ("JCCyB") ratio in
Hong Kong was 1.0%. The ratio reduced from 2.0% in accordance with the
announcement made by the HKMA on 16 March 2020. For the rest of the
jurisdictions in which the Bank had private sector credit exposures, the applicable

JCCyB ratios were 0%.

5.3 fEELER 5.3 Leverage ratio

TERREERITA T The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:
2020 2019
BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
— 4B Tier 1 capital 16,240,336 12,084,703
TEFREER R E Leverage ratio exposure 164,951,289 154,471,671
FEFREL AR Leverage ratio 9.85% 7.82%

BB AT AR LR,
B B AT A A SR T4
H www.chiyubank.com tf

METEDEE  —HE -

The additional information of capital disclosures and leverage ratio disclosures are
available under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
www.chiyubank.com.
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(continued)
6. ERERE 6. International claims
PAN 53t T2 IR A o B PR SR The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
TS 2 2B RWMENE HKMA return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
Bt R mamed o B R counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the
X5 ¥ FFr e s st AJE b counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of
1% IS 5 2 s d8 BB cross-border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim
FEYERIIE oA HAEFIESE guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will
P B2 2 195 B (R 1 e A 3t be transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
ZHNEEERE - R IR A bank whose head office is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the
FRr AT 3t 8258 5 T+ FRAE 3R country where its head office is located.
[&] > Rl b RS R R A 2
FrAEsth - R IR T2 /g 4h
31T FE bR A L R
17 2 SBATFRAEHY
A (3 ] 1) [ 22 G B Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more
L ET B o P RS 12 A B P of the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:
MEHEER 10%BLA b2 fEfELN
B
2020
JESRTTRANA R
Non-bank private sector
FESRIT FEERl R
$RET EJitRE SRR LEVNG &t
Non-bank
Official financial Non-financial
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT BT AT AT BB
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
o [5] A Mainland China 17,346,000 2,730,000 2,323,000 20,358,000 42,757,000
it Hong Kong 1,564,000 - 449,000 8,354,000 14,067,000
2019
FESRITRANEAE
Non-bank private sector
B JESRTT FE<e R
T BT RS (VNG dEEt
Non-bank
Official financial  Non-financial
Banks sector Institutions  private sector Total
BT BT T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o [57] A HE Mainland China 17,019,000 1,028,000 3,333,000 18,959,000 40,339,000
o Hong Kong 762,000 1,000 2,018,000 10,091,000 12,872,000
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J

7. JERTHNHEERE 7.

Non-bank Mainland exposures

HIEIRTT S TR Rt
BRI R IE 2 i 92 IRA
B PO SR TS 2 28 R R
SR R AT Y1 2 R 1) R
PR 58 - PL
BT RS T 2 P B o

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

2020
HEAE HEAR
&EE FAHY AN
wEIEH [E bR E EERE SRR
Items in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
HEHETIT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PR~ BT Central government, central
1 - HItE AT REE government-owned entities and their
13 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 19,312,706 190,602 19,503,398
HOTEUR ~ TRV EFARY  Local governments, local government-
1l - HItE AT REE owned entities and their subsidiaries
=1 and joint ventures 2 10,682,862 188,273 10,871,135
T RN ERECEAMEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
NEEHIRERS ~ BRI A or other entities incorporated in
HREERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 19,291,514 669,596 19,961,110
NEFEIE FatsE—igsh i Other entities of central government
JRF A At RS not reported in item 1 above 4 1,857,805 174,449 2,032,254
RAFE(E Fullss IR EL - Other entities of local governments
JF IR E At i not reported in item 2 above 5 564,315 - 564,315
RN REGEESNF  PRC nationals residing outside
RS - HAERRAR Mainland or entities incorporated
(B35 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 14,961,662 47,587 15,009,249
HA=r FEF i Efg & Other counterparties where the
A Es T ESRA T AT kb i exposures are considered to be
HEIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 1,792,951 - 1,792,951
QEGT Total 8 68,463,815 1,270,597 69,734,412
R IR 0T & FELEAE Total assets after provision 9 163,104,644
B aERANE R RE On-balance sheet exposures as
(EEEEHE I percentage of total assets 10 41.98%
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(continued)

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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2019
EEAM HEAR
S RN RIMY
HEIEE BRI  EREE  GE RN
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BETT  OBETT BB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1 11,391,905 109,021 11,500,926
2 20,609,771 342,688 20,952,459
3 13,177,149 616,563 13,793,712
4 1,794,349 429,278 2,223,627
5 677,452 - 677,452
6 11,023,885 491,581 11,515,466
7 437,719 - 437,719
8 59,112,230 1,989,131 61,101,361
9 149,909,318
10 39.43%
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(continued)

8.

Risk Management

Overview

The Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business
development. The Group’s risk management objective is to maintain risk
exposures within acceptable level amid the Group’s efforts made to enhance
shareholders’ wealth. The Group has a defined risk appetite statement
approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that
the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its business goals and to meet
the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management
governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

Credit risk management

For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to
the Financial Statements.

Market risk management

For details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to
the Financial Statements.

Interest rate risk management

For details of the Group’s Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note
4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3
to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or external events. The risk is inherent in every
aspect of business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to -day
operational activities.

The Group has put in place effective internal control processes and has
formulated relevant policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The
Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and
authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk management tools or
methodologies such as key risk indicators, self-assessment, operational risk
events reporting and review to identify, assess, monitor and control the risks
inherent in business activities and products, as well as purchase of insurance
to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans are
established to substantiate business operations in the event of an emergency
or disaster. Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are
conducted.
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(continued)

8.

Risk Management (continued)

Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, causes a potential decline in the customer
base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent
in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and covers a wide
spectrum of issues.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry, so as to
effectively manage and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident.
The Group also adopts robust disclosure mechanism to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps to build confidence in the Group and to
establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial
conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory
sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may suffer as a
result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Group
has put in place relevant rules and procedures for legal and compliance risk
management.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor strategic decision-making, improper implementation
of strategies and inadequacies in response to the changing market conditions.
The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk management policy. Key
strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior
management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.

Capital management

For details of the Group’s Capital management, please refer to Note 4.4 to the
Financial Statements.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress testing.
Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures under
stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Senior Management

Executive Director
Lyu Yaoming

Executive Director and Chief Executive
Zheng Wei

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Chan Yiu Fai

Deputy Chief Executive
Fung Chi Lap Pierre

Chief Risk Officer
Ye Xin

Chief Financial Officer

Wong Siu Man
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Branch Network

PaRREY
BRANCH (Br.)

EEE

HONG KONG ISLAND

ST
Central Br.

a7
North Point Br.

BT
Wanchai Br.

EST
Sheung Wan Br.

PEEIT
Western Br.

R T
Quarry Bay Br.

EEFIT
Aberdeen Br.

JLAE
KOWLOON

ALHITT
Hung Hom Br.

BOETT
Kwun Tong Br.

FoKE T
Sham Shui Po Br.

KR 1T
San Po Kong Br.

SRR AT
Yau Ma Tei Br.

HUEDTT

Castle Peak Road Br.

NS

Kowloon Bay Br.

LB T

Tokwawan Br.

BT
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

Hsk
ADDRESS

EAPIRERES 78 5%
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

FiE ALt 2 390-394 FEiH T
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Point, H.K.

TREFHCEE 323-331 Hft N C A1 D &
Shop C & D, G/F, No. 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

T EERE S AGE T 315-319 5T 3 Sk
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

TG 2B 443-445 SR 13 A

Shop 13, G/F, No. 443-445 Queen's Road West, Western District, H.K.

wEM FURSL R 1065 HEavEHL LM N C B
Unit C, G/F, Eastern Centre, 1065 King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

T RE 138-140 5FH T
G/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

JURESTRR A L% 23-25 S 1~
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUBEBIRE 398-402 S T A B AL
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUBEA/KI 755 FEy i 235-237 it T
G/F, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JUBERT R etk 61-63 St T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

JUBEHGEH PR 117-119 53T
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kin.

JURESFKYS 7 1138 226-228 5
G/F, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

TUBES LR SR IR T 10 K2 10A Sidf

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

JUBE LIS 78-80W gt 11-13 5
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

JUBEZEE LT 7 18 TO3A 5
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.
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Bk
TELEPHONE

(852) 3556 9730

(852) 3556 9731

(852) 3556 9734

(852) 3556 9737

(852) 3556 9739

(852) 3556 9743

(852) 3556 9753

(852) 3556 9732

(852) 3556 9733

(852) 3556 9735

(852) 3556 9736

(852) 3556 9738

(852) 3556 9740

(852) 3556 9741

(852) 3556 9742

(852) 3556 9751
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Branch Network (continued)

PaRREY
BRANCH (Br.)

Hio
NEW TERRITORIES

WFIT
Tuen Mun Br.

ZEEL T
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

KIF AR5 1T
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br.

BOILES T
Belvedere Garden Br.

EEHT
Tsuen Wan Br.

YO HBERSE T
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

LT
Ma On Shan Br.

T
Sheung Tak Estate Br.

FEIAH,
MAINLAND CHINA

[BF953 77

Xiamen Br.

FRT

Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

B RIS AT
Xiamen Siming Sub-Br.

KEINITTT

Fuzhou Br.

FINFT
Shenzhen Br.

Hifik Bk
ADDRESS TELEPHONE

Fry P2 E Tl HAND.S N & 1 4% N-125 &
Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T. (852) 3988 9508

RS R B R AR N 1 S
Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T. (852) 3556 9745

F SRRSO 22 A A 112-114 5
Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T. (852) 3556 9746

WSS B = BT BA Skl
Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,  (852) 3556 9747
N.T.

HSEEE ) OIHE 131-135 gk T
G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T. (852) 3988 9518

U ERRSERER Y 1 14 F7 SR80
Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T. (852) 3556 9749

S ELCEATERE B LY 3 14 313 gl
Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T. (852) 3556 9750

T SR R P 1 PR £ 2 1 238 R
Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate, (852) 3556 9752
Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

Hh B rE R [ P T B e S 90 SRIL(EEEES 101-103 K 202 it
Unit 101-103 and 202, Lixin Plaza, No. 90 Hubin South Road, Siming District, (86-592) 585 6288
Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

EtREAE P EAESEIE 68-71 5
No. 68-71 Lehai Bei Li, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China (86-592) 619 3300

g [ P & 5 RS 182 5% 112-123 BT
Unit 112-123, No. 182 Jiahe Road, Siming District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, (86-592) 585 6278
China

HHBE R A T TS R Ui 118 57 = RS ERE LhBREE 30 4 ~ 32 k¢ 33

1

30F, 32F and 33F, East Tower, Sansheng International Center, No. 118 Wusi (86-591) 2831 5555
Road, Gulou District, Fuzhou, Fujian, China

YTt E R IR 6003 BEssiEra A aii A B 1 g 01 BT

Unit 1, Level 1, Block A, Rongchao Business Center, No. 6003 Yitian Road, (86-755) 3690 8888
Futian District, Shenzhen, China
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